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CHAIRMAN CUM 
MANAGING DIRECTOR’S MESSAGE

Dear Shareholders,

It is a matter of great pleasure to 

place before you, the FIFTH 

Financial Statement of your 

company for the year ending on 31st 

March 2022.  

It is matter of pride and pleasure to inform you that your company has achieved revenue growth of 42% during the 

financial year 21-22 as compared to previous financial year. Similarly, growth in net profit after tax was achieved 

by 47%. The revenue for the year was ` 1732 crore as compared to ` 1218 crore in the previous financial year. 

Similarly, the net profit after tax was ̀  40.44 crore as compared to ̀  27.46 core in the previous financial year. The 

Board of Directors have decided to share this surge in net profit with the shareholders of the company by 

declaring a maiden dividend of 10% for FY 21-22 subject to your approval.
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I would like to give my thanks to the team DP for their outstanding performances in meeting out the growth 

journey of your company and for attending outstanding performances in many areas such as show room wise 

sales, no. of customers’ footfall, inventory turnover ratios etc. Our inventory turnover ratio is 5.17 times which can 

be said as best in our industry. Likewise, Debt Equity Ratio is just 1.11 and ROCE is 22.92% and ROE is more than 

34%. 

As promised in last AGM that your company will broaden its years old brand “D.P. Jewellers- A bond of trust 

since 1940” in central India which include mainly M.P., Rajasthan by establishing more show room in Tier II and  

Tier III cities. I feel extremely warm and contended to enlighten you that your company has celebrated the grand 

opening of its new show rooms during the year at Banswara in Rajasthan in the month of January 2022. I feel 

really happy to have very good response from the customers of Banswara region. Going forward, your 

company will continue to focus on Tier II and III cities of M.P., Rajasthan and Gujarat as a part of its mission of 

expansion.

Though the Indian Gems and Jewellery industry faced many challenges during the period of Pandemic. But the 

year 2022 and onwards seems to be very promising and people at large started celebrating the festivals and 

their customs thereby generating the good demand of Gold Jewellery. This year India has blessed with very 

good monsoon which will boost the demand in all segment particularly in Jewellery as better monsoon can be 

equated with better rural economy and demand. Your company is operating in Tier II and III city where rural 

economy plays the great role.

I would also like to inform you that your company has been consistently recognized by number of awards for its 

products, quality and performances and hope this journey will remain continue. 

Before I conclude, I would like to place on record my heartfelt gratitude to all employees for their unwavering 

commitment and team spirit and our sincere thanks to Bankers, NSE, and all our shareholders, suppliers and 

customers who have extended their valuable support. 

With Warm Regards
For: D.P. Abhushan Ltd.

Santosh Kataria
Chairman cum Managing Director 
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S H O W R O O M S 

RATLAM

138 Chandani Chowk Å 07412-408900

INDORE

Near Rajani Bhawan, Y.N. Road Å 0731-4099996

UDAIPUR 

17 Nyay Marg, Court Chouraha 

Å0294-2418712/13

BHOPAL 

16 Malviya Nagar, Rajbhawan Road 

Å 0755-2606500

UJJAIN

Opposite Police Control Room, 

Madhav Nagar Å 0734-2530786

BHILWARA

56 Nagar Parishad, Rajendra Marg

Å 01482-237999 

KOTA

1A1, Vallabh Nagar Square 

Å 0744-2500009

BANSWARA

 Maharana Pratap Chauraha, Udaipur Road

Å 02962-250007
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ACHIEVEMENTS 
& RECOGNITION
ACHIEVEMENTS 
& RECOGNITION

BEST  RING  DESIGN  AT 
IJ  J EWELLERS  CHOICE 

DESIGN  AWARDS

Excellence  Award
By-IBC 24

WINNER  OF  INDIA’S 
BEST  WEDDING  DIAMOND 

JEWELLERY 

India’s  Best  Bridal
Diamond  Jewellery
Award  For  The  Year  

Excellence  Award
By-IBC 24

Best  Business  Ethics  Award  at
Gem and  Jewellery  Trade 

Council  of  India  Excellence
Award

Best  Promising 
Gems  &  Jewellery  Company

By - India  Bullion  and  Jewellers 
Association  Ltd.

DP Jewellers

Best Promising Gems & Jewellery Company 2017

Best  Bridal  Necklace  of  The  Year 
Best  Ring  &  Bracelet  Design  of  The  Year
By - IJ  Jewellers  Choice  Design  Awards
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NOTICE is hereby given that the Fifth (5th) Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Members of D. P. Abhushan 
Limited will be held on Friday, September 30, 2022 at 05:00 P.M. at Hotel Balaji, Central Sailana Road, Near 
Amrit Garden, Opposite GTB Academy School, Barbad Mandir, Ratlam - 457 001 to transact the following 
businesses: 

1. To consider and adopt (a) the audited standalone financial statement of the Company for the financial year 
ended March 31, 2022and the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon; and (b) the audited 
consolidated financial statement of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2022 and the report of 
Auditors thereon and in this regard, to consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the 
following resolutions as Ordinary Resolutions.

a) “RESOLVED THAT the audited standalone financial statement of the Company for the financial year ended 
March 31, 2022 and the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon, as circulated to the members, 
be and are hereby considered and adopted.”

b) “RESOLVED THAT the audited consolidated financial statement of the Company for the financial year 
ended March 31, 2022 and the report of Auditors thereon, as circulated to the members, be and are hereby 
considered and adopted.”

2. To appoint Mrs. Renu Kataria (DIN 07751330), Non-executive Director, who retires by rotation and being 
eligible, offers herself for re-appointment and in this regard, to consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or 
without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution.

Explanation: Based on the terms of appointment, executive and non-executive directors are subject to 
retirement by rotation. Mrs. Renu Kataria (DIN 07751330), Non-executive Director who was appointed as 
Director for the current term, and is the longest-serving member on the Board, retires by rotation and, being 
eligible, seeks re-appointment. 

To the extent that Mrs. Renu Kataria (DIN 07751330), Non-executive Director is required to retire by rotation, 
she would need to be reappointed as such. Therefore, shareholders are requested to consider and if thought 
fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of Section 152 and other applicable provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013, Mrs. Renu Kataria (DIN 07751330), Non-executive Director, who retires by rotation at 
this meeting, be and is hereby re-appointed as such to the extent she requires to be retired by rotation.”

3. To declare a final dividend of Rupee 1.00 (Rupee One only) per equity share of Rupees 10.00 (Rupees Ten 
Only) each for the financial year ended on March 31, 2022 and in this regard, to consider and if thought fit, to 
pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution.

“RESOLVED THAT a dividend at the rate of Rupee 1.00 (Rupee One only) per equity share of Rupees 10.00 
(Rupees Ten Only) fully paid-up of the Company be and is hereby declared for the financial year ended on 
March 31, 2022 and the same be paid as recommended by the Board of Directors of the Company, out of the 
profits of the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2022”

ORDINARY BUSINESSES

Registered Office:
138, Chandani Chowk, Ratlam, 

Madhya Pradesh – 457 001

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

For, D. P. ABHUSHAN LIMITED

Place: Ratlam

Date:  September 7, 2022

Aashi Neema
Company Secretary

NOTICE OF 
TH5  ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
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Notes:

1. A Member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting (AGM) is entitled to appoint a proxy to 

attend and vote instead of himself/herself and the proxy need not be a Member of the Company.

A person can act as proxy on behalf of Members not exceeding 50 (fifty) and holding in the aggregate not 

more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company. In case a proxy is proposed to be appointed by a 

Member holding more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights, then such 

proxy shall not act as a proxy for any other person or shareholder.

The instrument appointing the proxy, duly completed, must be deposited at the Company’s registered office 

not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting (on or before Wednesday, September28, 

2022 at 05:00 P.M.). A proxy form for the AGM is enclosed. Proxies submitted on behalf of limited companies, 

societies etc., must be supported by appropriate resolutions / authority, as applicable.

During the period beginning 24 hours before the time fixed for the commencement of Meeting and ending 

with the conclusion of the Meeting, a Member would be entitled to inspect the proxies lodged at any time 

during the business hours of the company, provided that not less than three days of notice in writing is given 

to the Company.

2. The relevant details, pursuant to Regulations 36(3) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”) and Secretarial 

Standard II on General Meetings issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India, in respect of 

Directors seeking re-appointment at this Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) is also annexed.

3. Members/Proxies should bring their Attendance slip duly signed and completed for attending the meeting. 

The signature of the attendance slip should match with the signature(s) registered with the Company. 

Members holding shares in dematerialized form are requested to bring their Client ID and DP ID numbers for 

identification.

4. Corporate members intending to send their authorized representatives to attend the meeting are requested 

to send a certified copy of the board resolution authorizing their representative to attend and vote on their 

behalf at the meeting or to vote through remote e-voting. The said Resolution/Authorization shall be sent to 

the Scrutinizer by email through their registered email address to csanandlavingia@gmail.com with copies 

marked to the Company at cs@dpjewellers.com and to National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) at 

evoting@nsdl.co.in.

5. In case of joint holders attending the meeting together, only holder whose name appearing first will be 

entitled to vote.

6. The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will not be closed and the Members 

whose names are recorded in the Register of Members or in the Register of Beneficial Owners maintained 

by the Depositories as on the Cut-off date i.e. Friday, September 23, 2022, will be entitled to vote at the AGM.

7. The route map showing directions to reach the venue of the AGM is provided at the end of this Notice.

8. In line with the aforesaid Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circulars and SEBI Circular dated May 12, 2020 

read with Circular dated January 15, 2021, the Notice of AGM along with Annual Report 2021-22 is being sent 

only through electronic mode to those Members whose email addresses are registered with the Company/ 

Depositories. Member may note that Notice and Annual Report 2021-22 has been uploaded on the website 

of the Company at www.dpjewellers.com. The Notice can also be accessed from the websites of the Stock 

Exchange i.e. National Stock Exchange of India Limited at www.nseindia.com and the AGM Notice is also 

available on the website of NSDL i.e. www.evoting.nsdl.com.
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9. The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding, maintained under Section 
170 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Register of Contracts or Arrangements in which Directors are 
interested, maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013, will be available for inspection by the 
members at the AGM.

10. Members seeking any information with regard to the accounts or any matter to be placed at the AGM or 
who would like to ask questions or registered themselves as Speaker, are requested to write to the 
Company mentioning their name, demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at 
cs@dpjewellers.com on or before September 20, 2022 so as to enable the management to keep the 
information ready. The Company reserves the right to restrict the number of speakers depending on the 
availability of time for the AGM.

11. All documents specifically referred to in this Notice are opened for inspection at the registered office of the 
Company between 02.00 p.m. and 04.00 p.m. on all working days (except Saturdays, Sundays and 
Holidays) up to the date of AGM.

12. Members are requested to intimate changes, if any, pertaining to their name, postal address, email 
address, telephone/ mobile numbers, Permanent Account Number (PAN), mandates, nominations, power 
of attorney, bank details such as, name of the bank and branch details, bank account number, MICR code, 
IFSC code, etc., to their DPs in case the shares are held in electronic form and to BSPL in case the shares are 
held in physical form.

13. To prevent fraudulent transactions, members are advised to exercise due diligence and notify the Company 
of any change in address or demise of any member as soon as possible. Members are also advised not to 
leave their demat account(s) dormant for long period of time. Periodic statement of holdings should be 
obtained from the concerned Depository Participant and holdings should be verified.

14. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) has mandated the submission of Permanent Account 
Number (PAN) by every participant in securities market. Members holding shares in electronic form are, 
therefore, requested to submit the PAN to their depository participants with whom they are maintaining their 
demat accounts. Members holding shares in physical form can submit their PAN details to Bigshare 
Services Private Limited (“BSPL”).

15. Those shareholders who have not yet registered their e-mail address are requested to get their e-mail 
addresses submitted, by following the procedure given below;

(a) In case shares are held in physical mode, please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy of 
the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested 
scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to cs@dpjewellers.com. 

(b) In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 16 digit 
beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self-attested 
scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to cs@dpjewellers.com.

(c) Alternatively member may send an e-mail request to evoting@nsdl.co.in for obtaining User ID and 
Password by proving the details mentioned in Point (a) or (b) as the case may be.

(d) In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, 
Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account 
maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are required to update their 
mobile number and email ID correctly in their demat account in order to access e-Voting facility.

(e) It is clarified that for permanent submission of e-mail address, the shareholders are however requested to 
register their email address, in respect of electronic holdings with the depository through the concerned 
depository participants and in respect of physical holdings with the Company’s Registrar and Share 
Transfer Agent, Bigshare Services Private Limited (“BSPL”), having its office at 1st Floor, Bharat Tin Works 
Building, Opp. Vasant Oasis, Makwana Road, Marol, Andheri East, Mumbai – 400059 Maharashtra, India, 
by following the due procedure.
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(f) Those shareholders who have already registered their e-mail address are requested to keep their e-mail 

addresses validated with their depository participants / the Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer 

Agent, BSPL to enable servicing of notices / documents / annual Reports electronically to their e-mail 

address.

16. As per the provisions of Section 72 of the Act, the facility for making nomination is available for the Members 

in respect of the shares held by them. Members who have not yet registered their nomination are requested 

to register the same by submitting Form No. SH-13. Members can contact their DP in case the shares are 

held in electronic form and to BSPL in case the shares are held in physical form.

17. A Dividend of Rupee 1.00 (Rupee One only) per Equity Share (10.00%) has been recommended by the 

Board of Directors for the year ended March 31, 2022 for the approval of members at the ensuing AGM and 

if approved by members, it will be paid on or before October 29, 2022.

Members may note that the Income Tax Act, 1961, (“the IT Act”) as amended by the Finance Act, 2020, 

mandates that dividends paid or distributed by a Company after April 1, 2020 shall be taxable in the hands 

of members. The Company shall therefore be required to deduct tax at source (“TDS”) at the time of making 

the payment of final dividend. The Company had sent an email communication to all the members of the 

Company on August 24, 2022 with regard to deduction of tax on dividend as per the amendment 

introduced by the Finance Act, 2020 in the IT Act.

Said email communication contained the details of tax rates for various categories of shareholders 

(Resident Indian, Non-Resident Indian, FIIs, FPIs, etc.), the link to download various Blank Forms and 

separate link and email ID to upload the signed forms and various documents by the shareholders to 

enable the Company to determine the appropriate TDS / withholding tax rate applicable. The said facility 

to upload the documents/ sending documents through e-mail is open till September 27, 2022. 

Any communication received after September 27, 2022 will not be considered. For the information of the 

members, it is hereby clarified that no tax will be deducted on payment of dividend to the resident 

individual shareholders if the total dividend to be paid during the Financial Year does not exceed ̀  5,000/- 

or if an eligible resident member has provided a valid Declaration in Form 15G/Form 15H or other 

documents as may be applicable to different categories of members. The rate of TDS will vary depending 

on the residential status of the shareholder and documents registered with the Company. The Company will 

issue soft copy of the TDS Certificate to its shareholders through e-mail registered with the Company / RTA 

post payment of the dividend. 

The Shareholders will also be able to download the TDS details from the Income Tax Department’s website 

https://www.incometax.gov.in (refer Form 26AS). 

In case TDS is deducted at a higher rate in the absence of receipt of the aforementioned 

details/documents, an option is still available with the shareholder to file the Return of Income and claim an 

appropriate Refund. No claim shall lie against the Company for such taxes deducted. 

In the event of any Income Tax Demand (including interest, penalty, etc.) arising from any 

misrepresentation, inaccuracy or omission of information provided by the member/s, such member/s will 

be responsible to indemnify the Company and also, provide the Company with all information / documents 

and co-operation in any Assessment/Appellate proceedings before the Tax/Government Authorities. 

This communication is not exhaustive and does not purport to be a complete analysis or listing of all 

potential tax consequences in the matter of dividend payment. Members should consult their tax advisors 

for requisite action to be taken by them. If you are a member of the Company as on August 27, 2021and the 

dividend receivable by you is taxable under the IT Act, the Company shall be obligated to deduct taxes at 

source on the dividend payable to you as per the applicable provisions under the IT Act. 

18. The Company proposes to send documents, such as the Notice of the Annual General Meeting and Annual 

Report etc. henceforth to the Members in electronic form at the e-mail address provided by them and made 

available to the Company by the Depositories from time to time. The un-audited half-yearly and quarterly



 Financial Results of the Company are uploaded on the website of the Company.

19. PROCESS AND MANNER FOR MEMBERS OPTING FOR VOTING THROUGH ELECTRONIC MEANS:

i. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the Companies 

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing 

Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (as amended), and the Circulars issued by the 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs dated April 8, 2020, April 13, 2020, May 5, 2020 and SEBI Circular dated May 

12, 2020, the Company is providing facility to cast their vote electronically, through the remote e-voting 

services provided by National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL), on all the resolutions set forth in this 

Notice. The instructions for e-voting are given herein below. Resolution(s) passed by Members through 

remote e-voting and voting at the AGM is/are deemed to have been passed as if they have been passed at 

the AGM. For this purpose, the Company has entered into an agreement with NSDL, as the Authorised e-

voting agency for facilitating voting through electronic means. 

ii. There being no physical shareholders in the Company, the Register of members and share transfer books 

of the Company will not be closed. Members whose names are recorded in the Register of Members or in 

the Register of Beneficial Owners maintained by the Depositories as on the Cut-off date i.e. Friday, 

September 23, 2022, shall be entitled to avail the facility of remote e-voting. Any recipient of the Notice, who 

has no voting rights as on the Cut-off date, shall treat this Notice as intimation only.

iii. A person, whose name is recorded in the register of members or in the register of beneficial owners 

maintained by the depositories as on the cut-off date only shall be entitled to avail the facility of remote e-

voting as well as voting at the AGM through poll paper. The voting rights of members shall be in proportion 

to their shares of the paid up equity share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date i.e. Friday, 

September 23, 2022.

iv. The facility for voting through polling paper shall be made available at the AGM and the Members 

attending the AGM and holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off 

date being the day of Friday, September 23, 2022 and who have not already cast their vote by remote e-

voting, shall be able to exercise their right to vote at the AGM.

v. A person who has acquired the shares and has become a member of the Company after the dispatch of 

the Notice of the AGM and prior to the Cut-off date i.e. Friday, September 23, 2022, shall be entitled to 

exercise his/her vote either electronically i.e. remote e-voting or through poll paper on the date of the AGM. 

vi. The remote e-voting will commence on 9:00 A.M. on Tuesday, September 27, 2022 and will end on 5:00 P.M. 

on Thursday, September 29, 2022. During this period, the members of the Company holding shares as on 

the Cut-off date i.e. Friday, September 23, 2022 may cast their vote electronically. The members will not be 

able to cast their vote electronically beyond the date and time mentioned above and the remote e-voting 

module shall be disabled for voting by NSDL thereafter. 

vii. Once the vote on a resolution is cast by the member, he/she shall not be allowed to change it subsequently 

or cast the vote again. 

viii. The voting rights of the members shall be in proportion to their share in the paid up equity share capital of 

the Company as on the Cut-off date i.e. Friday, September 23, 2022. 

ix. The Board of Directors has appointed Mr. Anand Lavingia, Practicing Company Secretary (Membership 

No. ACS 26458 COP 11410) as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the remote e-voting process and voting at the 

AGM and in a fair and transparent manner.

x. The Chairman shall, at the AGM, at the end of discussion on the resolutions on which voting is to be held, 

allow voting with the assistance of scrutinizer, by use of polling paper for all those members who are 

present at the AGM but have not cast their votes by availing the remote e-voting facility.

xi. The Scrutinizer shall, after the conclusion of voting at the AGM, first count the votes cast at the AGM and 

thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting in the presence of at least two witnesses not in the
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 employment of the Company and shall make, not later than 48 hours of the conclusion of the AGM, a 
consolidated scrutinizer’s report of the total votes cast in favor or against, if any, to the Chairman or a 
person authorized by him in writing, who shall countersign the same and declare the result of the voting 
forthwith.

xii. The Results declared along with the report of the Scrutinizer shall be placed on the website of the Company 
www.dpjewellers.com and on the website of NSDL immediately after the declaration of result by the 
Chairman or a person authorized by him in writing. The results shall also be immediately forwarded to the 
National Stock Exchange of India Limited, Mumbai.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CASTING VOTES BY REMOTE
E-VOTING
The remote e-voting period begins on 9:00 A.M. on Tuesday, September 27, 2022 and will end on 5:00 P.M. on 

Thursday, September 29, 2022. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter.

How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system?

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are mentioned below:

Step 1.  Access to NSDL e-Voting system.

A) Login method for e-Voting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode:

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, 
Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account 
maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile 
number and email Id in their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility.

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below:

Individual 
Shareholders holding 
securities in demat 
mode with NSDL.

1. If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the e-Services 
website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 
https://eservices.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. 
Once the home page of e-Services is launched, click on the “Beneficial Owner” 
icon under “Login” which is available under “IDeAS” section. A new screen will 
open. You will have to enter your User ID and Password. After successful 
authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services. Click on “Access to e-
Voting” under e-Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click 
on options available against company name or e-Voting service provider - 
NSDL and you will be re-directed to NSDL e-Voting website for casting your vote 
during the remote e-Voting period. 

2. If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com. Select “Register Online for IDeAS” Portal or click at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp

3. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following 
URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a 
mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon 
“Login” which is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen 
will open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat 
account number held with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as 
shown on the screen. After successful authentication, you will be redirected to 
NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on options 
available against company name or e-Voting service provider - NSDL and you 
will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the 
remote e-Voting period.

Type of shareholders Login Method



4. Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL 
Mobile App “NSDL Speede” facility by scanning the 
QR code mentioned below for seamless voting 
experience.

Individual 
Shareholders holding 
securities in demat 
mode with CDSL

1. Existing users who have opted for Easi / Easiest, they can login through their 
user id and password. Option will be made available to reach e-Voting page 
without any further authentication. The URL for users to login to Easi / Easiest 
are https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or www.cdslindia.com and 
click on New System Myeasi.

2. After successful login of Easi/Easiest the user will be also able to see the E 
Voting Menu. The Menu will have links of e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL. 
Click on NSDL to cast your vote.

3. If the user is not  registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at 
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing demat 
Account Number and PAN No. from a link in www.cdslindia.com home page. 
The system will authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & 
Email as recorded in the demat Account. After successful authentication, user 
will be provided links for the respective ESP i.e. NSDL where the e-Voting is in 
progress

Type of shareholders Login Method

Individual 
Shareholders 
(holding securities 
in demat mode) 
login through their 
depository 
participants

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your 
Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility.  Once login, 
you will be able to see e-Voting option. Once you click on e-Voting option, you will 
be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, 
wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on options available against company 
name or e-Voting service provider-NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting 
website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining 
virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

B) Login Method for shareholders other than Individual shareholders holding securities in demat 

mode and shareholders holding securities in physical mode.

How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website?

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. 

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under 

‘Shareholder/Member’ section.

3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a Verification Code as 

shown on the screen.

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and 

Forget Password option available at above mentioned website

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to login 

through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL.

Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode with NSDL

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL 
helpdesk by sending a request at  evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll 
free no.: 1800 1020 990  and  1800 22 44 30

Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode with CDSL

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL 
helpdesk by sending a request at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or 
contact at 022- 23058738 or 022-23058542-43

Login type Helpdesk details
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Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at https://eservices.nsdl.com/ 

with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices after using your log-in credentials, click on e-

Voting and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote electronically.

4. Your User ID details are given below :

For Members who hold shares in demat 
account with NSDL.

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID
For example if your DP ID is In300*** and Client ID is 
12****** then your user ID is IN300***12******.

For Members who hold shares in demat 
account with CDSL.

16 Digit Beneficiary ID
For example if your Beneficiary ID is 12************** then 
your user ID is 12**************

For Members holding shares in Physical Form. EVEN Number followed by Folio Number registered with 
the company
For example if folio number is 001*** and EVEN is 101456 
then user ID is 101456001***

5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below:

a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can use your existing password to login and cast your vote.

b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the ‘initial password’ which 

was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial password’, you need to enter the ‘initial password’ 

and the system will force you to change your password.

c) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’?

i. If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your ‘initial password’ is 

communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email sent to you from NSDL from your mailbox. Open the 

email and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The password to open the .pdf file is your 8 

digit client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio number for shares held in 

physical form. The .pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ and your ‘initial password’.

ii. If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in process for those shareholders 

whose email ids are not registered.

6. If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “ Initial password” or have forgotten your password:

a) Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your demat account with NSDL or 

CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

b) Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option available on 

www.evoting.nsdl.com.

c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request at 

evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning your demat account number/folio number, your PAN, your name and your 

registered address etc.

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on the e-Voting 

system of NSDL.

7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the check box.

8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” button.

9. After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open.

Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat 
(NSDL or CDSL) or Physical Your User ID is:



Step 2.   Cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system.

How to cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system?

1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which you are holding 
shares and whose voting cycle is in active status.

2. Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Voting period.

3. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens.

4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number of shares for 
which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when prompted.

5. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.

6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the confirmation 
page.

7. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

GENERAL GUIDELINES FOR SHAREHOLDERS

1. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned copy 
(PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with attested specimen signature of 
the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to 
csanandlavingia@gmail.com with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in.

2. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep 
your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts to 
key in the correct password. In such an event, you will need to go through the “Forgot User 
Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset Password?” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset 
the password.

3. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders and e-voting 
user manual for Shareholders available at the download section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on toll free 
no.: 1800 1020 990  and  1800 22 44 30  or send a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in.
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Disclosure under Regulation 36 (3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2015 and Secretarial Standards-II issued by ICSI for Item No. 2:

Name Mrs. Renu Kataria

Date of Birth August 22, 1974

Qualification Bachelor of Science

Experience - Expertise in specific functional She is having 23 years of experience in Jewellery
areas - Job profile and suitability Industry. She is wife of our Promoter, Mr. Sanjay 

Kataria. She was appointed as Non-Executive 
Director vide Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held 
on June 20, 2017.

No. of Shares held as on March 31, 2022 1259230 Equity Shares

Terms & Conditions There is no change or modifications in the Terms and 
Conditions already approved by the Board and 
Shareholders.

Remuneration Last Drawn Not applicable

Remuneration sought to be paid Not applicable

Number of Board Meetings attended during 11 out of 11
the Financial Year 2021-22

Date of Original Appointment June 20, 2017

Date of Appointment in current terms June 20, 2017

Directorships held in public companies including D. P. Abhushan Limited
deemed public companies*

Names of listed entities in which the person holds  D. P. Abhushan Limited
the directorship

Names of listed entities from which the person Nil
has resigned in the past three years

Memberships / Chairmanships of committees Nil
of public companies**

Inter-se Relationship with other Directors. Sister in Law of Mr. Santosh Kataria and Mr. Anil 
Katari

* Excluding Section 8 and Foreign Companies.

** Includes only Audit Committee and Stakeholders’ 
Relationship Committee.
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Day and Date: Friday, September 30, 2022

Time: 05:00 P.M. 

Venue: Hotel Balaji, Central Sailana Road, Near Amrit Garden, 

Opposite GTB Academy School, Barbad Mandir, Ratlam - 457 001, 

Madhya Pradesh

Hotel Balaji 
Central
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Regd. Folio No./DP Id No.*/Client Id No.* 

(*Applicable for investor holding shares in electronic form.)

No. of Shares held

Name and Address of the First Shareholder 

(IN BLOCK LETTERS) 

Name of the Joint holder (if any)

ATTENDANCE SLIP

I/we hereby record my/our presence at the fifth Annual General Meeting of Members of D. P. Abhushan Limited held on Friday, September 
30, 2022 at 05.00 P.M. at Hotel Balaji, Central Sailana Road, Near Amrit Garden, Opposite GTB Academy School, Barbad Mandir, Ratlam - 
457 001, Madhya Pradesh.

Member’s/Proxy’s Name in Block Letters Member’s/Proxy’s Signature
Notes: Please fill up this attendance slip and hand it over at the entrance of the venue of meeting. 

Please tear here

PROXY FORM
(Form No. MGT-11 - Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 Rules made thereunder)

Name of the member(s)

Registered Address

E-Mail Id

Folio No/Client Id

I/We, being the member (s) of ................................................. shares of the above named company, hereby appoint

1. Name: ...........................................................................................................................................................................................

Address: .......................................................................................................................................................................................

E-mail Id: ...........................................................................................Signature:  .......................................... or failing him

2. Name: ...........................................................................................................................................................................................

Address: .......................................................................................................................................................................................

E-mail Id: ...........................................................................................Signature:  .......................................... or failing him

3. Name: ...........................................................................................................................................................................................

Address: .......................................................................................................................................................................................

E-mail Id: ...........................................................................................Signature:  .......................................... or failing him

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at fifthAnnual General Meeting of Members of D. P. 
Abhushan Limited to be held on Friday, September30, 2022 at 05.00 P.M. at Hotel Balaji, Central Sailana Road, Near Amrit Garden, 
Opposite GTB Academy School, Barbad Mandir, Ratlam - 457 001, Madhya Pradesh and/or any adjournment thereof in respect of such 
resolutions as are indicated below:

Resolution 
No.

Resolution Vote (Optional see Note 2)
(Please mention no. of shares

For Against Abstain

Ordinary businesses

1

To consider and adopt (a) the audited standalone financial statement of 
the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2022 and the reports 
of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon; and (b) the audited 
consolidated financial statement of the Company for the financial year 
ended March 31, 2022 and the report of Auditors thereon

2
Appointment of Mrs. Renu Kataria (DIN 07751330), Non-executive Director, 
who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers herself for re-appointment

3
To declare a final dividend of Rupee 1.00 (Rupee One only) per equity 
share of Rupees 10.00 (Rupees Ten Only) each for the financial year ended 
on March 31, 2022

Signed this.............................. day of .................. 2022

Signature of shareholder Signature of Proxy holder(s)

Affix Revenue
Stamp of not 

less than 
`1

D. P. ABHUSHAN LIMITED



Dear Shareholders,

The Board of Directors hereby submits the report of the business and operations of D. P. Abhushan Limited (“the 

Company”), along with the audited financial statements, for the financial year ended March 31, 2022. 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS (` In Lakhs)

Particulars F.Y. 2021-22 F.Y. 2020-21 F.Y. 2021-22 F.Y. 2020-21

Total Income 1,73,169.99 1,21,828.36 1,73,169.99 1,21,828.36

Profit before Depreciation, Finance Cost and Tax 7,516.75 5,143.56 7,535.48 5,137.54

Profit Before Tax 5,460.37 3,669.55 5,469.71 3,663.53

Profit after Tax 4,043.54 2,746.21 4,053.44 2,740.19

Revenue From Operations 1,73,137.99 1,21,816.90 1,73,137.99 1,21,816.90

Other Income 32.00 11.46 32.00 11.46

Less: Total Expenses before Depreciation, 

Finance Cost and Tax 1,65,653.24 1,16,684.80 1,65,634.51 1,16,690.82

Less: Depreciation 537.03 394.70 546.34 394.70

Less: Finance Cost 1,519.35 1,079.31 1,519.43 1,079.31

Less: Current Tax 1,396.56 919.69 1,396.56 919.69

Less: Deferred tax Liability (Asset) 20.27 3.65 19.71 3.65

The Journey of D P Jewellers began way back in 1940, that is, even before independence, within the small city of 

Madhya Pradesh.It got converted into partnership firm in 2003, and then came into existence in 2017, as in the 

form of a company. In 2017, the company got listed on the NSE platform, and in 2020, it got listed on NSE main 

board.

With passage of time, the brand name “D. P. Jewellers” has achieved immense growth. Today, the company has 

grown into a large central Indian jewellery retail chain with stores present at cities like Ratlam, Indore, Udaipur, 

Bhopal, Ujjain, Bhilwara, Kota & Banswara.The main flagship store of the company is situated in Indore.

The basic pillars of values and quality, reasonableness and transparency run through generations and the 

company. The current management is being led by fourth generation of Kataria family. The fourth generation, 

working tirelessly to stand up to the trust of millions of customers from across the world. The company is 

associated with more than 25 Lacs families, and is proudly run by present generation. The Company has a 

footfall to conversion ratio of 85 to 95%, which is highest in its field.

The management of the company is taking adequate steps to improve and maximize the overall margins, as 

the company has all its tools established in the central level of India.

The company expects same status for sale growth of around 22% for upcoming years.

The Company’s vision is to be a market leader in gems and jewellery sector in Tier-2 /3 cities of central India. It 

aims to become central India's most trusted jewellery plan to create wealth for all the stakeholders by building 

a business based on honest and transparent approach towards the customers and contribution, contributing to 

the society at large.

STANDALONE CONSOLIDATED

BOARD OF DIRECTOR’S REPORT
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The company is planning to expand by establishing 13 more stores and achieve revenue of 3000 Crores by the 

end of the financial year 2025.

DIVIDEND

TRANSFER TO GENERAL RESERVE

Your Directors recommended a final dividend of `1.00/- per equity share on the Company’s 22254850 equity 

shares of `10.00 each (10%) for the financial year 2021-22 (previous year Nil), in its meeting held on May 24, 

2022. 

The final dividend on the equity shares, if declared as above, would entail a total outflow of ̀  222.5485 lakh. The 

dividend payment is subject to approval of members at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. The dividend 

payout is in accordance with the Dividend Distribution Policy of the Company. 

The Dividend Distribution Policy of the Company can be accessed at https://www.dpjewellers.com/la-

assets/dp/pdf/Dividend%20Distribution%20Policy.pdf. 

Your Directors do not propose transfer of any amount to the General Reserves. Full amount of net profit are 

carried to reserve & Surplus account of the Company. 

On Standalone Basis

The standalone revenue for financial year 2021-22 

stood at `1,73,137.99 Lakh as compared to 

`1,21,816.90 Lakh in previous financial year 2020-

21. The standalone net profit after tax 

for the financial year 2021-22 

was stood at ` 4,043.54 

Lakh as compared to 

`2,746.21 Lakh for the 

previous financial year 

2020-21.

The Company has reported record 

growth of 47.24% in standalone net profit after 

tax and 42.13% in revenue for the full financial year 

2021-22 as compared to the previous financial year 

2020-21.

On Consolidated Basis

The consolidated revenue for financial year 2021-22 

stood at ̀  1,73,137.99 Lakh as compared to ̀ 121,816.90 

Lakh in previous financial year 2020-21. The 

consolidated net profit after tax for the financial year 

2021-22 was stood at ̀ 4,053.44 Lakh as compared to ̀  

2,740.19 Lakh for the previous financial year 2020-21.

The Company has reported record growth of 47.93% in 

consolidated net profit after tax and 42.13% in revenue 

for the full financial year 2021-22 as compared to the 

previous financial year 2020-21.

This robust performance is the result of surge in 

wedding ceremonies post pandemic alongwith 

increase in festival buying. In line with its continuous 

expansion plan, the Company has opened new show 

room at Banswara during the last quarter of F.Y. 21-22. 

The company is planning to expand its Ratlam 

Showroom by many fold from its current size.
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

FUTURE OUTLOOK
As Per Report of ICRA rating released on May 2022, it forecasts that Gold Jewellery demand in financial year 

2023 will be grown by 11% year on year, but we estimate that DP Abhushan Limited will be at least grow by 20% 

year on year.

Apart from this, rise in inflation is all over the world economy with the inflation rising, there will be surge in gold 

demand, and gold is the most efficient hedge against inflation of economy.

Overall the Jewellery Retail outlook to be very promising In India. Retail market and consumer performance is 

moving shifted from unorganized sector to organize sectors.



CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS

SHARE CAPITAL

AUTHORIZED CAPITAL

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED & PAID-UP CAPITAL 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

During the year, your Company has not changed its business or object and continues to be in the same line of 

business as per main object of the Company.

During the year under review, there was no change in the authorized and paid-up share capital of the Company:

The Authorized Capital of the Company, as at closure of financial year 2021-22, was ̀ 2,285.00 Lakh divided into 

22850000 Equity Shares of ̀ 10/- each.

Issued, Subscribed & Paid-up Capital of the Company, as at closure of financial year 2021-22,was ` 2,225.485 

divided into 22254850 Equity Shares of ̀  10/- each.

The entire Paid-up Equity share Capital of the Company is listed at National Stock Exchange of India Limited.

FIFTH ANNUAL REPORT 2021-22

Constitution of Board

The Board of the Company comprises seven 

directors out of which two are Promoter 

Executive Directors and one is Promoter Non-

Executive Director and four are Non-Promoter 

Non-Executive Independent Directors. The 

Constitution of the Board of Directors and other 

disclosures related to the Board of Directors 

are given in the Report on Corporate 

Governance. 

Disclosure by Directors

The Directors on the Board have submitted notice of 

interest under Section 184(1) i.e. in Form MBP 1, 

intimation under Section 164(2) i.e. in Form DIR 8 and 

declaration as to compliance with the Code of Conduct 

of the Company. None of the Directors of the Company is 

disqualified for being appointed as Director as specified 

in Section 164 (2) of the Companies Act, 2013.
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Board Meeting

Regular meetings of the Board are held, inter-alia, to review the financial results of the Company. Additional 

Board meetings are convened, as and when required, to discuss and decide on various business policies, 

strategies and other businesses. The Board meetings are generally held at registered office of the Company.

During the year under review, Board of Directors of the Company met 11 (Eleven) times, viz June 9, 2021; July 

29, 2021; August 5, 2021; September 3, 2021; October 4, 2021; October 25, 2021; December 25, 2021; January 

20, 2022; January 25, 2022; February 7, 2022 and March 14, 2022.

The details of attendance of each Director at the Board Meetings and Annual General Meeting are given in 

the Report on Corporate Governance.



In terms of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under and Listing Regulations, the 
Company has four Non-Promoter Non-Executive Independent Directors amongst which one is woman 
independent director. In the opinion of the Board of Directors, all the four Independent Directors of the 
Company meet all the criteria mandated by Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there 
under and Listing Regulations and they are Independent of Management.

A separate meeting of Independent Directors was held on March 14, 2022 to review the performance of Non-
Independent Directors and Board as whole and performance of Chairperson of the Company including 
assessment of quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between Company management and 
Board that is necessary for the board of directors to effectively and reasonably perform their duties. The 
meeting was attended by all the Independent Directors of the Company. 

Vide Special resolution passed by the Members at the Extra Ordinary General Meeting of the Company on May 
13, 2022, Mr. Mukesh Kumar Jain (DIN: 00653837) has been re-appointed as Non-Executive Independent 
Director of the Company to hold office for a second term of 5 (five) consecutive years, that is, up to July14, 2027 
and Ms. Apurva Chordia (DIN: 09575780) was appointed as Non-Executive Independent Director of the 
Company to hold office for a term of 5 (five) consecutive years with effect from April 19, 2022 till April 18, 2027.

The terms and conditions of appointment of Independent Directors and Code for Independent Director are 
incorporated on the websi te of the Company at ht tps://www.dpjewel lers .com/la-
assets/dp/pdf/TERMS%20AND%20CONDITION%20OF%20APPOINTMENT%20OF%20INDEPENDENT%20DIRECT
ORS.pdf.

The Company has received a declaration from the Independent Directors of the Company under Section 149(7) 
of Companies Act, 2013 and 16(1)(b) of Listing Regulations confirming that they meet criteria of Independence 
as per relevant provisions of Companies Act, 2013 for financial year 2022-23. The Board of Directors of the 
Company has taken on record the said declarations and confirmation as submitted by the Independent 
Directors after undertaking due assessment of the veracity of the same. In the opinion of the Board, they fulfill 
the conditions for Independent Directors and are independent of the Management. All the Independent 
Directors have confirmed that they are in compliance with Rules 6(1) and 6(2) of the Companies (Appointment 
and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, with respect to registration with the data bank of Independent 
Directors maintained by the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs.

None of Independent Directors have resigned during the year.

During the year under review, Mr. Anil Kataria was appointed as a Whole time Director of the Company to hold 
the office for a period of five years w.e.f. January 26, 2022.Further, the designation of Mr. Santosh Kataria was 
changed and he was appointed as Chairman and Managing Director of the Company for a period of five years 
w.e.f. January 26, 2022. The Members of the Company, in their Extra ordinary General Meeting held on May 13, 
2022, approved their appointments as Whole time Director and Chairman and Managing Director of the 
Company.

Moreover, Mr. Vikas Kataria, who was serving as Chairman and Managing Director of the Company, had 
tendered his resignation w.e.f. January 26, 2022. The Board placed its deep appreciation to him for taking the 
Company new heights during his tenure.

In accordance with the provisions of the Articles of Association and Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, 
Mrs. Renu Kataria Non-executive Director of the Company retires by rotation at the ensuing annual general 
meeting. She, being eligible, has offered herself for re-appointment as such and seeks re-appointment. The 
Board of Directors recommends her appointment on the Board. 

The relevant details, as required under Regulation 36 (3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”) and Secretarial Standards-II issued by ICSI, of the 
person seeking re-appointment as Directors are annexed to the Notice convening the fifth annual general 
meeting.

INFORMATION ON DIRECTORATE

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS
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KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

During the year 2021-22, the Company had Mr. Vikas Kataria as Chairman and Managing Director (up to 
January 25, 2022), Ms. Versha Gang as Company Secretary and Compliance Officer (up to February 7, 2022), 
Mr. Santosh Kataria, Whole Time Director (up to January 25, 2022), Mr. Amit Bandi, Chief Executive Officer (up to 
December 5, 2021), Mr. Santosh Kataria, Chairman and Managing Director (w.e.f. January 26, 2022), Mr. Anil 
Kataria, Whole Time Director (w.e.f. January 26, 2022), Ms. Aashi Neema as Company Secretary and 
Compliance Officer (w.e.f. February 8, 2022) who were acting as Key Managerial Personnel at different 
positions. Mr. Vijesh Kumar Kasera was serving as Chief Financial Officer throughout financial year 2021-22.

The Board placed its appreciation to all Key Managerial Personnel for serving the Company during their tenure.

The Board of Directors has carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance, board committees and 
individual directors pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 in the following manners; 

The performance of the board was evaluated by the board, after seeking inputs from all the directors, on 
the basis of the criteria such as the board composition and structure, effectiveness of board processes, 
information and functioning etc. 

The performance of the committees was evaluated by the board after seeking inputs from the committee 
members on the basis of the criteria such as the composition of committees, effectiveness of committee 
meetings, etc.

The board and the nomination and remuneration committee reviewed the performance of the individual 
directors on the basis of the criteria such as the contribution of the individual director to the board and 
committee meetings like preparedness on the issues to be discussed, meaningful and constructive 
contribution and inputs in meetings, etc.  

In addition, the chairman was also evaluated on the key aspects of his role.

Separate meeting of independent directors was held to evaluate the performance of non-independent 
directors, performance of the board as a whole and performance of the chairman, taking into account the 
views of executive directors and non-executive directors. Performance evaluation of independent directors was 
done by the entire board, excluding the independent director being evaluated.

Pursuant to section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the board of directors, to the best of their knowledge and 
ability, confirm that:

a) In preparation of annual accounts for the year ended March 31, 2022, the applicable accounting standards 
have been followed and that no material departures have been made from the same;

b) The Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments 
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the 
Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit or loss of the Company for that year;

c) The Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, for safeguarding the assets of the Company 
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) The Directors had prepared the annual accounts for the year ended March 31, 2022 on going concern basis.

e) The Directors had laid down the internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such 
Internal Financial Controls are adequate and were operating effectively; and

f) The Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws 
and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

COMMITTEES OF BOARD
The Board of Directors, in line with the requirement of the act, has formed various committees, details of 

which are given hereunder.

  1.  Audit Committee 2.   Nomination and Remuneration Committee

  3.  Stakeholders Relationship Committee 4.   Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

  5. Risk Management Committee.

23

FIFTH ANNUAL REPORT 2021-22



D.P. ABHUSHAN LIMITEDD.P. ABHUSHAN LIMITED

The composition of Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Stakeholders Relationship 

Committee and Risk Management Committee, their respective role and responsibility are detailed in the 

Report on Corporate Governance annexed to this Report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE

VIGIL MECHANISM

The Company has formed Audit Committee in line with the provisions Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 
and Regulation 18 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

As at March 31, 2022, the Audit Committee comprised Mr. Sanskar Kothari (Non-Executive Independent 
Director) as Chairperson and Mr. Mukesh Kumar Jain (Non-Executive Independent Director), Mr. Deepak Gadia 
(Non-Executive Independent Director) and Mr. Santosh Kataria (Chairman and Managing Director) as 
Members. 

Mr. Santosh Kataria (Chairman and Managing Director) was admitted as member w.e.f. January 26,2022. 

Recommendations of Audit Committee, wherever/whenever given, have been accepted by the Board of 
Directors.

Pursuant to Section 135 of Companies Act, 2013, the Company has constituted Corporate Social Responsibility 
Committee (“the CSR Committee”) with object to recommend the Board a Policy on Corporate Social 
Responsibility and amount to be spent towards Corporate Social Responsibility. 

As at March 31, 2022, the CSR Committee comprised Mr. Sanskar Kothari (Non-Executive Independent Director) 
as Chairman and Mr. Mukesh Jain (Non-Executive Independent Director) and Mr. Santosh Kataria (Chairman 
and Managing Director) as Members of the Committee.

The CSR Committee is responsible for indicating the activities to be undertaken by the Company, monitoring the 
implementation of the framework of the CSR Policy and recommending the amount to be spent on CSR 
activities. 

Mr. Santosh Kataria (Chairman and Managing Director) was admitted as member w.e.f. January 26, 2022. 

During the year under review, CSR Committee Meetings were held on September3, 2021; October 25, 2021and 
March 14, 2022 in which requisite quorum were present. The meetings were held to review and approve the 
expenditure incurred by the Company towards CSR activities.

The CSR Policy may be accessed at the web link https://www.dpjewellers.com/la-
assets/dp/pdf/CSR_Policy.pdf. The Annual Report on CSR activities in prescribed format is annexed as an 

Annexure – A.

The Company has a Vigil Mechanism wherein the directors/ employees/ associates can approach the 
Management of the Company (Audit Committee in case where the concern involves the Senior Management) 
and make protective disclosures to the Management about unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud or 
violation of the Company’s Code of Conduct, suspected leak of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information. The 
Vigil Mechanism requires every employee to promptly report to the Management any actual or possible 
violation of the Code or an event he/she becomes aware of that could affect the business or reputation of the 
Company. The disclosure reported are addressed in the manner and within the time frames prescribed in the 
policy. A mechanism is in place whereby any employee of the Company has access to the Chairman of the 
Audit Committee to report any concerns. 

No person has been denied access to the Audit Committee of the Board. The Policy on Vigil Mechanism is 
ava i lab le  on  the  webs i te  o f  the  Company  a t  h t tps : / /www.dp jewe l le r s . com/ la -
assets/dp/pdf/Vigil_Mechanism.pdf.
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NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

PUBLIC DEPOSIT

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES, INVESTMENTS & SECURITY

WEB LINK OF ANNUAL RETURN

RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTION

Nomination and Remuneration Policy in the Company is designed to create a high performance culture. It 

enables the Company to attract motivated and retained manpower in competitive market, and to harmonize 

the aspirations of human resources consistent with the goals of the Company. The Company pays remuneration 

by way of salary to its Executive Directors and Key Managerial Personnel. Annual increments are decided by the 

Nomination and Remuneration Committee within the salary scale approved by the members and are effective 

from April 1, of each year.

The Nomination and Remuneration Policy, as adopted by the Board of Directors, is placed on the website of the 

Company at https://www.dpjewellers.com/la-assets/dp/pdf/Nomination_Remuneration_Policy.pdf.

The details of remuneration/sitting fees paid during the financial year 2021-22 to Executive Directors/Directors 

of the Company is provided in Report on Corporate Governance which is the part of this report.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from Shareholders and Public falling within the ambit of Section 

73 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under. Hence, the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of 

India & the Provision of Section 73 to 76 of the Company Act, 2013 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and 

the Rules there under are not applicable.

Details of Loans, Guarantees, Investments and Security covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 are given in the notes to the Financial Statement.

The link to access the Annual Return is 

https://www.dpjewellers.com/la-assets/dp/pdf/Annual_Report/Annual%20return%202021-22.pdf

There are no materially significant Related Party Transactions made by the Company with Promoters, Directors, 

Key Managerial Personnel which may have a potential conflict with the interests of the Company at large. All 

Related Party Transactions are placed before the Audit Committee and the Board for approval, if required. Prior 

omnibus approval of the Audit Committee is obtained for the transactions which are of a foreseen and repetitive 

in nature. 

The Company has developed an Internal Guide on Related Party Transactions Manual and prescribed 

Standard Operating Procedures for the purpose of identification and monitoring of such transactions. The Policy 

on Related Party Transactions as approved by the Board is uploaded on the Company’s website at 

https://www.dpjewellers.com/la-assets/dp/pdf/Policy_on_related_party_transaction.pdf. 

Particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties referred to in Section 188(1) of the Companies Act, 

2013, in the prescribed Form AOC-2 is annexed to this Report as Annexure – B.

There was no contracts, arrangements or transactions which was executed not in ordinary course of business 

and/or at arm’s length basis.
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In terms of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Cost records and audits) Rules, 2014, 

the Company is not required to maintain the cost records.

PARTICULAR OF EMPLOYEES
The ratio of the remuneration of each executive director to the median of employees’ remuneration as per 

Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and 

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is annexed to this Report as Annexure – C.

The statement containing names of top ten employees in terms of remuneration drawn and the particulars of 

employees as required under Section 197(12) of the Act read with Rule 5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, is provided in a separate annexure 

forming part of this report. Further, the report and the accounts are being sent to the Members excluding the 

aforesaid annexure. In terms of Section 136 of the Act, the said annexure is open for inspection in electronic 

form. Any Member interested in obtaining a copy of the same may write to the Company Secretary.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT
There have been no material changes and commitments for the likely 

impact affecting financial position between end of the financial year and 

the date of the report. However, during the financial year 2021-22, the 

Company has made disinvestment in its wholly owned subsidiary - 

D.P. Jewelline Limited (Formerly known as Gatha Trendz 

Limited) w.e.f January 25, 2022 and sale entire 

stake of D.P. Jewelline Limited (Formerly known 

as Gatha Trendz Limited) to related 

parties. Since, the D.P. Jewelline 

Limited (Formerly known as 

Gatha Trendz Limited) 

was not material 

subsidiary of the Company, 

the approval from Shareholders 

was not required.

SIGNIFICANT 
AND MATERIAL 
ORDERS
There are no significant and material orders passed 

by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the 

going concern status and Company’s operations in 

future.

MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS

D.P.Jewelline Limited (Formerly known as 

Gatha Trendz Limited) was incorporated as 

wholly owned subsidiary of the Company for carrying out 

business of jewellery on e-commerce platform to cater the 

small ticket size of jewellery and gift products made out of gold, 

diamond and silver on November 25, 2020.The Company has sold 

its entire holding to related parties at a price arrived at in 

accordance with the applicable laws. Effective from January 26, 

2022, the Company does not have any subsidiaries / joint venture / 

associate company. In accordance with Indian Accounting Standard, 

Financial Statement of D.P.Jewelline Limited (Formerly known as 

Gatha Trendz Limited) has been consolidated for the period 

April 1, 2021 to January 25, 2022 (Sale Date) and presented 

in the Consolidated Financial Statement of the Company. 

D.P.Jewelline Limited has not declared 

any dividend for Financial Year 2021-22. 

The financial performance of D.P. Jewelline

 Limited (Formerly known as 

Gatha Trendz Limited), in prescribed 

Form AOC-1, is annexed to 

this Report as Annexure – D.

SUBSIDIARIES/
JOINT VENTURE/

ASSOCIATE COMPANY

SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT 
WORKPLACE
To foster a positive workplace environment, free from harassment of any nature, 

we have institutionalized the Anti-Sexual Harassment Initiative (ASHI) framework, 

through which we address complaints of sexual harassment at the all workplaces 

of the Company. 
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A. Conservation of energy –

i.) The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy: 

No major steps have been taken by the Company. However, the Company continues its endeavor to 

improve energy conservation and utilization.

ii.) The steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate sources of energy: 

The Company has continued its focus on energy conservation efforts through up-gradation of process with 

new technology. The technology installed by the Company has provided better results in quality and 

production and also reducing the overall cost of production and maintenance which effect production 

scheduling and various energy saving initiatives in all areas of production. However, the Company has not 

installed any alternate source of energy running on renewable energy source.

iii.) The capital investment on energy conservation equipment: Nil

B. Technology absorption –

i.) The effort made towards technology absorption

Your Company has been very thoughtful in installing new technology to reduce the production cost, improve 

yield, enhance product endurance and strengthen finish. However, no new technology has been installed 

by the Company during the year and all existing technology has been fully absorbed.

ii.) The benefit derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development or import substitution

The Company had installed such technology that improve productivity, quality and reduction in manual 

intervention and to enhance the quality and productivity. Improvement in manufacturing process helped the 

Company in managing production scheduling; & better & faster servicing of product for domestic as well as 

global market.

iii.) in case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from the beginning of the 

financial year)

a. The details of technology imported: Not Applicable.

b. The year of import: Not Applicable

c. Whether the technology has been fully absorbed: Not Applicable

iv.) If not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place, and the reasons thereof: 

Not Applicable

v.) The expenditure incurred on Research and Development: Nil

ENERGY CONSERVATION, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND 
FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

C. Foreign Exchange Earnings & Expenditure -

i.) Details of Foreign Exchange Earnings

Particulars

1.   Exports of Gold Jewellary on CIF Basis   - 285.33

F.Y. 2021-22

(` in Lakh)

Sr. No. F.Y. 2020-21
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Our policy assures discretion and guarantees non-retaliation to complainants. We follow a gender-neutral 

approach in handling complaints of sexual harassment and we are compliant with the law of the land 

where we operate. The Company has setup an Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) for redressal of 

Complaints.

During the financial year 2021-22, the Company has received Nil complaints on sexual harassment, out of 

which Nil complaints have been disposed off and Nil complaints remained pending as of March 31, 2022.
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Particulars

1. Royalty Expenses   - 15.67

F.Y. 2021-22Sr. No. F.Y. 2020-21

ii.) Details of Foreign Exchange Expenditure

RISK MANAGEMENT

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

STATUTORY AUDITOR AND THEIR REPORT

A well-defined risk management mechanism covering the risk mapping and trend analysis, risk exposure, 

potential impact and risk mitigation process is in place. The objective of the mechanism is to minimize the 

impact of risks identified and taking advance actions to mitigate it. The mechanism works on the principles of 

probability of occurrence and impact, if triggered. A detailed exercise is being carried out to identify, evaluate, 

monitor and manage both business and non-business risks.

The Company, during the year has reviewed its Internal Financial Control systems and has continually 

contributed to establishment of more robust and effective internal financial control framework, prescribed 

under the ambit of Section 134(5) of the Act. The preparation and presentation of the financial statements is 

pursuant to the control criteria defined considering the essential components of Internal Control - as stated in 

the “Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting” issued by the Institute of 

Chartered Accountants of India. The control criteria ensures the orderly and efficient conduct of the Company’s 

business, including adherence to its policies, safeguarding of its assets, prevention and detection of frauds and 

errors, accuracy and completeness of the accounting records and the timely preparation of reliable financial 

information. Based on the assessment carried out by the Management and the evaluation of the results of the 

assessment, the Board of Directors are of the opinion that the Company has adequate Internal Financial 

Controls system that is operating effectively as at March 31, 2022. There were no instances of fraud which 

necessitates reporting of material misstatement to the Company’s operations. There has been no 

communication from regulatory agencies concerning non-compliance with or deficiencies in financial reporting 

practices.

Your Company strives to incorporate the appropriate standards for corporate governance. As stipulated in 

Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, Report on 

Corporate Governance and Certificate of the Practicing Company Secretary with regards to compliance with 

the conditions of Corporate Governance is annexed to the Board’s Report as Annexure – E.

In terms of Regulation 34, and Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015 a review of the performance of the Company, for the year under review, Management 

Discussion and Analysis Report, is presented in a separate section forming part of this Annual Report.

M/s. Jeevan Jagetiya & Co., Chartered Accountants, Ahmedabad (FRN: 121335W) were appointed as Statutory 

Auditors of the Company at the first Annual General Meeting held on September 21, 2018, for a term of five 

consecutive years i.e. up to Sixth Annual General Meeting to be held in the year 2023.

The Notes to the financial statements referred in the Auditors Report are self-explanatory and therefore do not 

call for any comments under Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Auditors’ Report does not contain any 

qualification, reservation or adverse remark. The Auditors’ Report is enclosed with the financial statements in 

this Annual Report.

(` in Lakh)
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The Company has appointed Mr. Anand Lavingia, Practicing Company Secretary, to conduct the secretarial 
audit of the Company for the financial year 2021-22, as required under Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 
and Rules thereunder. The Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year 2021-22 is annexed to this report as an 
Annexure – F-1. 

The Annual Secretarial Compliance Report for the financial year ended March 31, 2022 issued by Mr. Anand 
Lavingia, in relation to compliance of all applicable SEBI Regulations/ Circulars/Guidelines issued thereunder, 
pursuant to requirement of Regulation 24A of the Listing Regulations read with Circular no. 
CIR/CFD/CMD1/27/2019 dated 8th February, 2019 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) 
thereof for the time being in force) is annexed to this report as an Annexure – F-2. 

The above reports contain remark regarding 1) transactions in the securities of the Company by few Designated 
Persons and their relative during the closure of Trading Window and also initiated contra transactions in 
violation of Code of Internal Procedures and Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading in Securities of D. P. 
Abhushan Limited. There was also a disclosures lapse by the relative of one of the Designated Person.

Your Directors submit that the Company had already imposed penalty of Rupees 1,60,471/- and after collecting 
the same from Designated Persons and their relative, deposited it to the SEBI – IPEF as per SEBI Circular No. 
SEBI/HO/ISD/ISD/CIR/P/2020/135 dated July 23, 2020.

The Auditors of the Company have not reported any fraud as specified under Section 143(12) of the Companies 
Act, 2013.

The assets of your Company have been adequately insured.

There are no proceedings initiated/pending against your Company under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy 
Code, 2016 which materially impact the Business of the Company.

As per Regulation 46 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, the Company has maintained a functional website 
namely “www.dpjewellers.com” containing basic information about the Company. The website of the Company 
is also containing information like Policies, Shareholding Pattern, Financial Results and information of the 
designated officials of the Company who are responsible for assisting and handling investor grievances for the 
benefit of all stakeholders of the Company, etc.

The company has prepared the opening balance sheet as per Ind AS as of 1 April 2019 (the transition date) by 
recognizing all assets and liabilities whose recognition is required by Ind AS, not recognizing items of assets or 
liabilities which are not permitted by Ind AS, by reclassifying items from previous GAAP to Ind AS as required 
under Ind AS, and applying Ind AS in measurement of recognized assets and liabilities.

There were no significant reconciliation items between cash flows prepared under previous GAAP and those 
prepared under Ind AS.

The applicable Secretarial Standards, i.e. SS-1 and SS-2, relating to ‘Meetings of the Board of Directors’ and 
‘General Meetings’, respectively, have been duly complied by your Company.

REPORTING OF FRAUD

INSURANCE

PROCEEDINGS INITIATED/PENDING AGAINST YOUR COMPANY UNDER 
THE INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016

WEBSITE

ADOPTION OF IND-AS

COMPLIANCE WITH THE PROVISIONS OF SECRETARIAL STANDARD 1 
AND SECRETARIAL STANDARD 2

SECRETARIAL AUDITOR AND 
THEIR REPORT
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GENERAL DISCLOSURE

APPRECIATIONS AND ACKNOWLEDGMENT

Your Directors state that the Company has made disclosures in this report for the items prescribed in section 134 
(3) of the Act and Rule 8 of The Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and other applicable provisions of the act 
and listing regulations, to the extent the transactions took place on those items during the year. 

Your Directors wish to place on record their sincere appreciation for significant contributions made by the 
employees at all levels through their dedication, hard work and commitment, enabling the Company to achieve 
good performance during the year under review. 

Your Directors also take this opportunity to place on record the valuable co-operation and support extended by 
the banks, government, business associates and the shareholders for their continued confidence reposed in the 
Company and look forward to having the same support in all future endeavors.

By order of the Board of Directors
For, D. P. ABHUSHAN LIMITED
CIN: L74999MP2017PLC043234

Registered Office:      
138, Chandani Chowk, Ratlam, 
Madhya Pradesh- 457001

Santosh Kataria
Chairman & Managing Director 

(DIN: 02855068)

Place: Ratlam
Date: Aug 7, 2022

Anil Kataria
Whole-Time Director

 (DIN: 00092730)



Annexure - A

2.  COMPOSITION OF CSR COMMITTEE

Name of 
the 

Directors

Sanskar Kothari

Mukesh Jain

Santosh Kataria#

Designation

Non-Executive-Independent Director

Non-Executive-Independent Director

Chairman & Managing Director

Designation 
in 

Committee

Chairman

Member

Member

Number of 
meetings of 

CSR Committee 
held during 

the year

Number of 
meetings of CSR 

Committee 
entitled to attend 
during the year

3

3

3

3

3

1

3. WEB LINK OF THE WEBSITE OF THE COMPANY FOR COMPOSITION OF CSR COMMITTEE, CSR POLICY 
AND CSR PROJECTS APPROVED BY THE BOARD:

Compos i t i on  o f  CSR  commi t tee : h t tp s : / /www.dp jewe l l e r s . com/ la -as se t s /dp/pd f /  
Corporate_Information/Composition%20of%20Committee%20of%20Board.pdf

CSR Policy and Projects:https://www.dpjewellers.com/la-assets/dp/pdf/CSR_Policy.pdf

4. DETAILS OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT OF CSR PROJECTS CARRIED OUT IN PURSUANCE OF SUB-RULE (3) OF 
RULE 8 OF THE COMPANIES (CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY POLICY) RULES, 2014, IF APPLICABLE:

Not Applicable for the financial year under review.

5. DETAILS OF THE AMOUNT AVAILABLE FOR SET-OFF IN PURSUANCE OF SUB-RULE (3) OF RULE 7 OF THE 
COMPANIES (CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY POLICY) RULES, 2014 AND AMOUNT REQUIRED FOR 
SET-OFF FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR, IF ANY: ̀  0.01 Lakh

6. AVERAGE NET PROFIT OF THE COMPANY AS PER SEC 135 (5): ̀  2,500.82 Lakhs

(a) Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per Section 135(5) ` 50.02 Lakh

(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programs or activities of 
the previous financial years Nil

(c) Amount required to be set-off for the financial year, if any ` 0.01 Lakh

(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7(a)+7(b)-7(c)) ` 50.01 Lakh

7. 

1. BRIEF OUTLINE ON CSR POLICY OF THE COMPANY

Longevity and success for a company comes from living in harmony with the context, which is the community and 

society. The main objective of CSR Policy of the Company encompasses the ideas of corporate governance, 

sustainable wealth creation, corporate philanthropy and advocacy for the goals of the community. The projects 

undertaken will be within the broad framework of Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013. Our CSR initiatives 

focus on CSR projects as provided under Schedule VII. 

The Company has framed its CSR Policy in compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the 

same is  p laced on the Company ’s  webs i te a t  ht tps ://www.dpjewel lers .com/la -
assets/dp/pdf/CSR_Policy.pdf.

ANNUAL REPORT ON 
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THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2021-22
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Number of 
meetings of 

CSR Committee 
attended 

during the year
3

3

1

Vikas Kataria* Chairman & Managing Director Member 3 2 2

*up to January 25, 2022 #w.e.f. January 26, 2022
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Location 
of the 
Project 
(State & 
District)

Sr. 
No.

Name of 
the

Project 

Item from the 
list of activities 
in Schedule VII 

to 
the Act

Local 
area
(Yes/
No)

Amount 
spent for 

the project 
(Rupees 
in lakhs)

Mode of
Implemen
-tation – 
Direct 
(Yes/
No)

Mode of Implementation - 
Through Implementing 

Agency

1. Health Clause (i) - Yes Ratlam, MP 1.51 No G D Anklesaria 
treatment Promoting health Rotary Dialysis Trust
to poor care including 
and preventive health Yes Ratlam, MP 0.59 Yes -

needy care No Jaora, MP 0.30 Yes  -

people Yes Ratlam, MP 1.00 No Sewadham Ashram, 
undertaking of Ujjaini 
Varishth Nagarik 
Sangathan

8. a. CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

Total Amount 
Spent for the 
Financial Year

` 45.06 Lakh

Total Amount transferred to Unspent 
CSR Account (Section 135(6))

Not Applicable

Amount Unspent

Amount transferred to any fund specified 
under Schedule VII 

(second proviso to Section 135(5))

Amount Date of transfer Name of the Fund Amount Date of transfer

b. Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year: Nil

c. Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year:

Name
CSR 

Registration 
Number

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

CSR
00004221

2. Education Clause (ii) - No Gandhinagar, 30.00 No Motiba Memorial 
promoting Gujarat Seva Samaj Trust
education Yes Ratlam, MP 0.30 Yes -  
including special
education and 
employment 
enhancing 
vocation skills

3. Environ- Clause (iv) - Yes Udaipur, 7.61 Yes - -
ment ensuring Rajasthan
Protection environmental 

sustainability

5. Serving  Clause (vi)-setting Yes Ratlam, MP 0.42 Yes - -
Family of measures for the 
Died benefit of armed 
Army forces veterans, 
Personnel war widows and 
homes their dependents

4. Cattle Clause (iii) - Yes Ratlam, MP 3.08 No Jivdaya Samiti, Ratlam
Feed Animal Welfare

Yes Ratlam, MP 0.25 Yes - -
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Schedule VII ` 4.94 Lakh *

* 4.94 Lakh will be transferred to the fund specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013 on or 
before September 30, 2022.
` 

CSR
00012403

CSR
00006721

-

-

-

CSR
00025897



d. Amount spent in administrative overheads: NIL

e. Amount spent on impact assessment, if applicable: Not applicable

f. Total amount spent for the financial year (8b+8c+8d+8e): ̀  45.06 Lakh

g. Details of excess amount for set-off are as follows: Not applicable

Sl. No. Particulars Amount (` in lakhs)

(i) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5)

(ii) Total amount spent for the financial year

(iii) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)]

(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of 
the previous financial years, if any

(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv)]

9. a. Details of unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years:  Nil

b. Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial 
year(s): Nil

10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created or 
acquired through CSR spent in the financial year:

No capital asset was created / acquired for fiscal 2022 through CSR spend

11. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two percent of the average net profit as per 
Section 135(5): 

By order of the Board of Directors
For, D. P. ABHUSHAN LIMITED
CIN: L74999MP2017PLC043234

Registered Office:      
138, Chandani Chowk, Ratlam, 
Madhya Pradesh- 457001

Anil Kataria
Whole time Director

DIN 00092730

Place: Ratlam
Date: August 7, 2022

Santosh Kataria
  Chairman and Managing Director

DIN: 02855068

Sanskar Kothari
Chairman of CSR Committee

DIN: 06779404 
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Not applicable

The amount required to be spent on CSR activities during the year under report in accordance with the 

provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder is ` 50.01 Lakhs and the 

Company has spent ` 45.06 Lakh during the Financial Year ended March 31, 2022. The shortfall of amount ` 
4.94 Lakhs was not spent during the year because the Company was not able to find any suitable project or 
programs for meaningful spending of the amount. Hence, the shortfall in the spending during the year under 
report will be transferred to the fund specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013 on or before 
September 30, 2022.



Particulars

Name(s) of the related party and Mr. Ratanlal Kataria - Relatives of Key Managerial Person

nature of relationship

Nature of contracts/ arrangements/ Being Relative of Director, appointed at place of profit

transactions

Duration of the contracts/ arrangements/ FY 2021-22

transactions

Salient terms of the contracts or Payment of Remuneration of ` 3.00 Lakh Per Month

arrangements or transactions including Total Remuneration paid of ` 35.25 for FY 2021-22

the value, if any

Justification for entering into such Mr. Ratanlal Kataria was appointed as “Head – Marketing”

contracts or arrangements or transactions in company since inception and due to his hard working for 

the business of the Company, Company achieved a constant 

growth in the sales of a product. 

He had formed a partnership firm namely “D P Jewellers” 

which afterwards converted into Company. Currently we are 

located at different cities of India namely Ratlam, Indore, 

Bhopal, Kota, Udaipur, Bhilwara, Banswara and Ujjain.

Accordingly, the Board of Directors thinks that the remuneration 

paid to him is justifiable.

Date of approval by the Board September 3, 2019 & March 27, 2021

Amount paid as advances, if any: Nil

Date on which the special resolution September 27, 2019

was passed in general meeting as 
required under first proviso to section 188

RPT - 1

D.P. ABHUSHAN LIMITEDD.P. ABHUSHAN LIMITED

Annexure - B

Forms for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related 
parties referred to in Section 188(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length 

transactions under third proviso thereto

FORM NO. AOC-2 - PARTICULARS OF 
CONTRACTS/ARRANGEMENTS MADE WITH RELATED PARTIES

(Pursuant to Section 134(3)(h) of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

A. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis:
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B.   Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis:

S. No. Name(s) of 
the related party 

and nature of 
relationship

Duration of 
the 

contracts /  
arrangements/ 

transactions

Nature of 
contracts/

 arrangements/ 
transactions

Salient terms of 
the contracts or 
arrangements 
or transactions 

including 
the value, if any

Date(s) of 
approval by 
the Board

Amount 
paid as 

advances, 
if any

RPT-1

RPT-2

Mrs. Suman Devi 
Kataria- 

Relative of 
Director

Mr. Aman Kataria- 
Relative of 
Director

Payment
of 

Rent
FY 2021-2022

FY 2021-2022

On Arms’ 
Length Basis

Rent Payment of
 ` 12.00 Lakh

On Arms’ 
Length Basis

Rent Payment of
 ` 12.00 Lakh

November 24, 
2020 & 

October 25, 
2021

November 24, 
2020 & 

October 25, 
2021

NA

NA

RPT-6

Mrs. Sweety Kothari - 
Relative of Key 

Managerial Person
FY 2021-2022

On Arms’ 
Length Basis

Payment of Salary 
of ` 9.40 Lakh

March 27, 
2021

NA

RPT-3
Mr. Anil Kataria - 

Relative of 
Director

FY 2021-2022

On Arms’ 
Length Basis

Payment of Salary 
of ` 29.38 Lakh

March 27, 
2021

NA

Being Relative 
of Director, 

appointed at 
place of profit

RPT-4
Mr. Ratanlal Kataria - 

Relative of 
Director

FY 2021-2022

On Arms’ 
Length Basis

Rent Payment of
 ` 12.00 Lakh

NA

Payment
of 

Rent

RPT-7

Mr. Santosh Kasera - 
Relative of Key 

Managerial Person
FY 2021-2022

On Arms’ 
Length Basis

Payment of Salary 
of ` 5.44 Lakh

March 27, 
2021

NA

Being Relative of 
Key Managerial 

Person, 
appointed at 
place of profit

Being Relative of 
Key Managerial 

Person, 
appointed at 
place of profit

Payment
of 

Rent
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November 24, 
2020 & 

October 25, 
2021

RPT-5

Mr. Nitin Pirodiya- 
Relative of Key 

Managerial Person

Being Relative 
of Key 

Managerial 
Person, 

appointed at 
place of profit

FY 2021-2022

On Arms’ 
Length Basis

Payment of Salary 
of ` 9.40 Lakh

March 27, 
2021

NA

By order of the Board of Directors
For, D. P. ABHUSHAN LIMITED
CIN: L74999MP2017PLC043234

Registered Office:      
138, Chandani Chowk, Ratlam, 
Madhya Pradesh- 457001

Anil Kataria
Whole time Director

DIN 00092730

Place: Ratlam
Date: August 7, 2022

Santosh Kataria
  Chairman and Managing Director

DIN: 02855068



D.P. ABHUSHAN LIMITEDD.P. ABHUSHAN LIMITED

Annexure - C

Disclosures pertaining to remuneration and other details as required under Section 197(12) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules made there under.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

A. Information as per Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) 

Rules, 2014:

a) The ratio of remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of employees for the financial year 

and the Percentage increase in remuneration of each director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Executive 

Officer, Company Secretary or Manager, if any, in the financial year:

Sr. 
No.

Designation Nature of 
Payment

Percentage 
IncreaseName

1. Vikas Kataria* Chairman and Remuneration 17.69 : 1.00 (5.08%)
Managing Director

2. Santosh Kataria Whole-Time Director Remuneration 13.47 : 1.00 1.17%

3. Anil Kataria^ Whole-Time Director Remuneration 16.11 : 1.00 -

4. Renu Kataria Non-Executive Director Sitting Fees Not Applicable Not Applicable

5. Mukesh Kumar Jain Independent Director Sitting Fees Not Applicable Not Applicable

6. Sanskar Kothari Independent Director Sitting Fees Not Applicable Not Applicable

7. Deepak Gadia Independent Director Sitting Fees Not Applicable Not Applicable

8. Vijesh Kumar Kasera Chief Financial Officer Salary Not Applicable 32.66%

9. Amit Bandi Chief Executive Officer Salary Not Applicable 15.42%

10. Versha Gang~ Company Secretary Salary Not Applicable 8.43%

11. Aashi Neema$ Company Secretary Salary Not Applicable Not Applicable

Ratio against 
median 

employee’s 
remuneration

Ratio against median employee’s remuneration in respect of Non-Executive Directors and Independent 
Directors are not provided since they are not being paid any remuneration for serving the Company in capacity 
of Non-Executive Directors.

b) The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year: 

The median remuneration of the employees in current financial year was increased by 15.78% over the previous 
financial year, due to recruitment of lower level staff.

c) The number of permanent employees on the rolls of the Company: 550 Employees as on March 31, 2022.

d) Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial 
personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial 
remuneration and justification thereof and point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for increase in 
the managerial remuneration:

On an Average, 20.56% increase in the average salary of the Employees was made. On the other hand, the 
remuneration paid to Managerial Personnel was either reduced or increased by very negligible percentage as 
compared to previous year. 

The Board of Directors of the Company affirmed that remuneration of all the Key Managerial Personnel of the 
Company are as per the Remuneration Policy of the Company.
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* resigned w.e.f. January 26, 2022 ^ Appointed w.e.f. January 26, 2022

~ resigned w.e.f. February 8, 2022 $ Appointed w.e.f. February 8, 2022

By order of the Board of Directors
For, D. P. ABHUSHAN LIMITED
CIN: L74999MP2017PLC043234

Registered Office:      
138, Chandani Chowk, Ratlam, 
Madhya Pradesh- 457001

Place: Ratlam
Date: August 7, 2022

Anil Kataria
Whole time Director

DIN 00092730

Santosh Kataria
  Chairman and Managing Director

DIN: 02855068



Annexure - D

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of Subsidiaries/associate 
companies/joint ventures

FORM NO. AOC.1

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Part “A”: Subsidiaries: (Amount in Lakh)` 

Sl. No.

Name of the subsidiary D.P. Jewelline Limited (Formerly known as Gatha 

trendz Limited)

Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if Not Applicable. Reporting Period of subsidiary  

different from the holding company’s reporting ends on March 31 of every calendar year.

period

Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last Indian Rupees

date of the relevant financial year in the case of 

foreign subsidiaries.

Share capital 250.00

Reserves & surplus (22.23)

Total assets 229.45

Total Liabilities 270.65

Investments Nil

Turnover Nil

Profit before taxation (12.33)

Provision for taxation Nil

Profit after taxation (12.33)

Proposed Dividend Nil

% of shareholding 100.00

1.

1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operation: D.P.Jewelline Limited (Formerly known as 

Gatha Trendz Limited)

2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year: D.P.Jewelline Limited 
(Formerly known as Gatha Trendz Limited)

Part “B”: Associates and Joint Ventures: The Company does not have any Associates and / or Joint Ventures 

and hence, information is not applicable.

By order of the Board of Directors
For, D. P. ABHUSHAN LIMITED
CIN: L74999MP2017PLC043234

Registered Office:      
138, Chandani Chowk, Ratlam, 
Madhya Pradesh- 457001

Anil Kataria
Whole-time Director

DIN 00092730

Aashi Neema
Company Secretary

Place: Ratlam
Date: August 7, 2022

Santosh Kataria
Chairman and Managing 

DIN: 02855068

Vijesh Kumar Kasera
Chief Financial Officer 
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Note: The Company has sold its entire holding in D.P. Jewelline Limited (Formerly known as Gatha Trendz 

Limited) to related parties at a price arrived at in accordance with the applicable laws. In accordance with 

Indian Accounting Standard, Financial Statement of D.P. Jewelline Limited (Formerly known as Gatha Trendz 

Limited) has been consolidated for the period April 1, 2021 to January 25, 2022 (Sale Date) and presented in the 

Consolidated Financial Statement of the Company. 

Effective from January 26, 2022, the Company does not have any subsidiaries / joint venture / associate 

company.
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Annexure - E

The Directors present the Company’s Report on Corporate Governance for the year ended March 31, 2022:

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

Your Company believes that effective Corporate Governance is not just the framework enforced by the 

regulation but it is supported through the principles of transparency, unity, integrity, spirit and responsibility 

towards the stakeholders, shareholders, employees and customers. 

Company strongly believes that a company can emerge as a strong leader only by following good and sound 

Corporate Governance principles. Good corporate governance is a synonym for sound management, 

transparency and disclosure, encompassing good corporate practices, procedures, standards and implicit 

rules which propel a company to take sound decisions, thus maximizing long- term stakeholder value without 

compromising on integrity, societal obligations, environment and regulatory compliances. 

Effective corporate governance practices constitute the strong foundation, on which successful commercial 

enterprises are built to last. Strong leadership and effective corporate governance practices have been the 

Company’s hallmark inherited from the Company’s culture and ethos.

The Company’s Governance Structure comprises a dual layer, the Board of Directors and the Committees of the 

Board at the apex level and the Management Team at an operational level. The Board lays 

down the overall Corporate Objectives and provides direction and independence to the 

Management Team to achieve these objectives within a given framework. This 

professional management process results in building a conducive 

environment for sustainable business operations and value creation for all 

stakeholders. 

The Board of Directors and the Committees of the Board play a 

fundamental role in upholding and furthering the principals of good 

governance which translates into ethical business practices, transparency and 

accountability in the Company’s dealing with its stakeholders and in the utilization of resources for creating 

sustainable growth to the benefit of all the stakeholders. The Board within the framework of law discharges its 

fiduciary duties of safeguarding the interests of the Company. 

The Boards composition and size is robust and enables it to deal competently with emerging business 

development issue and exercise independent judgment. Committee of Directors assists the Board of Directors 

in discharging its duties and responsibilities. The Board has constituted the following Committees viz. Audit 

Committee, Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Nomination & Remuneration Committee, Corporate Social 

Responsibility Committee and Risk Management Committee which are mandatory Committees. The 

Management Structure for the day-to-day business operations and management of the Company is in place 

with appropriate delegation of powers and responsibilities.

The Company maintains the highest standard of Corporate Governance; it is the Company’s constant endeavor 

to adopt the best Corporate Governance Practice.

38



ROLE OF COMPANY SECRETARY IN OVERALL 
GOVERNANCE PROCESS

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

CONSTITUTION OF BOARD

The Company Secretary plays a key role in ensuring that the Board and 

Committees procedures are followed and regularly reviewed. The Company 

Secretary ensures that all relevant information, details and documents are made 

available to the Directors and Senior Management for effective decision making 

at the Meetings. The Company Secretary is primarily responsible for assisting 

and advising the Board in conducting the affairs of the Company, to ensure the 

compliances with applicable statutory requirements, to provide guidance to 

Directors and to facilitate convening of Meetings. The Company Secretary 

interfaces between the Management and regulatory authority for governance 

matters.

The Company has a broad-based Board of Directors, constituted in compliance 

with the Companies Act, 2013, SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements), Regulations 2015 (“Listing Regulations”) and is in accordance with 

best practices in Corporate Governance.

The Company has a balanced board with optimum combination of Executive and 

Non-Executive Directors, including Independent Directors, which plays a crucial 

role in Board processes and provides independent judgment on issues of 

strategy and performance. As on March 31, 2022, board comprises of 6 (Six) 

Directors out of which 2 (Two) Directors are Promoter Executive Directors, 1 (One) 

Director is Promoter Non-Executive Non Independent Director and remaining 

3 (Three) are Non-Promoter Non-Executive Independent Directors. 

Independent Directors are non-executive directors as defined under Regulation 

16(1)(b) of the SEBI Listing Regulations as amended from time to time. The 

maximum tenure of the Independent Directors is in compliance with the 

Companies Act, 2013. All Independent Directors have confirmed that they meet 

the criteria as mentioned under Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI Listing Regulations 

as amended from time to time and Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013. The 

present strength of the Board reflects judicious mix of professionalism, 

competence and sound knowledge which enables the Board to provide effective 

leadership to the Company.

All the Directors have made necessary disclosures regarding Committee 

positions held by them in other companies and do not hold the office of Director 

in more than ten public companies as on March 31, 2022.

Further, none of the Directors on the Company’s Board is a Member of more than 

ten Committees including Chairman of more than five Committees (Committees 

being, Audit Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee) across all the 

companies in which he/she is a Director. None of the Director of the Company is 

serving as a Whole-Time Director in any Listed Company and is holding position of Independent Director 

in more than three Listed Company and none of the Director of the Company is holding position as 

Independent Director in more than seven Listed Company. 
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The composition of the Board is in conformity with the Regulation 17 of the SEBI Listing Regulations. As at March 
31, 2022, the Board comprised following Directors;

^ 

~

Committee includes Audit Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee across all Public Companies including our Company.

 Excluding Section 8 Company, struck off Company, Amalgamated Company and LLPs.

Name of
Director

Santosh
Kataria

Anil 
Kataria

Renu
Kataria

Sanskar
Kothari

Deepak
Gadia

Category Cum 
Designation

Promoter 
Chairman and 

Managing 
Director

Promoter 
Whole-Time

 Director

Promoter Group
Non-Executive 

Director

Non-Promoter 
Independent

Director

Non-Promoter 
Independent

Director

Date of 
Appointment 

at current 
Term

January 26, 
2022

January 26, 
2022

June 20, 
2017

July 16, 
2018

August 8, 
2020

Total 
Directorship 

in other 
Companies~

2

1

1

1

Directorship 
in other Listed 
Companies 

excluding our 
Company

6

-

-

-

-

2

-

-

2

2

No. of Committee^

in which
Director is
Members

in which 
Director is 
Chairman

-

-

-

2

-

No. of Shares 
held as 

on March 
31, 2022

607330 
Equity Shares 

(2.73%)

1259230 
Equity Shares

(5.66%)

-

-

Inter-se 
Relation 
between 
Directors

-

Cousin Brother of 
Mr. Anil Kataria and 

Brother in law of 
Ms. Renu Kataria

6071230 
Equity Shares

(27.28%)

Cousin Brother of 
Mr. Santosh Kataria 
and Brother in law 
of Ms. Renu Kataria

Sister in Law of 
Anil Kataria & 

Santosh Kataria

Mukesh 
Kumar Jain

Non-Promoter 
Independent 

Director

July 15, 
2022

2 - 2 - - No 
Relation

No 
Relation

No 
Relation

None of the Directors of the Company is disqualified for being appointed as Director as specified in Section 164 
(2) of the Companies Act, 2013. A Certificate from Mr. Anand Lavingia, Practicing Company Secretary, 
Ahmedabad as stipulated under Regulation 34 read with Schedule V of the SEBI LODR Regulations, is attached as 
an Annexure – E1 to this Report.

None of the above Directors bear inter-se relation with other Director except Mr. Anil 
Katariya & Mr. Santosh Kataria who are Cousin brothers as well as brother in laws of 
Ms. Renu Kataria.

Regular meetings of the Board are held at least once in a quarter, inter-alia, to review the 
quarterly results of the Company. Additional Board meetings are convened, as and when required, to discuss and 
decide on various business policies, strategies and other businesses. The Board meetings are generally held at 
registered office of the Company.

During the year under review, Board of Directors of the Company met 11 (Eleven) times, viz June 9, 2021; July 29, 
2021; August 5, 2021; September 3, 2021; October 4, 2021; October 25, 2021; December 25, 2021; January 20, 
2022; January 25, 2022; February 7, 2022 and March 14, 2022.

RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN DIRECTORS INTER-SE

BOARD MEETING

The details of attendance of each Director at the Board Meeting and Annual General Meeting are given below;

* Resigned w.e.f. January 26, 2022 #Appointed w.e.f. January 26, 2022

Name of Director

No. of Board Meeting held

No. of Board Meeting eligible to attend

Vikas 
Kataria*

11 11

9 2

Santosh 
Kataria

11

11

Renu 
Kataria

11

11

Mukesh 
Kumar Jain

11

11

Deepak
Gadia

11 11

11 11

Number of Board Meeting attended 9 2 11 11 11 11 11

Presence at the previous AGM Yes NA Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

Sanskar 
Kothari

During the year, the Board of Directors has not passed any resolutions through circulation. 

Anil
Kataria#
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In terms of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under and Listing Regulations, as on 
March 31, 2022, the Company has three Non-Promoter Non-Executive Independent Directors. In the opinion of 
the Board of Directors, all four Independent Directors of the Company meet all the criteria mandated by Section 
149 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under and Listing Regulations and they are Independent 
of Management.

Further, since as on March 31, 2022, the Company was falling in Top 1000 list based on Market Capitalization as 
published by NSE, the Company has appointed Ms. Apurva Chordia as Woman Non-Promoter Non-Executive 
Independent Director w.e.f. April 19, 2022 as required under Proviso to Regulation 17(1)(a) of Listing 
Regulations.

A separate meeting of Independent Directors was held on March 14, 2022 to review the performance of Non-
Independent Directors and Board as whole and performance of Chairperson of the Company including 
assessment of quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between Company management and 
Board that is necessary for the board of directors to effectively and reasonably perform their duties. The 
meeting was attended by all the Independent Directors of the Company. 

The terms and conditions of appointment of Independent Directors and Code for Independent Director are 
incorporated on the websi te of the Company at ht tps ://www.dpjewellers .com/la 
assets/dp/pdf/TERMS%20AND%20CONDITION%20OF%20APPOINTMENT%20OF%20INDEPENDENT%20DIRC
TORS.pdf.

The Company has received a declaration from the Independent Directors of the Company under Section 149(7) 
of Companies Act, 2013 and 16(1)(b) of Listing Regulations confirming that they meet criteria of Independence 
as per relevant provisions of Companies Act, 2013 for financial year 2022-23. The Board of Directors of the 
Company has taken on record the said declarations and confirmation as submitted by the Independent 
Directors after undertaking due assessment of the veracity of the same. In the opinion of the Board, they fulfill 
the conditions for Independent Directors and are independent of the Management. All the Independent 
Directors have confirmed that they are in compliance with Rules 6(1) and 6(2) of the Companies (Appointment 
and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, with respect to registration with the data bank of Independent 
Directors maintained by the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs.

Moreover, Mr. Mukesh Kumar Jain has been re-appointed as Non-Executive Independent Director of the 
Company to hold office for second term of five consecutive years i.e. up to July 15, 2027.

None of Independent Directors have resigned during the year.

The Company has formulated a policy to familiarise the Independent Directors with the Company, their roles, 
rights, responsibilities in the Company, nature of the industry in which the Company operates, business model of 
the Company, etc., through various programmes. The details of such familiarization programmes are disclosed 
on the website of the Company and the web link for the same is https://www.dpjewellers.com/la-
assets/dp/pdf/Familiarization%20Programme%20DPAL.pdf.

In terms of Regulation 17(5) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Board has adopted the Code of Conduct for the Board of Directors and 
Senior Management Personnel of the Company. The compliance of the said code has been affirmed by them 
annually. The Code of Conduct also includes the duties of Independent Directors. A copy of the Code has been 
put up on the Company’s website and same may be accessed at https://www.dpjewellers.com/la-
assets/dp/pdf/Code_of_Conduct.pdf. 

A declaration signed by the Chairman and Managing Director of the Company is attached with this report.

FAMILIARIZATION PROGRAMMES FOR BOARD MEMBERS

CODE OF CONDUCT FOR THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR 
MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS
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SKILLS/EXPERTISE/ COMPETENCIES OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The Board Members are from diversified areas having the required knowledge. Competency, skills, and 

experience to effectively discharge their responsibilities. The range of experience of the Board Members 

includes in the areas of Jewellery, Precious Metals, Banking &, Finance, Taxation and Legal.

The broad policies are framed by the Board of Directors. All strategic decisions are taken by the Board after due 

deliberation between the Board Members which consists of Managing Director, Executive Directors, Non-

Executive Director and Independent Directors

The Company has identified and broadly categorized its Core Skills, Expertise and Competencies as 

mentioned hereunder:

Core Skills

Anil
Kataria

Santosh 
Kataria

Renu 
Kataria

Mukesh 
Kumar Jain

Deepak
Gadia

Sanskar 
Kothari

Name of Directors

Strategic policy formulation 
and advising

Design and Aesthetics

Regulatory framework 
knowledge

Financial performance

Advising on Risk mitigation 
and Compliance 
requirements

Knowledge of Gold and 
Diamonds Industries

Expertise

Commercial acumen

Able to guide in building 
the right environment for 
Human Assets 
Development

Competencies Strategic Leadership

Execution of policies 
framed by the Board

Identifying the growth 
areas for expanding the 
business in India and 
outside India

Advising on Business 
Risks & environment.

BOARD EVALUATION CRITERIA 
During the year, the Board carried out an Annual Evaluation of its own performance and the performance of 

individual Directors, as well as evaluation of the Committees of the Board. An indicative list of factors on which 

evaluation of the individual directors, the Board and the Committees was carried out includes, Board structure 

and composition, degree of fulfilment of key responsibilities, establishment and delineation of responsibilities 

to Committees, effectiveness of Board processes, information flow, functioning of the Board/ Committees, 

Board culture and dynamics, quality of relationship between the Board and Management, contribution to 

decisions of the Board, guidance/support to Management outside Board/Committee meetings.
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INSIDER TRADING CODE 

COMMITTEES OF BOARD

ROLE OF COMMITTEE

In accordance with the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 (“PIT Regulations”), as amended 

from time to time, the Board of Directors of the Company had adopted the Codes of Fair Disclosure and 

Conduct (“the Code”) which in turn contains the Code of Conduct to Regulate, Monitor and Report Trading by 

Insiders and Code of Fair Disclosure Practices. This Code is applicable to all Directors, Promoters, such 

identified Designated Persons and their Immediate Relatives and other Connected Persons who are expected 

to have Unpublished Price Sensitive Information relating to the Company. Ms. Aashi Neema, Company 

Secretary and Compliance Officer of the Company is the Compliance Officer under the Code.

The terms of reference of Board Committees are determined by the Board from time to time. Presently the 

Company has Five (5) committees i.e. Audit Committee, Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Nomination & 

Remuneration Committee, Corporate Social Responsibility Committee and Risk Management Committee. 

All the decisions pertaining to the constitution of the Committees, appointment of members, and fixing of terms 

of reference for committee members are taken by the Board of Directors. Details on the role and composition of 

these committees, including the number of meetings held during the financial year and the related attendance, 

are provided in detailed hereunder. However, details pertaining to Corporate Social Responsibility Committee 

are given in the Board Report.

There were no instances during the financial year 2021-22, wherein the Board had not accepted 

recommendations made by any committee of the Board.

A. Audit Committee

The Company has formed audit committee for the purpose of assisting the Board in fulfilling its overall 

responsibilities of monitoring financial reporting processes, reviewing the Company’s established systems and 

processes for internal financial controls, governance and reviewing the Company’s statutory and internal audit 

activities.

During the year, Mr. Vikas Kataria resigned from the post of Chairman and Managing Director w.e.f January 26, 

2022, and as a result audit committee was reconstituted by inducting Mr. Santosh Kataria as member of the 

Committee w.e.f January 26, 2022.The audit committee carried out its functions as per the powers and roles 

given by the Board of Directors under Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013. The terms reference of Audit 

Committee are set out hereunder;

1. Oversight of the company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information to 

ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible;

2. Recommending to the Board, the appointment, re-appointment and, if required, the replacement or 

removal of the statutory auditor and the fixation of audit fees;

3. Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory auditors;

4. Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements before submission to the board for 

approval, with particular reference to:

a. Matters required to be included in the Director’s Responsibility Statement to be included in the Board’s 

report in terms of clause (c) of sub section 3 of section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013

b. Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same 

c. Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by management

d. Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings
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e. Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements

f. Disclosure of any related party transactions

g. modified opinion(s) in the draft audit report 

5. Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the board for 

approval and examine the financial statement and the auditors’ report thereon;

6. Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised through an issue 

(public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for purposes other than 

those stated in the offer document/ Information Memorandum/notice and the report submitted by the 

monitoring agency monitoring the utilization of proceeds of a public or rights issue, and making 

appropriate recommendations to the Board to take up steps in this matter;

7. Reviewing and monitoring the auditor's independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit 

process; 

8. Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of our Company with related parties subject to 

manner prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013; 

9. Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments; 

10. Valuation of undertakings or assets of the listed entity, wherever it is necessary; 

11. Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems; 

12. Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of the internal 

control systems; 

13. Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal audit 

department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure coverage and 

frequency of internal audit; 

14. Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow up there on; 

15. Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there is 

suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting the 

matter to the board; 

16. Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences about the nature and scope of audit as well 

as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern; 

17. To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders, 

shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors; 

18. To review the functioning of the whistle blower mechanism;

19. Approval of appointment of chief financial officer after assessing the qualifications, experience and 

background, etc. of the candidate; 

20. Reviewing the utilization of loans and/ or advances from/investment by the holding company in the 

subsidiary exceeding rupees 100 crore or 10% of the asset size of the subsidiary, whichever is lower 

including existing loans / advances / investments existing as on the date of coming into force of this 

provision and monitoring the end use of funds raised through public offers and related matters;

21. Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the audit committee; 

22. To oversee and review the functioning of the vigil mechanism which shall provide for adequate safeguards 

against victimization of employees and directors who avail of the vigil mechanism and also provide for 

direct access to the Chairperson of the Audit Committee in appropriate and exceptional cases; 

23. Call for comments of the auditors about internal control systems, scope of audit including the observations 

of the auditor and review of the financial statements before submission to the Board;

24. To investigate any other matters referred to by the Board of Directors.
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REVIEW OF INFORMATION BY THE COMMITTEE

POWERS OF COMMITTEE

COMPOSITION OF COMMITTEE, MEETING AND ATTENDANCE OF EACH 
MEMBER AT MEETINGS

The Audit Committee shall mandatorily review the following information:

The Audit Committee shall mandatorily review the following information:

1. Management discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations;

2. Statement of significant related party transactions (as defined by the Audit Committee), submitted by 

management;

3. Management letters/letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the statutory auditors;

4. Internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses; 

5. The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the internal auditor shall be subject to review by 

the Audit Committee and

6. Statement of deviations:

(a) Quarterly statement of deviation(s) including report of monitoring agency, if applicable, submitted to 

stock exchange(s) in terms of Regulation 32(1).

(b) Annual statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those stated in the offer 

document/prospectus/notice in terms of Regulation 32(7).

7. Review and monitor the auditors’ independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit process;

8. Examination of the financial statement and auditors’ report thereon;

9. Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the Company with related parties;

10. Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investment;

11. Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it is necessary;

12. Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems;

13. Monitoring the end use of funds raised through public offers and related matters;

14. Any other matters as prescribed by law from time to time.

The Committee -

1. May call for comments of auditors about internal control system, scope of audit, including observations of 

auditors and review of financial statement before their submission to board;

2. May discuss any related issues with internal and statutory auditors and management of the Company;

3. To investigate into any matter in relation to above items or referred to it by Board;

4. To obtain legal or professional advice from external sources and have full access to information contained 

in the records of the Company;

5. To seek information from any employee;

6. To secure attendance of outsiders with relevant expertise, if it considers necessary;

7. Any other power as may be delegated to the Committee by way of operation of law.

Audit Committee meeting is generally held for the purpose of recommending the financial result and the gap 

between two meetings did not exceed one hundred and twenty days. Additional meeting is held for the 

purpose of reviewing the specific item included in terms of reference of the Committee. During the year under 

review, Audit Committee met 6 (Six) times on June 9, 2021; August 5, 2021; September 3, 2021; October 25, 2021; 

January 20, 2022 and January 25, 2022.
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The composition of the Committee during the year and the details of meetings attended by its members are 

given below:

Sanskar Kothari Chairperson 6

Held

6

Eligible to attend

6

Attended

Number of meetings during the financial year 2021-22

Independent 
Director

Name of 
Members

Category Designation 
in Committee

Mukesh Kumar 
Jain

Vikas Kataria^

Member

Member

6

6

6

6

6

6

 Independent 
Director

Executive 
Director

Deepak 
Gadia

Member 6 6 6
Independent 

Director

^up to January 25, 2022* w.e.f. January 26, 2022

The Constitution of the Audit Committee is in line with the provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 

read with Regulation 18 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. All members are financially literate and have 

relevant finance and/or audit exposure. Mr. Sanskar Kothari has accounting and financial management 

expertise. Mr. Sanskar Kothari, the Chairman of the Committee had attended last Annual General Meeting of 

the Company held on September 29, 2021.

The Statutory Auditors and Internal Auditors of the Company are invited in the meeting of the Committee 

wherever requires. Chief Financial Officer of the Company is a regular invitee at the Meeting. 

The Company Secretary of the Company acts as a Secretary to the Committee.

Recommendations of Audit Committee have been accepted by the Board of wherever/whenever given.

B. Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The Company has formed Nomination and Remuneration Committee for the purpose of assisting the Board to 

identify persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior management in 

accordance with the criteria laid down and such other matters specified under various statute.

The terms of reference of Nomination and Remuneration Committee are briefed hereunder;

Terms of reference

1. To formulate a criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and Independence of a Director.

2. Formulate criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board.

3. Identify persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed in Senior Management 

in accordance with the criteria laid down in this policy.

4. To evaluate the balance of skills, knowledge and experience on the Board and on the basis of such 

evaluation, prepare a description of the role and capabilities required of an independent director and 

based on capabilities identified, recommend the appointment of Independent Director.

5. To carry out evaluation of every Director’s performance.

6. To recommend to the Board the appointment and removal of Directors and Senior Management.

7. To recommend to the Board policy relating to remuneration for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and 

Senior Management.
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During the year under review, the Company has paid remuneration /sitting fees to Directors of the Company, 

details of which are as under;

8. Ensure that level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient, relationship of 

remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance benchmarks.

9. To devise a policy on Board diversity.

10. To carry out any other function as is mandated by the Board from time to time and / or enforced by any 

statutory notification, amendment or modification, as may be applicable.

11. To recommend to the board, all remuneration, in whatever form, payable to senior management.

12. To perform such other functions as may be necessary or appropriate for the performance of its duties.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee meeting is generally held at least once in a year. Additional 

meetings are held for the purpose of recommending appointment/re-appointment of Directors and Key 

Managerial Personnel and their remuneration. During the year under review, Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee met 4 (Four) times viz, September3, 2021; January25, 2022, February 7, 2022 and March 14, 2022.

COMPOSITION OF COMMITTEE, MEETING AND ATTENDANCE OF EACH 
MEMBER AT MEETINGS

The composition of the Committee during the year and the details of meetings attended by its members are 

given below:

Sanskar Kothari

Chairperson 4

Held

4

Eligible to attend

4

Attended

Number of meetings during the financial year 2021-22

Independent 
Director

Name of 
Members

Category Designation 
in Committee

Mukesh Kumar 
Jain

Renu Kataria

Member

Member

4

4

4

4

4

4

 Independent 
Director

Non-Executive 
Director

Deepak 
Gadia

Member 4 4 4
Independent 

Director

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

Criteria on which the performance of the Independent Directors shall be evaluated are placed on the website 

of  the Company and may be accesses at l ink ht tps ://www.dpjewel lers .com/la-

assets/dp/pdf/Performance_Evaluation_Policy.pdf.

The Company has not entered into any pecuniary relationship or transactions with Non-Executive Directors of 

the Company except payment of Sitting Fees for attending the Meetings and receipt of Unsecured Loan from 

Mrs. Renu Kataria, Non-Executive Director of the Company.

Further, criteria for making payment, if any, to non-executive directors are provided under the Nomination and 

Remuneration Policy of the Company which is hosted on the website of the Company viz; 

https://www.dpjewellers.com/la-assets/dp/pdf/Nomination_Remuneration_Policy.pdf.
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Vikas Kataria Promoter - Chairman and 33.45 - - - 33.45

Managing Director

Santosh Kataria Promoter - chairman and 5.06 - - - 5.06

Managing Director

Anil Kataria Promoter - Whole-Time Director 5.88 - - - 5.88

Santosh Kataria Promoter - Whole-Time Director 25.31 - - - 25.31

Renu Kataria Promoter Group - Non-Executive - 0.24 - - 0.24

Director

Mukesh Kumar Jain Non-Promoter - Independent - 0.24 - - 0.24

Director

Sanskar Kothari Non-Promoter - Independent - 0.24 - - 0.24

Director

Deepak Gadia Non-Promoter - Independent - 0.24 - - 0.24 

Director

Salary Commission Total
Name of 
Directors

Designation

The remuneration of the Directors is decided by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee based on the 
performance of the Company in accordance with the Nomination and Remuneration Policy within the limit 
approved by the Board or Members.

The appointments of Managing Director and Whole-Time Director are governed by the resolutions passed by 
the Board and Members of the Company, which cover the terms and conditions of their appointments, read with 
the service rules of the Company. The services of Managing Director and Executive Director may be terminated 
by either party, by giving the other party six months’ notice or paying six months’ salary in lieu thereof. There is 
no separate provision for payment of severance fee under the resolutions governing their appointments.

(`in Lakh)
Sitting
Fees

Stock 
Option

C. Stakeholders Relationship Committee

The Company has constituted Stakeholders Relationship Committee responsible for the Redressal of 

Shareholders grievances including non-receipt of Annual reports, Demat / Remat of Securities etc. The 

Committee also oversees the performance of the Registrar & Transfer agents of the Company relating to the 

investors’ services and recommends measures for improvement.

During the year, the Committee carried out its functions as per the powers and roles given by the Board of 

Directors under Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013. The terms of reference of Stakeholders Relationship 

Committee are briefed hereunder;

Terms of Reference

1. Resolving the grievances of the security holders of the listed entity including complaints related to transfer/ 

transmission of shares, non-receipt of annual report, non-receipt of declared dividends, issue of new/ 

duplicate certificates, general meetings etc

2. Review of measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by shareholders; 

3. Review of adherence to the service standards adopted by the listed entity in respect of various services 

being rendered by the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent;

4. Review of the various measures and initiatives taken by the listed entity for reducing the quantum of 

unclaimed dividends and ensuring timely receipt of dividend warrants/annual reports/statutory notices by 

the shareholders of the Company.

During the year under review, Stakeholder’s Grievance & Relationship Committee met 4 (Four) times on June 9, 

2021; August 5, 2021; October 25, 2021 and January 20, 2022.

COMPOSITION OF COMMITTEE, MEETINGS AND ATTENDANCE OF 
EACH MEMBER AT MEETINGS



The composition of the Committee during the year and the details of meetings attended by its members are 

given below:

Sanskar Kothari Chairperson 4

Held

4

Eligible to attend

4

Attended

Number of meetings during the financial year 2021-22

Independent 
Director

Name of 
Members

Category Designation 
in Committee

Mukesh Kumar 
Jain

Vikas Kataria^

Santosh Kataria*

Member

Member

Member

4

4

4

4

4

-

4

4

-

 Independent 
Director

Executive 
Director

Executive 
Director

Deepak 
Gadia

Member 4 4 4
Independent 

Director

^ up to January 25, 2022    * w.e.f. January 26, 2022

Mr. Sanskar Kothari, Non promoter Non executive Independent Director acts as the chairperson of the 
Committee. Mr. Sanskar Kothari was present at the last Annual General Meeting held on September 29, 2021.

Ms. Aashi Neema, Company Secretary of the Company is acting as the Compliance Officer of the Company. 

Investors’ Complaints

NAME OF THE NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR HEADING THE COMMITTEE

NAME AND DESIGNATION OF COMPLIANCE OFFICER

Number of complaints outstanding as on April 1, 2021 Nil

Number of complaints received from the Investors from April 1, 2021 to March 31, 2022 2

Number of complaints solved to the satisfaction of the Investors from April 1, 2021 to 
March 31, 2022 2

Number of complaints pending as on March 31, 2022 Nil

D. Risk Management Committee:

The Company has constituted Risk Management Committee to frame, implement and monitor the risk 
management plan for the Company.

The Committee carried out its functions as per the powers and roles given by the Board of Directors under 
Regulation 21 of Listing Regulations. The terms of reference of Risk Management Committee are briefed 
hereunder;

Terms of Reference

1. To formulate a detailed risk management policy which shall include:

(a) A  framework  for  identification  of  internal  and  external  risks  specifically  faced  by  the  Company,  
in  particular  including  financial,  operational, sectoral, sustainability (particularly, ESG related risks), 
information, cyber  security risks or any other risk as may be determined by the Committee.

(b) Measures for risk mitigation including systems and processes for internal control of identified risks.

(c) Business continuity plan.

2. To ensure that appropriate methodology, processes and systems are in place to monitor and evaluate risks 
associated with the business of the Company; 

3. To  monitor  and  oversee  implementation  of  the  risk  management  policy, including evaluating the 
adequacy of risk management systems;

49

FIFTH ANNUAL REPORT 2021-22



D.P. ABHUSHAN LIMITEDD.P. ABHUSHAN LIMITED

50

4. To periodically review the risk management policy, at least once in two years, including   by   considering   
the   changing   industry   dynamics   and   evolving complexity;

5. To  keep  the  board  of  directors  informed  about  the  nature  and  content  of  its discussions, 
recommendations and actions to be taken;

6. The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the Chief Risk Officer (if any) shall be subject to 
review by the Risk Management Committee.

Chairperson

Held Eligible to attend Attended

Number of meetings during the financial year 2021-22

Independent 
Director

Name of 
Members

Category Designation 
in Committee

Mukesh Kumar 
Jain

Anil Kataria Member
Executive 
Director

Deepak 
Gadia

Member
Independent 

Director

Since as on March 31, 2022, the Company was falling in 
Top 1000 list based on Market Capitalization as 
published by NSE, the Company has constituted Risk 
Management Committee on April 18, 2022 as required 
under Regulation 21 of Listing Regulations. Accordingly, 
no meetings of the Committee held during the year under 
review.

GENERAL BODY MEETINGS
Annual General Meetings

Financial 
Year

2020-21

2019-20

2018-19

Date

Wednesday, 
September 29, 

2021

Wednesday, 
September 16, 

2020

Friday, 
September 27, 

2019

Location of Meeting

Through Video Conferencing 
Deemed Venue - 
Registered Office:

138 Chandani Chowk, Ratlam, 
Madhya Pradesh–457 001, India

Registered Office:
Hotel Balaji Central, Opposite 

GTB Academy School, 
Sailana / Banswara Road, 

Ratlam – 457001, 
Madhya Pradesh, India

Time

04.30 
P.M.

04.00 
P.M.

04.00 
P.M.

No. of Special Resolutions 
passed

1. To revise remuneration payable to 
Mr. Vikas Kataria (DIN 02855136), 
Chairman and Managing Director 
of the Company.

2. To revise remuneration payable to 
M r .  S a n t o s h  K a t a r i a  ( D I N  
02855068), Whole-Time Director 
of the Company.

----

----

Through Video Conferencing 
Deemed Venue - 
Registered Office:

138 Chandani Chowk, Ratlam, 
Madhya Pradesh–457 001, India

PASSING OF SPECIAL RESOLUTION THROUGH POSTAL BALLOT IN F.Y. 
2021-22
During the financial year 2021-22, the Company has not approached the shareholders for passing of any 

resolution through postal ballot.

PASSING OF SPECIAL RESOLUTION THROUGH POSTAL 
During the year under review, no resolution was passed through Postal Ballot. No Resolutions are proposed for 

passing through Postal Ballot.



FINANCIAL YEAR
12 months period starting from April 1 and ends on March 31 of subsequent year. This being financial year 2021-

22 was started on April 1, 2021 and ended on March 31, 2022. 

Quarter ending Release of Results

June 30, 2022 Second week of August, 2022

September 30, 2022 Second week of November, 2022

December 31, 2022 Second week of February, 2023

March 31, 2023 End of May, 2023

Annual General Meeting for the year ending March 31, 2023 End of September, 2023

FINANCIAL CALENDAR
(Tentative and subject to change for the financial year 2022-23)

DIVIDEND PAYMENT DATE

BOOK CLOSURE DATE

LISTING ON STOCK EXCHANGES

SYMBOL

A Dividend of Rupee 1.00 (Rupee One only) per Equity Share (10.00%) has been recommended by the Board of 

Directors for the year ended March 31, 2022 for the approval of members at the ensuing AGM and if approved 

by members, it will be paid on or before October 29, 2022 (previous year Nil).

There being no physical shareholders in the Company, the Register of members and share transfer books of the 

Company will not be closed. Members whose names are recorded in the Register of Members or in the 

Register of Beneficial Owners maintained by the Depositories as on the Cut-off date i.e. Friday, September 23, 

2022, shall be entitled to avail the facility of remote e-voting as well as e-voting system on the date of the AGM.

National Stock Exchange of India Limited, 

Exchange Plaza, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra East, Mumbai - 400051. 

Listing fees for the financial year 2022-23 has been paid to National Stock Exchange of India Limited.

National Stock Exchange of India Limited (Symbol – DPABHUSHAN)
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thDate, Time and Venue of 5  Annual General Meeting
Day and Date: Friday, September 30, 2022

Time: 05.00 P.M., Venue: Hotel Balaji, Central Sailana Road, 

Near Amrit Garden, Opposite GTB Academy School,

Barbad Mandir, Ratlam - 457 001

GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS 
INFORMATION

FIFTH ANNUAL REPORT 2021-22

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION
a. Financial Results

The quarterly, half-yearly and annual results are published in widely circulating national and local dailies 

such as “The Economic Times or Business Standard” in English and “Chautha Sansar” in Hindi language and 

are displayed on the website of the Company www.dpjewellers.com.

b. Website

The Company’s website www.dpjewellers.com contains a separate dedicated section namely “Investors 

Relations” where shareholders information is available. The Annual Report of the Company is also available 

on the website of the Company www.dpjewellers.com in a downloadable form.

During the year under review, the Company has made presentations to institutional investors and to the 

analysts and are available at www.dpjewellers.com. Further, the result of the Company has also been 

displayed in official news releases. Presentation made to Institutional Investors and Analyst are also 

submitted to Stock Exchange and hosted on the website of the Company.



REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER AGENTS
Bigshare Services Private Limited

Address: Office No S6-2, 6th floor Pinnacle Business Park, Next 

to Ahura Centre, Mahakali Caves Road, Andheri (East) 

Mumbai - 400093, India; Tel: +91 22 6263 8200;

MARKET PRICE DATA

The Monthly high/low and the volume of the Company’s shares traded on stock exchanges and the Monthly 

high/ low of the said exchanges are as follows:

April, 2021 126.80 105.01 113.75 14631.10

May, 2021 148.95 112.4 140.85 15582.80

June, 2021 182.00 138.00 162.75 15721.50

July, 2021 199.95 160.00 191.35 15763.05

August, 2021 239.00 185.05 198.70 17132.20

September, 2021 224.95 193.10 214.55 17618.15

October, 2021 239.00 210.10 229.10 17671.65

November, 2021 322.10 222.00 282.50 16983.20

December, 2021 477.80 280.05 435.90 17354.05

January, 2022 439.00 345.30 394.70 17339.85

February, 2022 415.95 320.20 380.60 16793.90

March, 2022 425.00 333.00 373.95 17464.75

High Price
D. P. Abhushan 

Limited

Closing Price
Month

D. P. Abhushan Limited (Price in `)

Nifty Midcap 
50Low Price

SHARE TRANSFER SYSTEM
In terms of Regulation 40(1) of SEBI LODR, as amended, securities can be transferred only in dematerialization 

form w.e.f. April 1, 2019, except in case of request received for transmission or transposition of securities. 

Transfer of shares in electronic form is effected by the depositories with no involvement of the Company.

DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDING (AS ON MARCH 31, 2022)
On the basis of Shareholding

1 500 2833 84.47 205696 0.92

501 1000 152 4.53 119482 0.54

1001 2000 98 2.92 146600 0.66

2001 3000 43 1.28 111516 0.50

3001 4000 83 2.48 317890 1.43

4001 5000 21 0.62 96508 0.43

5001 10000 54 1.61 402394 1.81

10001 and above 70 2.09 20854764 93.71

Total 3354 100.00 22254850 100.00

Number % of Total

Number of Equity Shares held
No. of Shares

Shareholders

Number% of Total

Email: investor@bigshareonline.com;  

Web: www.bigshareonline.com 

Web link to raise queries: 

http://www.bigshareonline.com/Contact.aspx

52



On the Category of Shareholders

Promoters 11 0.33% 10077120 45.28%

Promoters Relative 4 0.12% 6553739 29.45%

Clearing Member 14 0.42% 4182 0.02%

Corporate Bodies 27 0.81% 1191905 5.36%

Public 3260 97.20% 4398012 19.76%

Non Resident Indian 37 1.10% 27620 0.12%

Foreign Portfolio Investor 1 0.03% 2272 0.01%

Total 3354 100.00% 22254850 100.00%

Number % of Total

Number of Equity Shares held
No. of Shares

Shareholders

Number% of Total

Dematerialization of Shares and Liquidity (as on March 31, 2022)

Mode No. of Equity Shares Percentage

Demat 22254850 100.00

NSDL 1780575 8.00

CDSL 20474275 92.00

Physical 0 0.00

The equity shares are traded on National Stock Exchange of India Limited. 

Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any Convertible instruments conversion date and likely impact on 
equity

The Company has not issued any GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any Convertible instruments till date. Hence, there 

are no outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any Convertible instruments.

At present, the Company has total Eight Showrooms, locations of which are given hereunder;
LOCATIONS OF SHOWROOM

INDORE (MP)
DNR-90, Near Rajani Bhawan, 

Opp. High Court, 
R.N.T. Marg, 452-001

BHOPAL (MP)
Ground Floor, KN Arcade, 

16, Malviya Road, 
Raj Bhawan Road, 462-003

UDAIPUR (RAJASTHAN)
17, Nyaya Marg, 

Near Shree Nath Hotel, 
313-001

RATLAM (MP)
138, Chandni Chowk,  

457-001

Bigshare Services Private Limited
Address:Office No S6-2, 6th floor Pinnacle Business 
Park, Next to Ahura Centre, Mahakali Caves Road, 
Andheri (East) Mumbai - 400093, India; 
Tel No.: +91 22 6263 8200; 
Email: investor@bigshareonline.com; 
Web: www.bigshareonline.com  
Web link to raise queries: 
https://www.bigshareonline.com/ContactUs.aspx

i) D. P. Abhushan Limited
Ms. Aashi Neema
Company Secretary and Compliance Officer
Address: 19, Chandani Chowk, Ratlam, 

Madhya Pradesh – 457 001, India
E-Mail: cs@dpjewellers.com; 
Tel No.: +91 7412 490 966; 
Fax No.: +91 7412 247 022 

ii) For transfer/dematerialization of shares, change 
    of address of members and other queries:

Registered Office Address: 138, Chandani Chowk, Ratlam, Madhya Pradesh–457 001, India
Tel No.: +91 7412 490 966; Fax No.: +91 7412 247 022, Website: www.dpjewellers.com; Email: cs@dpjewellers.com

Address of Correspondence

53

BANSWARA (RAJASTHAN)
Survey No. 292/62/1/1, Ground and Mezzanine Floor, 

Shyampura, Near Kumar Electronics Pratap Circle, 
Udaipur Road, 327001

UJJAIN (MP)
47/2, Kshapnak Marg, 

Madhav Nagar,  
456-010

BHILWARA (RAJASTHAN)
Ground and First Floor of 

Plot No. 56, Nagar Parishad, 
Rajendra Marg, 311 001

KOTA (RAJASTHAN)
141, Vallabhnagar Extention, 

324 007
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CREDIT RATINGS AND ANY
REVISION THERETO

The Company has not issued any debt instruments and does not have any fixed deposit programme or any 

scheme or proposal involving mobilization of funds in India or abroad during the financial year ended March 

31, 2022. The Company has not obtained any credit rating during the year.

DISCLOSURE:

The Audit Committee reviews the consolidated financial statements of the Company and the investments made 

by the unlisted subsidiary companies. The minutes of the Board meetings along with a report on significant 

developments of the unlisted subsidiary companies are periodically placed before the Board of Directors of the 

Company. A statement of all the significant transactions and arrangements, if any, entered into by the unlisted 

subsidiary companies were periodically brought to the attention of Board of Directors of the Company. The 

Company does not have any material unlisted Indian subsidiary company.

The Company has adopted the policy for determination of material subsidiary which is available at https:// 

www.dpjewellers.com/la-assets/dp/pdf/Policy%20for%20 Determining%20Material%20Subsidiaries.pdf

Regulation 24A of the Listing Regulations is not applicable to D.P. Jewelline Limited. The Company has sold its 

entire holding in D.P. Jewelline Limited (Formerly known as Gatha Trendz Limited) to related parties at a price 

arrived at in accordance with the applicable laws. Since, the D.P. Jewelline Limited (Formerly known as Gatha 

Trendz Limited) was not material subsidiary of the Company, the approval from Shareholders was not required.

During the year under review, besides the transactions reported in Note 35 forming part of the Financial 

Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 in the Annual Report, there were no other material related party 

transactions of the Company with its Promoters, Directors or the Management or their relatives and 

subsidiaries, associate company and joint venture. These transactions do not have any potential conflict with 

the interest of the Company at large. All related party transactions are placed before the Audit Committee of 

the Board periodically and placed for Board’s information, if required. Further there are no material individual 

transactions that are not in normal course of business or not on an arm’s length basis.

The Board has approved a policy for related party transactions which has been uploaded on the Company’s 

website. The policy is uploaded on the website of the Company at https://www.dpjewellers.com/la-

assets/dp/pdf/Policy_on_related_party_transaction.pdf.

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards 

(“Ind AS”) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian 

Accounting Standards) (Amendment) Rules, 2016 read with Section 133 of the Act.

Senior Management has made affirmations to the Board relating to all material financial and commercial 

transactions stating that they did not have personal interest that could result in a conflict with the interest of the 

Company at large.

SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION

DISCLOSURE OF ACCOUNTING TREATMENT

DISCLOSURE BY SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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CEO / CFO Certification

COMPLIANCES

RISK MANAGEMENT

DISCLOSURE OF COMMODITY PRICE RISKS AND COMMODITY 
HEDGING ACTIVITIES

PROCEEDS FROM PUBLIC ISSUES, RIGHTS ISSUES, PREFERENTIAL ISSUES 
ETC.

VIGIL MECHANISM

The Chairman and Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer have certified to the Board in accordance 
with Regulation 17(8) of the SEBI LODR pertaining to CEO/CFO certification for the financial year ended March 

31, 2022, which is attached as an Annexure – E2 to this Report.

Except, transactions in the securities of the Company by few Designated Persons and their relative during the 
closure of Trading Window and contra transactions in violation of Code of Internal Procedures and Conduct for 
Prevention of Insider Trading in Securities of D. P. Abhushan Limited for which the Company had already 
imposed penalty of Rupees 1,60,471/- and after collecting the same from Designated Persons and their relative, 
deposited it to the SEBI – IPEF as per SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/ISD/ISD/CIR/P/2020/135 dated July 23, 2020, 
there were neither any instances of non-compliance by the Company nor there were any penalties or strictures 
imposed on the Company by the Stock Exchange/(s) or SEBI or any statutory authority, on any matter related to 
Capital Markets, during the last three years.

Business risk evaluation and management is an ongoing process within the Company. During the year under 
review, the Management reviewed the risk management and minimization procedure adopted by the 
Company covering the business operations of the Company.

The Company is exposed to price fluctuations on account of gold prices and this is managed by way of; Gold 
price is directly driven by various international factors and stringent domestic government policies. The 
Company monitor the Gold price on a regular basis using pricing trends and forecasts from internationally 
reputed news agencies and international factors.

To mitigate the risk of gold price fluctuation, the Company follow the practice of buying the same quantity of 
gold which is sold by it on daily average basis. This practice acts as a natural hedging against gold price 
fluctuation.

The Company has not raised any funds through preferential allotment or qualified institutions placement.

The Company has a Vigil Mechanism wherein the directors/ employees/ associates can approach the 
Management of the Company (Audit Committee in case where the concern involves the Senior Management) 
and make protective disclosures to the Management about unethical behaviour, actual or suspected fraud or 
violation of the Company’s Code of Conduct, suspected leak of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information. The 
Vigil Mechanism requires every employee to promptly report to the Management any actual or possible 
violation of the Code or an event he/she becomes aware of that could affect the business or reputation of the 
Company. The disclosure reported are addressed in the manner and within the time frames prescribed in the 
policy. A mechanism is in place whereby any employee of the Company has access to the Chairman of the 
Audit Committee to report any concerns. 

No person has been denied access to the Chairman to report any concern. The Policy on Vigil Mechanism is 
ava i lab le  on the webs i te  o f  the Company a t  ht tps : //www.dpjewel le r s .com/la -
assets/dp/pdf/Vigil_Mechanism.pdf.
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TOTAL FEES PAID TO STATUTORY AUDITORS OF THE COMPANY

DISCLOSURE RELATING TO SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT 
WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

SECRETARIAL COMPLIANCE REPORT

COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REQUIREMENTS 
SPECIFIED IN REGULATION 17 TO 27 AND CLAUSES (B) TO (I) OF SUB-
REGULATION (2) OF REGULATION 46 OF LISTING REGULATIONS

Total fees of 14.10 Lakh plus applicable GST for financial year 2021-22, for all services, was paid by the 
Company to the statutory auditor and all entities in the network firm/network entity of which the statutory auditor 
is a part.

The Company has in place an effective mechanism for dealing with complaints relating to sexual harassment at 

workplace. The details relating to the number of complaints received and disposed of during the financial year 

2021-22 are prescribed under Board’s Report forming part of this Annual Report.

SEBI vide its Circular No. CIR/CFD/CMD1/27/2019 dated 8th February, 2019 read with Regulation 24(A) of the Listing 

Regulations, directed listed entities to conduct Annual Secretarial compliance audit from a Practicing Company 

Secretary of all applicable SEBI Regulations and circulars/guidelines issued thereunder. The said Secretarial 

Compliance report is in addition to the Secretarial Audit Report by Practicing Company Secretaries under Form MR 

– 3 and is required to be submitted to Stock Exchanges within 60 days of the end of the financial year. 

Accordingly, the Company has engaged the services of Mr. Anand Lavingia (CP No. 11410), Practicing Company 
Secretary and Secretarial Auditor of the Company for providing this certification. The said Secretarial Compliance 
Report has been annexed as Annexure–F-2 to the Board’s Report forming part of this Annual Report.
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Disclosures of Loans and Advances by the Company and its subsidiaries 

D.P. Jewelline 
Limited

Amount Given 
(INR in Lakh)

Amount 
Received Back 
(INR in Lakh)

Given By Given To Relations
Outstanding Amount 
as at March 31, 2022 

(INR in Lakh)
D. P. Abhushan 

Limited
Holding - 
Subsidiary 19.00 117.70 117.78

The compliance status reported hereunder are for the period April 1, 2021 to March 31, 2022 only.

Disclosures on the website:

I. Disclosure on website in terms of Listing Regulations

As per regulation 46(2) of the LODR:

Details of business Yes https://www.dpjewellers.com/about

Terms and conditions of https://www.dpjewellers.com/la-assets/dp/pdf/
appointment of Yes TERMS%20AND%20CONDITION%20OF%20
independent directors APPOINTMENT%20OF%20INDEPENDENT%20

DIRECTORS.pdf

Web addressItem
Compliance status 

(Yes/ No/NA)
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Composition of various committees https://www.dpjewellers.com/la-assets/dp/pdf/
of board of directors Yes COMPOSITION%20OF%20COMMITTEE%20OF

%20BOARD%20OF%20DIRECTORS.pdf

Code of conduct of board of https://www.dpjewellers.com/a-assets/dp/
directors and senior management Yes pdf/Code_of_Conduct.pdf
personnel

Details of establishment of vigil Yes https://www.dpjewellers.com/la-assets/dp/ 
mechanism/ Whistle Blower policy  pdf/Vigil_Mechanism.pdf

Criteria of making payments to https://www.dpjewellers.com/la-assets/dp/
non-executive directors Yes pdf/Nomination_Remuneration_Policy.pdf

Policy on dealing with related https://www.dpjewellers.com/la-assets/dp/
party transactions Yes pdf/Policy_on_related_party_transaction.pdf

Policy for determining ‘material’ https://www.dpjewellers.com/la-assets/dp/pdf/
subsidiaries Yes Policy%20for%20Determining% 20Material% 

20Subsidiaries.pdf

Details of familiarization programs https://www.dpjewellers.com/la-assets/dp/pdf/
imparted to independent directors Yes Familiarization%20Programme%20DPAL.pdf

Email address for grievance redressal https://www.dpjewellers.com/la-assets/dp/pdf/
and other relevant details entity who Yes GRIEVANCES%20REDRESSAL.pdf
are responsible for assisting and 
handling investor grievances

Contact information of the designated https://www.dpjewellers.com/la-assets/dp/pdf/
officials of the listed entity who are Yes GRIEVANCES%20REDRESSAL.pdf
responsible for assisting and handling 
investor grievances other relevant details

Financial results Yes https://www.dpjewellers.com/

Shareholding pattern Yes https://www.dpjewellers.com/

Details of agreements entered into with Not 
the media companies and/or their Applicable
associates

Schedule of analyst or institutional 
investor meet and presentations made Yes https://www.dpjewellers.com/
by the listed entity to analysts or 
institutional investors simultaneously with  
submission to stock exchange

New name and the old name of the  Not 
listed entity Applicable

Advertisements as per regulation 47 (1) Yes https://www.dpjewellers.com/

Credit rating or revision in credit rating Not 
obtained by the entity for all its  Applicable
outstanding instruments obtained

Separate audited financial statements of 
each subsidiary of the listed entity in 
respect of a relevant financial year Yes https://www.dpjewellers.com/

As per other regulations of the LODR:

Whether company has provided 
information under separate section on Yes https://www.dpjewellers.com/
its website as per Regulation 46(2)

Materiality Policy as per Regulation 30 Yes https://www.dpjewellers.com/la-assets/dp/pdf/ 
Policy_on_Determing_the_Material_Events.pdf

Dividend Distribution policy as per Not 
Regulation 43A (as applicable) Applicable

It is certified that these contents on Yes it is certified that these contents on
the website of the listed entity are correct. Yes the website of the Company are correct.
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Regulation wise compliances:

Compliance status 
(Yes/No/NA)Particulars

Regulation 
Number

Independent director(s) have been appointed in terms of 16(1) (b) & 25(6) Yes
specified criteria of ‘independence’ and/or ‘eligibility’

Board composition 17(1), 17(1A) & 17(1B) Yes

Meeting of Board of directors directors 17(2) Yes

Quorum of Board meeting 17(2A) Yes

Review of Compliance Reports 17(3) Yes

Plans for orderly succession for appointments 17(4) Yes

Code of Conduct 17(5) Yes

Fees/compensation 17(6) Yes

Minimum Information 17(7) Yes

Compliance Certificate 17(8) Yes

Risk Assessment & Management 17(9) Yes

Performance Evaluation of Independent Directors 17(10) Yes

Recommendation of Board 17(11) Yes

Maximum number of directorship 17A Yes

Composition of Audit Committee 18(1) Yes

Meeting of Audit Committee 18(2) Yes

Compositi on of nomination & remuneration committee 19(1) & (2) Yes

Quorum of Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
meeting 19(2A) Yes

Meeting of nomination & remuneration committee 19(3A) Yes

Composition of Stakeholder Relationship Committee 20(1), 20(2) and 20(2A) Yes

Meeting of stakeholder relationship committee 20(3A) Yes

Composition and role of risk management committee 21(1),(2),(3),(4) Not Applicable

Meeting of Risk Management Committee 22 Not Applicable

Vigil Mechanism 22 Yes

Policy for related party Transaction 23(1),(1A),(5),(6),(7) & (8) Yes

Prior or Omnibus approval of Audit Committee for all 
related party transactions 23(2), (3) Yes

Approval for material related party transactions 23(4) Not Applicable

Disclosure of related party transactions on consolidated 
basis 23(9) Yes

Composition of Board of Directors of unlisted material 
Subsidiary 24(1) Not Applicable

Other Corporate Governance requirements with respect 24(2),(3),(4),(5) & (6) Yes
to subsidiary of listed entity

Annual Secretarial Compliance Report 24(A) Yes

Alternate Director to Independent Director 25(1) Not Applicable

Maximum Tenure 25(2) Yes

Meeting of independent directors 25(3) & (4) Yes

Familiarization of independent directors 25(7) Yes

Declaration from Independent Director 25(8) & (9) Yes

II Annual Affirmations
Company
Remark
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D & O Insurance for Independent Directors 25(10) Not Applicable

Memberships in Committees 26(1) Yes

Affirmation with compliance to code of conduct from 26(3) Yes
members of Board of Directors and Senior management 
personnel

Disclosure of Shareholding by Non- Executive Directors 26(4) Yes

Policy with respect to Obligations of directors and 26(2) & 26(5) Yes
senior management

DETAILS OF COMPLIANCE WITH MANDATORY REQUIREMENTS

ADOPTION OF NON-MANDATORY REQUIREMENTS

à

à

COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE OF THE AUDITORS

During the period April1, 2021 to March 31, 2022, the Company has complied with the applicable mandatory 

requirements as specified under Regulation 15 to 27 of SEBI LODR. 

The Company has adopted following non-mandatory requirements as prescribed under Regulation 27(1) read 

with Part E of Schedule II of the SEBI LODR.

There is no modified opinion given in the Auditors’ Report on Financial Statements.

The internal auditor directly reports to audit committee.

A Certificate from the Auditors of the Company Mr. Anand Lavingia, Practicing Company Secretary, 

Ahmedabad confirming the compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated under 

Clause E of Schedule V of the SEBI LODR Regulations is attached as an Annexure – E3 to this Report.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
For, D. P. ABHUSHAN LIMITED
CIN: L74999MP2017PLC043234

Registered Office:      
138, Chandani Chowk, Ratlam, 
Madhya Pradesh- 457001

Anil Kataria
Whole time Director

DIN 00092730

Date: August 7, 2022
Place: Ratlam

Santosh Kataria
Chairman and Managing Director

DIN: 02855068

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
For, D. P. ABHUSHAN LIMITED
CIN: L74999MP2017PLC043234

Registered Office:      
138, Chandani Chowk, Ratlam, 
Madhya Pradesh- 457001

Santosh Kataria
Chairman and Managing Director

DIN: 02855068

Date: August 7, 2022
Place: Ratlam

I, Santosh Kataria, Chairman and Managing Director of D. P. Abhushan Limited hereby declare that as of March 

31, 2022, all the Board Members and Senior Management Personnel have affirmed compliance with the Code 

of Conduct and Ethics for Directors and Senior Management Personnel laid down by the Company.

DECLARATION
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Annexure - E1

(refer Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C Clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

To, 

The Members, 

D. P. ABHUSHAN LIMITED

138 Chandani Chowk, 

Ratlam, Madhya Pradesh – 457 001, India

I have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of D. 

P. Abhushan Limited (CIN: L74999MP2017PLC043234) and having registered office at 138, Chandani Chowk, 

Ratlam – 457 001, Madhya Pradesh (hereinafter referred to as “the Company”), produced before me by the 

Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V 

Para-C Sub Clause (10)(i) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the verifications (including Directors 

Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations 

furnished to me by the Company & its officers, I hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the 

Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending on March 31, 2022 have been debarred or disqualified 

from being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such other Statutory Authority.

Anand Sureshbhai Lavingia
Practicing Company Secretary

ACS No.: 26458           C P No.: 11410
Peer Review Certificate Number: 1589/2021 

UDIN: A026458D000755505   

Place: Ahmedabad
Date: August 7, 2022

Sr. 
No.

Director Identification 
Number

Date of Appointment 
in the Company*Name of Directors

1. Mr. Anil Kataria 00092730 January 26, 2022

2. Mr. Santosh Kataria 02855068 May 2, 2017

3. Mrs. Renu Kataria 07751330 June 20, 2017

4. Mr. Mukesh Kumar Jain 00653837 July 15, 2017

5. Mr. Sanskar Kothari 06779404 July 16, 2018

6. Mr. Deepak Gadia 08782782 August 8, 2020

* As per website of Ministry of Corporate Affairs.

It shall be noted that ensuring the eligibility for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the 

responsibility of the management of the Company. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on 

my verification. 

This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or 

effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.
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Annexure - E2

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (CEO) AND CHIEF FINANCIAL 
OFFICER (CFO) CERTIFICATION AS PER REGULATION 17 (8) 

OF THE SEBI LODR
To,

The Board of Directors

D. P. Abhushan Limited

138, Chandani Chowk, 

Ratlam – 457 001, Madhya Pradesh

CERTIFICATION TO THE BOARD PURSUANT TO REGULATION 17 (8) OF SEBI LODR 

We, Santosh Kataria, Chairman and Managing Director and Vijesh Kumar Kasera, Chief Financial Officer, 

hereby certify that in respect of the Financial Year ended on March 31, 2022:

1. we have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statements for the year, and that to the best of 

our knowledge and belief: 

a) these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain 

statements that might be misleading; 

b) these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance with 

existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations; 

2. there are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the 

year which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s Code of Conduct; 

3. we accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and we 

have evaluated the effectiveness of the internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial 

reporting and we have disclosed to the auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or 

operation of internal control, if any, of which we are aware and the steps taken or proposed to be taken to 

rectify the same; 

4. we have indicated to the auditors and the Audit Committee:-

a) significant changes, if any, in internal control over financial reporting during the year; 

b) significant changes, if any, in accounting policies during the year and the same have been disclosed in the 

notes to the financial statements; and 

c) Instances of significant fraud, if any, wherein there has been involvement of management or an employee 

having a significant role in the Company’s internal control system over financial reporting.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
For, D. P. ABHUSHAN LIMITED
CIN: L74999MP2017PLC043234

Registered Office:      
138, Chandani Chowk, Ratlam, 
Madhya Pradesh- 457001

Santosh Kataria
Chairman and Managing Director

DIN 02855068

Date: August 7, 2022
Place: Ratlam

Vijesh Kumar Kasera
Chief Financial Officer 
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Annexure - E3

(Refer Chapter IV of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

CERTIFICATE ON COMPLIANCE WITH THE CONDITIONS OF 
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

To, 

The Members, 

D. P. ABHUSHAN LIMITED

138 Chandani Chowk, 

Ratlam, Madhya Pradesh – 457 001, India

The Corporate Governance Report prepared by D. P. Abhushan Limited(“the Company”), contains details as 

specified in Regulations 17 to 27, Sub-Regulation (2) of Regulation 46 and para C, D and E of Schedule V of 

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, 

as amended (“the Listing Regulations”), to the extent applicable, with respect to Corporate Governance for the 

year ended March 31, 2022. This report is required by the Company for submission to the Shareholders of the 

Company.

Management’s Responsibility 

The preparation of the Corporate Governance Report is the responsibility of the Management of the Company 

including the preparation and maintenance of all relevant supporting records and documents. This 

responsibility also includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the 

preparation and presentation of the Corporate Governance Report. 

The Management along with the Board of Directors are also responsible for ensuring that the Company 

complies with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the Listing Regulations, issued by the 

Securities and Exchange Board of India.

Auditor’s Responsibility

My responsibility is to provide a reasonable assurance in the form of an opinion whether the Company has 

complied with the condition of Corporate Governance, as stipulated in the Listing Regulations.

The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks associated in 

compliance of the Corporate Governance Report with the applicable criteria. The procedures includes but not 

limited to verification of secretarial records and financial information of the Company and obtained necessary 

representations and declarations from directors including independent directors of the Company. 

The procedures also include examining evidence supporting the particulars in the Corporate Governance 

Report on a test basis. Further, my scope of work under this report did not involve me performing audit tests for 

the purposes of expressing an opinion on the fairness or accuracy of any of the financial information or the 

financial statements of the Company taken as a whole.

Opinion 

Based on the procedures performed by me as referred above and according to the information and 

explanations given to me, I am of the opinion that;

the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as specified in the Regulations 

17 to 27, Sub-Regulation (2) of Regulation 46 and para C, D and E of Schedule V, to the extent applicable to 

the Company during the period April1, 2021 to March 31, 2022.
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as regards Discretionary Requirements specified in Part E of Schedule II of the SEBI (Listing Obligations 

and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Company has complied with items C and E.

Other Matters and Restriction on use 

This report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness 

with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

This report is addressed to and provided to the members of the Company solely for the purpose of enabling it to 

comply with its obligations under the Listing Regulations and should not be used by any other person or for any 

other purpose. Accordingly, I do not accept or assume any liability or any duty of care or for any other purpose 

or to any other party to whom it is shown or into whose hands it may come without my prior consent in writing. I 

have no responsibility to update this report for events and circumstances occurring after the date of this report.

Place: Ahmedabad
Date: August 7, 2022 
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Annexure - F1

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
Form No. MR-3

To, 

The Members, 

D. P. ABHUSHAN LIMITED

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence 
to good corporate practices by D. P. Abhushan Limited (hereinafter called ‘the Company’). Secretarial Audit was 
conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory 
compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other 
records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents 
and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report that in my opinion read 
with Annexure - I forming part of this report, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial 
year ended on March 31, 2022, complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the 
Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and 
subject to the reporting made hereinafter.

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the 
Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2022 according to the provisions of:

i. The Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the rules made there under as applicable;

ii. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (“SCRA”) and the rules made there under;

iii. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under;

iv. The Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 (FEMA) and the rules and regulations made there under to 
the extent of Foreign Direct Investment;

v. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 
1992 (“SEBI Act”):-

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 
2011;

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 2018;

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 and Listing Agreement entered with National Stock Exchange of India Limited; and

vi. The Revised Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules made there 
under, Regulations, Guidelines etc. mentioned above, to the extent applicable, except few Designated Persons 
and their relative had transacted in the securities of the Company during the closure of Trading Window and 
also initiated contra transactions in violation of Code of Internal Procedures and Conduct for Prevention of 
Insider Trading in Securities of D. P. Abhushan Limited. There was also a disclosures lapse by the relative of one 
of the Designated Person. The Company had already imposed penalty of Rupees 1,60,471/- and after collecting 
the same from Designated Persons and their relative, deposited it to the SEBI – IPEF as per SEBI Circular No. 
SEBI/HO/ISD/ISD/CIR/P/2020/135 dated July 23, 2020.

65

FIFTH ANNUAL REPORT 2021-22



D.P. ABHUSHAN LIMITEDD.P. ABHUSHAN LIMITED

Further company being engaged in the business of manufacturing and trading of precious metal’s ornaments, 
there are few specific and general applicable laws to the Company, which are list out in the Annexure – II, which 
require approvals or compliances under the respective laws. We have relied on the representation made by the 
Company and its officers for system and mechanism framed by the Company for compliances of the said 
specific and general acts/rules.

During the Period under review, provisions of the following Acts, Rules, Regulations and Standards were not 
applicable to the Company;

i. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 
1993 and circulars/ guidelines/Amendments issued there under; - the Company is not registered as 
Registrar to an Issue & Share Transfer Agent. However, the Company has appointed Bigshare Services 
Private Limited as Registrar & Share Transfer Agent as per the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015;

ii. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2018 and circulars/ guidelines/Amendments issued there under;

iii. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021 (erstwhile 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009) and circulars/ 
guidelines/Amendments issued there under;

iv. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008 and 
circulars/ guidelines/Amendments issued there under;

v. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) 
Regulations, 2021 (erstwhile Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) 
Regulations, 2014) and circulars/ guidelines/Amendments issued there under;

vi. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018 and circulars/ 
guidelines/Amendments issued there under; and

vii. The Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to the extent 
of Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings.

I further report that -

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with Executive Directors, Non-Executive Director, 
Independent Directors and Woman Director in accordance with the act. The changes in the composition of the 
Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the 
provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on 
agenda were sent in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and 
clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. 

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views, if any, are captured and recorded as 
part of the minutes.

I further report that -

There are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of the 
Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

I further report that -

During the year under review, the Company has made disinvestment in its wholly owned subsidiary - 
D.P.Jewelline Limited (Formerly known as Gatha Trendz Limited) w.e.f January 25, 2022 and sale entire stake of 
D.P.Jewelline Limited (Formerly known as Gatha Trendz Limited) to related parties.

Place: Ahmedabad
Date:  August 7, 2022

Note: This Report is to be read with my letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure – I and Annexure - II which form integral 
part of this report.
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Annexure - I

To,

The Members,

D. P. ABHUSHAN LIMITED

My report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the Company. My 

responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on my audit.

2. I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance 

about the correctness of the contents of secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis, on the 

records and documents provided by the Management of the Company, to ensure that correct facts are 

reflected in secretarial records. I believe that the processes and practices followed by me provide a 

reasonable basis for my opinion.

3. In respect of laws, rules and regulations other than those specifically mentioned in my report above, 

including the laws, rules and regulations mentioned in Annexure II, I have limited my review, analysis and 

reporting up to process and system adopted by the Company for compliance with the same and have not 

verified detailed compliance, submissions, reporting under such laws etc. nor verified correctness and 

appropriateness thereof including financial records and books of accounts of the Company. 

4. Wherever required, I have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules 

and regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, Rules, Regulations, standards 

and its proper and adequate presentation and submission in prescribed formats is the responsibility of 

management. My examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis and not its one to 

one contents.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to compliance in totality or the future viability of the 

Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the 

Company.
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Annexure - II

List of major Specific and General Acts applicable to the Company

1. The Bureau of Indian Standards Act, 2016 erstwhile Bureau of Indian Standards Act, 1986

2. The Legal Metrology Act, 2009

3. The BIS Scheme for hallmarking of Gold and Silver Jewellery

4. The Standards of Weights and Measures Act, 1976

5. The Electricity Act, 2015

6. The Articles of Jewellery (Collection of Duty) Rules, 2016

7. The Design Act, 2000 

8. The Trade Marks Act, 1999 under Intellectual Property Law

9. The Central Electricity Regulatory Commission (Terms and Conditions for Tariff determination from 

Renewable Energy Sources) Regulations, 2017 

10. The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

11. The Income Tax Act, 1961

12. The Central and State Goods and Services Acts and various rules made there under

13. The Indian Contract Act,1872

14. The Negotiable Instrument Act, 1881

15. The Arbitration & Conciliation Act, 1996

16. The Maternity Benefit Act, 1961

17. The Employee Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1951 

18. The Foreign Trade (Development & Regulation) Act, 1992

19. The Minimum Wages Act,1948 & Rules there under

20. The Payment of Bonus Act,1965 & the Payment of Bonus Rules,1975

21. The Payment of Gratuity Act and the Payment of Gratuity (Central) Rules,1972

22. The Payment of Wages Act,1936 & Rules there under

23. The Employees’ State Insurance Act,1948 and the Employees’ State Insurance (General) Regulation,1950

24. The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013

25. The Shops and Establishment Act/Rules
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Annexure - F2

for the year ended on March 31, 2022

ANNUAL SECRETARIAL COMPLIANCE REPORT
SECRETARIAL COMPLIANCE REPORT OF 

D. P. ABHUSHAN LIMITED 

I, Anand Sureshbhai Lavingia, Practicing Company Secretary, have examined:

(a) all the documents and records made available to me and explanation provided by D. P. Abhushan Limited 
(“the Company”),

(b) the filings/ submissions made by the Company to the stock exchange,

(c) website of the Company and 

(d) all other document/ filing, as may be relevant, which has been relied upon to make this certification,

for the financial year ended on March 31, 2022 (“Review Period”) in respect of compliance with the 
provisions of;

(a) the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (“SEBI Act”) and the Regulations, circulars, guidelines 
issued thereunder; and

(b) the Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (“SCRA”), rules made thereunder and the Regulations, 
circulars, guidelines issued thereunder by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”);

(c) The specific Regulations, whose provisions and the circulars/ guidelines issued thereunder, have been 
examined, include;

i. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015;

ii. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 
Regulations, 2011;

iii. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

iv. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 2018;

v. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2018;

vi. circulars/ guidelines/Amendments issued thereunder,

and based on the above examination, I hereby report that, during the Review Period;

(a) The Company has complied with the provisions of the above Regulations and circulars/ guidelines issued 

thereunder to the extent applicable and in the manner prescribed, except in respect of matters specified 

below;

Sr. 
No. Deviations

Observations/ Remarks of 
the Practicing Company 

Secretary

Compliance Requirement 
(Regulations/ circulars / 

guidelines including 
specific clause)

No trading in the Company’ securities 
during the period when the Trading 
Window is closed.
All Designated Persons who buy or sell 
any number of shares of the Company 
shall not enter into an opposite 
transaction i.e. sell or buy any number of 
shares during the next six months 
following the prior transaction.
Code of Internal Procedures and Conduct 
for Prevention of Insider Trading in 
Securities of D. P. Abhushan Limited.
Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Prohibi t ion of  Ins ider Trading) 
Regulations, 2015.

Few Designated Persons 
and their relative had 
initiated transactions in the 
securities of the Company 
during the closure of 
Trading Window and also 
i n i t i a t e d  c o n t r a  
transactions in violation of 
C o d e  o f  I n t e r n a l  
Procedures and Conduct 
for Prevention of Insider 
Trading in Securities of D. P. 
Abhushan Limited. There 
was also a disclosures 
lapse by the relative of one 
of the Designated Person.

T h e  C o m p a n y  s h a l l  
continuously monitor any 
types of dealings by the 
Designated Person in the 
securities of the Company. 

As per the submission by the 
Company, it had already 
Imposed penalty of Rupees 
1,60,471/- and after collecting 
the same from Designated 
Persons and their relative, 
deposited it to the SEBI – IPEF 
as per SEBI Circular No. 
SEBI/HO/ISD/ISD/CIR/P/202
0/135 dated July 23, 2020.

1
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SEBI  C i rcu lar  No.  
SEBI/HO/ISD/ISD/CIR/
P/2020/168 dated 
September 9, 2020.

The company has not provided the information 
including PAN number of Promoter(s) 
including member(s) of the promoter group, 
designated person(s) and director(s) as per 
PIT Regulations to the designated depository.

The Company has provided 
the said information on 
June 30, 2021.

2

(b) The Company has maintained proper records under the provisions of the above Regulations and circulars/ 
guidelines issued thereunder insofar as it appears from my examination of those records.

(c) The following are the details of actions taken against the Company / its promoters/ directors/ material 
subsidiaries either by SEBI or by Stock Exchanges (including under the Standard Operating Procedures 
issued by SEBI through various circulars) under the aforesaid Acts/ Regulations and circulars/ guidelines 
issued thereunder:

Sr. 
No. Details of violation

Details of action taken 
E.g. fines, warning letter, 

debarment, etc.

Action taken 
by

NIL NIL NIL1

Observations/ remarks 
of the Practicing 

Company Secretary, if any.

NIL

(d) The Company has taken the following actions to comply with the observations made in previous reports:

Sr. 
No.

Observations made 
in the secretarial 

compliance report 
for the year ended 

Actions taken by 
the Company, 

if any

Observations of the 
Practicing Company 

Secretary in the 
previous reports*

1

Comments of the 
Practicing Company 

Secretary on the actions 
taken by the Company

March 31, 2021

I further report that, during the review period, following regulations issued by the Securities and Exchange 
Board of India were not applicable to the Company, since there were no such instances occurred during the 
review period that requires the compliance under the said regulations;

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018;
(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) 

Regulations, 2021 (erstwhile Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) 
Regulations, 2014);

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021 (erstwhile 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009);

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008;
(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) 

Regulations, 2021 (erstwhile Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-
Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares) Regulations, 2013), and

(f) circulars/ guidelines/Amendments issued thereunder.
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Delay of 1 day in submission of 
statement giving the number of 
investor complaints pending at 
the beginning of the quarter, 
those received during the 
quarter, disposed of during the 
quarter and those remaining 
unresolved at the end of the 
quarter - September, 2020.

The Exchange had 
levied penalty of 
` 1, 180 including 
GST which was 
p a i d  b y  t h e  
Company. 

T h e  C o mp a ny  i s  
a d v i s e d  t o  t a ke  
precautions for the 
regular compliances.

2 March 31, 2021De lay  in  p rov id ing the  
information including PAN 
number of Promoter(s) including 
member(s) of the promoter 
group, designated person(s) 
and director(s) as per PIT 
Regulations to the designated 
depository.

The Company has 
already provided 
t h e  s a i d  
informat ion on 
June 30, 2021.

T h e  C o mp a ny  i s  
a d v i s e d  t o  t a ke  
precautions for the 
regular updation of 
PAN of promoter group, 
designated person(s) 
and director(s) as per 
PIT Regulations to the 
designated depository.

Place: Hyderabad
Date:  May 30, 2022

Anand Sureshbhai Lavingia
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INDUSTRY OVERVIEW AND MARKET SIZE

MARKET SIZE

INVESTMENTS/DEVELOPMENTS

India gems and jewellery market is anticipated to project robust growth in the forecast period, FY2022-FY2027, 

with a CAGR of 8.34% on account of changing lifestyle, rising disposable income, changing consumer 

preferences of branded jewellery products, and growing urbanization. Other major factors such as product 

innovation and technological advancements, the introduction of new jewellery segments by market players 

such as men’s jewellery, costume jewellery, lightweight jewellery, etc., are anticipated to further drive the growth 

of the India gems and jewellery market in the upcoming five years. Gold is a significant component of the 

country's culture, serving as a symbol of wealth and prestige, a store of value, and an essential factor of 

numerous celebrations. Gemstones such as ruby and others are making a big contribution to the shifting 

fashion trends, particularly among the elite and upper-middle classes. Moreover, in order to ensure the 

authenticity of gold and diamonds, jewellery manufacturing companies are investing in a number of 

technologies. The Jewellery division has pioneered and implemented various innovative technologies in the 

industry, including 3D wax printing, computerized numerical control, etc. The gems and jewellery industry 

represents approximately 7% of GDP and 10% to 12% of total goods exports in the country. The majority of gems 

and jewellery businesses are selling their products through e-commerce channels as well as coming up with 

innovative digital features to enhance their presence on the digital platform to further increase their consumer 

base. Based on its potential for growth and value addition, the Government declared the gems and jewellery 

sector as a focus area for export promotion. The Government has undertaken various measures recently to 

promote investment and upgrade technology and skills to promote ‘Brand India’ in the international market.

India’s gems and jewellery exports reached US$ 39.14 billion in 2021-22, a 54.13% rise from the previous year. 

India ranks first among the top exporters in cut & polished diamonds, and second in gold jewellery, silver 

jewellery and lab-grown diamonds.

The cumulative foreign direct investment (FDI) inflows in diamond and gold ornaments stood at US$ 1,213.05 

million between April, 2000 – March, 2022. In September 2021, Malabar Group invested ̀  750 crore (US$ 100 

million) in a gold refinery and jewellery unit in Hyderabad.

Some of the key developments in this industry are listed below:

In September 2021, Malabar Group invested Rs. 750 crore (US$ 100 million) in a gold refinery and jewellery 

unit in Hyderabad.

In May 2021, GJEPC and Embassy of India, Morocco, co-hosted the ‘India Global Connect’ to better 

understand the present business climate in the gems and jewellery sector and seek trade prospects for 

manufacturers, exporters and importers from both countries.

The GJEPC will organise its first International Gems and Jewellery Show (IGJS) outside the country, in Dubai, 

from August 14-16, 2021. It will also hold a five-day physical exhibition—India International Jewellery show 

(IIJS-2021)-in Bengaluru from September 15-19, 2021, in a first such event outside Mumbai. GJPEC sources 

said that >250 buyers have registered and >95 stalls have been booked for Dubai IGJS 2021. There will be 

150 booths having products such as plain gold, gold-studded jewellery, diamond-studded jewellery, silver 

jewellery, loose diamonds and gemstones.
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In June 2021, Tanishq launched antimicrobial jewellery in certain markets as a pilot project. Currently, the 

range is available in stores across Chennai and Lucknow, with further launches planned in Kolkata and 

Hyderabad followed by other key markets. Antimicrobial jewellery is being offered in categories such as 

chains and rings, which feature special-coated layers that self-disinfect the surface and impede any further 

microbial growth.

In June 2021, the World Gold Council and Gem and Jewellery Export Promotion Council signed an 

agreement to promote gold jewellery in India. Under the agreement terms, both partners will jointly fund a 

multi-media marketing campaign that would aim to increase awareness, relevance and adoption of gold 

jewellery amongst Indian consumers, especially in millennials and Gen Z.

In April 2021, Malabar Gold & Diamonds announced to invest Rs. 1,600 crore (US$ 214 million) in FY22 to 

launch 56 stores, of which 40 would be in India and 16 across global markets. In India, stores will be opened 

in Tamil Nadu, Telangana, Andhra Pradesh, Karnataka, Maharashtra, Delhi, West Bengal, Uttar Pradesh, 

Odisha and Kerala. In July 2021, the company announced hiring of >5,000 staff, across its retail operations, 

brand headquarters and regional offices in the country.

In March 2021, Joyalukkas collaborated with IBM Global Business Services to design, develop and deploy a 

new cloud-native e-commerce platform across 11 countries including India, the UAE, the US, the UK, 

Singapore, Malaysia, Bahrain, Qatar, Saudi Arabia, Kuwait and Oman.

In February 2021, Reliance expanded its e-commerce arm, JioMart, to jewellery with silver coins of 5gm 

and10 gm, and gold coins of 1gm, 5gm and 10gm.10gm.

Reliance's in-house jewellery brand, Reliance Jewels, which has~93 flagship showrooms and 110 shop-in-

shops in 105 cities in the country, will fulfil the orders for the new segment.

The Government of India (GoI) has taken various measures to promote investment for growth of the sector, such 

as gold monetization scheme revamp, reduction in import duty of gold, reduction in import duty on cut & 

polished diamonds from 7% to 5% and implementing mandatory hallmarking. Under various other schemes, 

about 90% assistance is provided by government of India for setting up of common production/processing 

centers, design centers, testing facilities including plug & play facilities. Marketing hubs / exhibition centers by 

associations are also receiving the Government of India’s assistance of up to 80% of project cost. Additionally. 

The government has allowed extension of emergency credit line guarantee scheme (ECLGS) for MSMEs up to 

March 2023. Over 90% of units in gems and jewellery sector are MSMEs.

The Government of India has recently laid out four steps to grow the gems and jewellery industry in the country. 

The focus is to be given to the creation of patented designs to increase value, diversification of the exported 

products, collaborate with other nations for cost-effective methods and promotion of lab-grown diamonds. In 

addition to this, the GJEPC (Gems Jewellery Export Promotion Council) arranges several trade shows, buyer-

seller meets and expositions to increase the exposure of Indian goods.

In the coming years, growth in gems and jewellery sector would largely be contributed by the development of 

large retailers/brands. Established brands are guiding the organised market and are opening opportunities to 

grow. Increasing penetration of organised players provides variety in terms of products and designs. Online 

sales are expected to account for 1–2% of the fine jewellery segment by 2021–22. Also, the relaxation of 

restrictions of gold import is likely to provide a fillip to the industry. The improvement in availability along with 

the reintroduction of low-costold metal loans and likely stabilisation of gold prices at lower levels is expected to 

drive volume growth for jewellers over short to medium term. The demand for jewellery is expected to be 

significantly supported by the recent positive developments in the industry.

GOVERNMENT INITIATIVES

ROAD AHEAD 

FIFTH ANNUAL REPORT 2021-22



SEGMENT WISE PERFORMANCE 
As per Indian Accounting Standard 108 on 'Operating Segment’ (Ind AS 108), effective from 01st April, 2021 the 

company has only one reportable segment i.e. Gems & Jewellery which includes Wholesale and Retail Trade 

and Manufacturing of Jewellery and Ornaments.

D.P. ABHUSHAN LIMITEDD.P. ABHUSHAN LIMITED

OUTLOOK
India will be the fourth-largest gold recycling country in 2021, recycling 75 tonnes, or 6.5% of all gold recycled 

globally. According to the WGC report, 11% of India's gold supply originated from 'old gold' during the last five 

years, driven by changes in the gold price, future gold price forecasts, and the wider economic outlook. The 

comprehensive trade deal between India and the UAE will assist create massive job opportunities and 

enhance domestic economic growth. Within five years, the bilateral accord, officially known as the 

Comprehensive Economic Partnership Agreement (CEPA), is expected to expand bilateral commerce in goods 

to more than US$ 100 billion and trade in services to more than US$ 15 billion.

OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS
OPPORTUNITIES:

Rising government support

Rise in consumer preferences for diamond jewelry as a mark of fashion statement

Rise in purchasing power of Consumers

The Company is ahead of others as it a well- known brand 

THREATS:

Shift in consumer needs and priorities to need base products from luxury products due to COVID-19

Increasing competition from new entrants as well as existing ones

Lack of control over the cost, may lead to lower profitability and can impact future growth prospects

Risks associated with fluctuations in the price of gold

Sluggish sales of products due to seasonal changes may affect profitability of the Company

RISKS AND CONCERNS

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

Due to stiff competition in the retail trade, there is a possibility that our market share from a particular place of 

operation or region may decline. A lot of new entrants to the retail trade suffer from lack of knowledge of 

customer’s preference and on quality parameters and price war. Therefore, your company with its fuller 

penetration to rural market is well placed to participate in the rural success story of the country. In order to 

maintain/improve market share in the areas we operate in the light of sagging regressive demand trends, we 

have cautiously brought down the mark up value for our products moderately and also improved customer 

service through online and offline mode. Providing product knowledge, the customers to buy a quality product 

in the market. 

The Company has effective internal control systems in place, which are regularly reviewed by independent 

Internal Auditors of the Company and the internal audit reports are periodically reviewed by Audit Committee. 

The Company also undergoes a rigorous audit process along with other items for stock, cash etc. at stipulated 

intervals by Statutory Auditors, Stock Auditors appointed by the Bank and Internal Auditors. 

The Company has also put in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to the financial 

statements commensurate with the size and nature of operations of the Company. Based on the assessment 

carried out by an independent agency and the evaluation of the results of the assessment, the Board of 

Directors are of the opinion that the Company has adequate internal controls over financial reporting that are 

operating effectively as of March 31, 2022. The Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting 

continue to operate effectively even during the lockdown.

74

ü

ü

ü

ü

ü

ü

ü

ü

ü



KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS
Details of key financial ratios of the Company, changes therein as compared to previous financial year along 

with explanations for those ratios where change is 25% or more are as under:

Inventory Turnover Times 5.17 3.81 35.77% Inventory Turn Ratio increase, which is a 
positive sign for company.

Interest Coverage Ratio Times 5.55 5.23 6.17% The Company has enough profits 
available to service its debt properly, 
High Interest Coverage Ratio defines 
that risk of lending capital to company 
is minimal.

D. P. Abhushan Limited making 
optimum utilization of its debt.

Current Ratio Times 1.52 1.27 20.16% The ratio is less than 2 which indicates 
the good financial capacity of the 
company to meet out its short term 
obligations.

Debt Equity Ratio Times 1.11 1.60 (31.12%) The ratio was increased by 0.49 basis 
as compared to previous year due to 
increase in long term debts.

Operating Profit Margin % 6.55 6.73 (2.67%) Operating margin slightly decreased   
due to increase in cost of material 
purchased.

F.Y.
2021-22

ExplanationsKey Ratios Units % ChangeF.Y.
2020-21

(`In lakhs)

Particulars F.Y. 2021-22 F.Y. 2020-21 F.Y. 2021-22 F.Y. 2020-21

Revenue From Operations 1,73,137.99 1,21,816.90 1,73,137.99 1,21,816.90

Total Income 1,73,169.99 1,21,828.36 1,73,169.99 1,21,828.36

Profit before Depreciation, Finance Cost and Tax 7,516.75 5,143.56 7,535.48 5,137.54

Profit Before Tax 5,460.37 3,669.55 5,469.71 3,663.53

Profit after Tax 4,043.54 2,746.21 4,053.44 2,740.19

Other Income 32.00 11.46 32.00 11.46

Less: Total Expenses before Depreciation, 
Finance Cost and Tax 1,65,653.24 1,16,684.80 1,65,653.24 1,16,690.82

Less: Depreciation 537.03 394.70 546.34 394.70

Less: Finance Cost 1,519.35 1,079.31 1,519.43 1,079.31

Less: Current Tax 1,396.56 919.69 1,396.56 919.69

Less: Deferred tax Liability (Asset) 20.27 3.65 19.71 3.65

STANDALONE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting 

Standards as specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the applicable Rules, as amended 

from time to time and other applicable provisions. The salient parameters of the financial performance of the 

Company during the year under review as compared to previous year are as under:
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HUMAN RESOURCES & INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS 

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

The Company acknowledges that its principal asset is its employees and believes in establishing and building 

a strong performance and competency driven culture amongst its employees with greater sense of 

accountability and responsibility. As on March 31, 2022 the Company had 550 full time employees. The 

industrial relations within the Company have remained harmonious throughout the year.

This statement made in this section describes the Company’s objectives, projections, expectation and 

estimations which may be ‘forward-looking statements’ within the meaning of applicable securities laws and 

regulations.

Net Profit Margin % 2.34 2.25 3.60% Margin increased due to overall 
improvement in the cost reduction and 
optimum utilization of resources. 

Return on Net Worth % 1.82 1.23 47.24% Return on Net worth is increased by 
47.24% due to increase in sales, on the 
other hand optimum utilization of 
resources.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
STANDALONE

To,

The Members of

D.P. ABHUSHAN LIMITED

Ratlam

We have audited the Standalone Ind AS financial statements of D. P. ABHUSHAN LIMITED (‘The Company’) 

which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2022, the statement of Profit and Loss, including the 

statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity for 

the year ended on 31st March, 2022, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant 

accounting policies and other explanatory information. (Hereinafter referred to as “standalone financial 

statements”)

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 

Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 as amended 

(“the act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting 

Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 

Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of 

affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022, its profit including other comprehensive income, its cash flow and 

the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

We conducted our Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards on 

Auditing (Sas), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are 

further described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements’ 

section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the 

Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our 

audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made there 

under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the 

ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide 

a basis for our audit opinion on the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements.

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of utmost significance in our audit 

of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the 

context of our audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion 

thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For matter below, our description of how 

our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our 

report. We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the 

Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, 

our audit included the performance to these procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risk of 

the material misstatement of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements.

OPINION

BASIS OF OPINION

KEY AUDIT MATTERS 
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The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide 

the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements.

THE KEY AUDIT MATTERS

REVENUE RECOGNITION
Revenue from sale of goods is recognized when 

control of the products being sold is transferred to 

the customer and when there are no other 

unfulfilled obligations. The performance 

obligations in the contracts are fulfilled at the time 

of dispatch, delivery or upon formal customer 

acceptance depending on customer terms. 

We identified revenue recognition as a key audit 

matter because the Company and its external 

stakeholders focus on revenue as a key 

performance indicator. This could create an 

incentive for revenue to be overstated or 

recognized before control has been transferred.

HOW THE MATTER WAS 
ADDRESSED IN OUR AUDIT

HOW THE MATTER WAS ADDRESSED IN OUR 

AUDIT?
In view of the significance of the matter we applied 

the following audit procedures in this area, among 

other procedures, to obtain sufficient appropriate 

audit evidence:

1. We assessed the appropriateness of the 

revenue recognition accounting policies and its 

compliances with applicable Indian Accounting 

Standards. We read the contracts with customer, 

distributors, franchisees etc. to determine 

appropriateness of revenue recognition.

2. We evaluated the design of key internal 

financial controls and operating effectiveness 

of the relevant key controls with respect to 

revenue recognition on selected transactions.

3. We evaluated the design, implementation and 

operating effectiveness of management's 

general IT controls and key application controls 

over the Company's IT systems which govern 

revenue recognition, including access controls, 

controls over program changes and interfaces 

between different systems.

INVENTORY VALUATION

The Company is engaged in Manufacturing and 

Trading of Gold and other precious ornaments. 

-  Raw materials are valued at cost.  

- Valuation of inventories is done at Cost or 

   NRV whichever is lower. 

As inventories of the company comprise of high 

value items, we have identified valuation of 

inventory as a key audit matter.

Our audit procedures over the valuation of 

Inventories included the following:

- We compared the net realizable values on 

sample basis of gold, silver and platinum 

inventories calculated based on the current 

market price with their carrying value of 

Inventories.
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INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND 
AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON

MANAGEMENT AND BOARD OF DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE 
STANDALONE IND AS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE STANDALONE IND 
AS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises 

the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report including Annexures to 

Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance Report, and Shareholder Information, 

but does not include the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not 

express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other 

information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the 

Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise 

appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the other information identified above, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement 

therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies 

Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to preparation of these Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements that give a true 

and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows 

and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the Accounting principles generally accepted in 

India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the act, read with 

companies ( Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes the 

maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the act for safeguarding the 

assets of the company and for preventing and detecting the frauds and other irregularities; selection and 

application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgment and estimates that are reasonable and 

prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal control that were operating 

effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of accounting records, relevant to preparation of 

Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, 

whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the 

Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern 

and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company 

or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. The Board of Directors are also responsible 

for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements 

as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report 

that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an 

audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, 
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they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of 

these Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SA’s, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 

throughout the audit. We also: 

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements, 

whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain 

audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a 

material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 

collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit 

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(I) of the Act, we are also 

responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls 

system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. (Annexure B is our Report on Internal 

Financial Control).

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 

and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 

based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions 

that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that 

a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related 

disclosures in the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify 

our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. 

However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements, 

including the disclosures, and whether the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements represent the underlying 

transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements that, individually or 

in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the 

Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and 

qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to 

evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 

and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control 

that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 

requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that 

may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of 

utmost significance in the audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements of the current period and are 

therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation 

precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a 

matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would 

reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government of 

India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the “Annexure A” a 

statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we further report that:
a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and 

belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

b) In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it 

appears from our examination of those books;

c) The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, 

the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with 

the books of account;

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements comply with the Indian Accounting 

Standards referred under section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 

2015, as amended;

e) On the basis of written representations received from directors as on March 31, 2022, and taken on record by 

the Board of Directors, none of the director is disqualified as on March 31, 2022, from being appointed as a 

director in terms of sub-section (2) of section 164 of the Act.

f) We have also audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company as on March 31, 

2022 in conjunction with our audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements of the Company for the year 

ended on that date, as per Annexure B, expressed unmodified opinion;

g) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the 

Company to its directors during the current year is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act

h) In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we report as 

under with respect to other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 

Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014:

i) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial positions in its financial

   statements- Refer Note 35.2 to the financial statement;

ii) The Company does not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there 

   were any material foreseeable loss thereon does arise.

iii) There was no amount which was required to be transferred to the Investor Education and  Protection                  

Fund by the Company. 

(iv) (a) Management has represented to us that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in 

the notes to standalone financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested 

(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to 

or in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), 
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 with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, 

directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by 

or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on 

behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

 (b) Management has represented to us that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the 

notes to standalone financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company from any 

person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, 

whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, 

lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 

Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of 

the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

 (c) Based on our audit procedure performed that have been considered reasonable and appropriate 

in the circumstances, nothing has come to our attention that cause us to believe that the 

representation given by the management under sub clause (a) & (b) of (iv) contain any material 

misstatement.

 (d) The final dividend paid by the Company during the year which was declared for the previous year is 

in accordance with section 123 of the Companies Act 2013 to the extent it applies to payment of 

dividend. 

As stated in note no 35.16 to the standalone Ind AS financial statements, the Board of Directors of the 

Company have proposed final dividend for the year which is subject to the approval of the members at 

the ensuing Annual General Meeting. The dividend declared is in accordance with section 123 of the 

Act to the extent it applies to declaration of dividend.

For, Jeevan Jagetiya & Co
Chartered Accountants

FRN: - 121335W

CA Jeevan Jagetiya
(Partner)

M. No. 046553

UDIN: 22046553AJMUTL3962
Date: 24th May, 2022 
Place: Ahmedabad
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ANNEXURE-A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

With reference to the Annexure A referred to in our report to the members of the Company 
“D. P. Abhushan Limited” for the year ended 31st March, 2022, we report the following:

I.(a) A. The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details 

and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment on the basis of available information.
B. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets on the 

basis of available information.
(b)  The company has program of verification to cover all the items of Property, Plant and Equipment in a 

proper manner, which in our opinion is reasonable with regard to size of company and nature of assets 

of company. According to information and explanation given to us, no material discrepancies were 

noticed during such verification.
(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined by us, title deeds in 

respect of immovable properties disclosed as Property, Plant & Equipment (other than properties where 

the company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) in the 

financial statements are in the name of company.
(d) According to information and explanation given to us and the books of accounts and records examined 

by us, the company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use Assets) or 

intangible assets or both during the year.
(e) According to information & explanations and representation given to us by the management, no 

proceedings have been initiated or are pending against Company for holding any benami property 

under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and rules made there under.

ii.(a) As per the information given to us and on basis of records examined, in our opinion, physical 

verification of inventories has been conducted by the management at regular intervals and having 

regard to the size and nature of its inventory, the coverage and procedures of the verification by the 

management is appropriate (except for the stock lying with the third party/goldsmith on job work 

basis.) In respect of the stock lying with the third party, the same has been substantially confirmed by 

Management. As explained to us and on the basis of the records examined by us, the value of the 

discrepancies noticed on physical verification by management did not exceed 10% or more in 

aggregate of each class of inventory.
(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has been sanctioned 

working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the 

basis of security of current assets. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations 

given to us, the quarterly returns or statements comprising stock statements filed by the Company with 

such banks or financial institutions are in agreement with the unaudited books of account of the 

Company of the respective quarters.

iii. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the 

records of the Company, the Company has granted loans to its employees and other parties. However, 

the Company has not provided any security or granted any advances in the nature of loans, secured or 

unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability partnership. The Company has not made any 

investments, given guarantees or granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, limited 

liability partnership and other parties.
(a) Based on the audit procedures carried out by us and as per the information and explanation given to 

us, the Company has provided loans as mentioned below: 
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(b) According to the information and explanation given to us, and according to audit procedures performed 

by us, the terms and condition of the grant of above mentioned to Loan to employees and other party 

during the year are, in our opinion, prima facie, not prejudicial to the Company’s interest.
(c) According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of the examination of the 

records of the Company, in case of the loans given, the repayment of principal and payment of interest 

has been stipulated and the repayments of the principal and interest are regular.
(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the 

records of the Company, there is no overdue amount for more than ninety days in respect of loans given. 

Further, the Company has not given any advances in the nature of loans to any party during the year.
(e)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the 

records of the Company, there is no loan or advance in the nature of loan granted falling due during the 

year, which has been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdues of existing 

loans given to same parties.
(f)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the 

records of the Company, the Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans 

either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment. Hence reporting 

under clause 3(iii)(f) of the Order is not applicable.

iv. According to information and explanation given to us, the company has not granted any loans or
provided and guarantees or security to the parties covered u/s 185 of the Act. The Company has
complied with the provisions of Section 186 of the Act, as applicable, in respect of investments made.

v. In our opinion and according to information given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposits as
per the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act
and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the provisions of
 clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable.

vi. Maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under sub-section (1) of 
section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 for the products of the company. Therefore, the provisions of
 clause 3 (vi) of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016, are not applicable to the Company.

vii.(a)  According to the records of the Company examined by us, undisputed statutory dues including Goods
 and Service tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income tax, duty of customs, cess and any
 other material statutory dues have been generally regularly deposited with appropriate authorities
 According to the information and explanations given to us, there were no undisputed amounts payable
 in respect of the aforesaid dues, which were outstanding as on March 31, 2022 for a period of more than 
six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the records of the Company, there are no dues outstanding of income-tax, sales-tax,
wealth-tax, service tax, duty of custom, excise duty, goods and service tax, value added tax and cess on 
account of any dispute which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities other than those 
mentioned below: 

PARTICULARS LOANS (` IN LAKHS)

A. Aggregate Amount granted during the year

   -Loans to employees

   -Loans to others

14.12
0.00

    -Loans to employees

    -Loans to others

B. Balance Outstanding as at balance sheet date in respect of 
    above cases

23.22

7.50
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viii. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the 

records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions, previously 

unrecorded as income in the books of accounts, in the tax assessments under the Income-tax Act, 1961 

as income during the year. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to 

the Company.

ix.(a)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given and books of accounts an 
records examined by us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in
the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not 
been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government 
authority.

(c) To the best of our knowledge and belief, in our opinion, term loans availed by the Company were, 
applied by the Company during the year for the purposes for which the loans were obtained.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and the procedures performed by us, and on 
an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, we report that, prima facie, no funds 
raised on short-term basis have been used during the year for long-term purposes by the Company.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the financial
statements of the Company, we report, prima facie, that the Company has not taken any funds from any 
entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiary. The Company does not have
associates or joint ventures.

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we report
 that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiary.
 The Company does not have joint ventures or associate companies.

x.(a)  The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt
 instruments) during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the
 Company.

(b)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
 records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
 shares or convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year. Accordingly,
 paragraph 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xi.(a)  To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations given to us,
 no fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the
 course of our audit.

(b)  According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section 12 of section 143
 of the Act has been filed by auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit
 and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and up to the date of this report

(c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by the 
Company during the year.

xii. According to the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi
Company as prescribed under Section 406 of the Act. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii)(a)(b)(c) of the Order
are not applicable to the Company

xiii. In our opinion, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of the 
Companies act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the Standalone Ind AS 
financial statements as required by applicable Indian Accounting Standard 24.
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Income Tax Act, 1961
Income Tax 

Liability
`12,57,300 AY 2018-19

Commissioner of 
Income Tax (Appeals)
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AMOUNT 
INVOLVED
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xiv.(a)  Based on the information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in our opinion, the 
Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

(b)  We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date for the period under
 audit.

xv. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records 

of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons 

connected to its directors and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013, are not 

applicable to the Company

xvi.(a) To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Company is not required to be registered under
 section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

(b)  In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations provided to us and on the basis of
 our audit procedures, the Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance
 activities during the year as per the Reserve bank of India Act 1934.

(c)  In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations provided to us, the Company is not a
 Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India.

(d) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations provided to us, the Group do not have
 any Core Investment Company (CIC).

xvii. The Company has not incurred cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately preceding 

financial year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xvii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xviii. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Hence, paragraph 3(xviii) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

xix.  On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and 
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements and our 

knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of the 

evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe 

that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not 

capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a 

period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to 

the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the 

date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling 

due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as 

and when they fall due.

xx. With respect to CSR contribution under section 135 of the Act:
(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit procedures, 

in respect of other than ongoing projects, there were no unspent amount that were required to be 

transferred to a Fund specified in Schedule VII in compliance with second proviso to sub-section 5 of 

section 135 of the Act.
(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit procedures,
 there were no ongoing projects related to Corporate Social Responsibilities. Therefore, provisions of
 clause (xx) (b) of Paragraph 3 of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

For, Jeevan Jagetiya & Co
Chartered Accountants

FRN: - 121335W

CA Jeevan Jagetiya
(Partner)

M. No. 046553
UDIN: 22046553AJMUTL3962

Date: 24th May, 2022 
Place: Ahmedabad
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ANNEXURE-B TO THE AUDITORS’ REPORT

Annexure-B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of 
Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial reporting of M/s D. P. ABHUSHAN 

LIMITED (“The Company”) as on 31st March, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the Standalone Ind AS 

Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based 

on the internal control financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential 

components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over 

Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities 

include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were 

operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to 

company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the 

accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial 

information, as required under the Act.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting 

with reference to these Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 

accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the 

“Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing as specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent 

applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls 

and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note 

require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 

assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these 

Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated 

effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 

controls system over financial reporting with reference to these Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements and 

their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining 

an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these Standalone Ind 

AS Financial Statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the 

design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected 

depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 

financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 

audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting with reference to 

these Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements.

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR INTERNAL FINANCIAL 
CONTROLS 

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY 
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MEANING OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING WITH REFERENCE TO THESE STANDALONE IND AS 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

INHERENT LIMITATIONS OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER 
FINANCIAL REPORTING 

OPINION 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these Standalone Ind AS 

Financial Statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of 

financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with 

generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with 

reference to these Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements includes those policies and procedures that- 

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 

transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; 

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of 

financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and 

expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and 

directors of the company; and 

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or 

disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these 

Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management 

override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, 

projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these 

Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control 

over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of 

compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over 

financial reporting with reference to these Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements and such internal financial 

controls over financial reporting with reference to these Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements were operating 

effectively as at 31st March, 2022, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by 

the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of 

Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

(the “Guidance Note”)

For, Jeevan Jagetiya & Co
Chartered Accountants

FRN: - 121335W

CA Jeevan Jagetiya
(Partner)

M. No. 046553

UDIN: 22046553AJMUTL3962
Date: 24th May, 2022 
Place: Ahmedabad
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NOTE : 1 CORPORATE INFORMATION

D. P. Abhushan Limited is engaged in the business of manufacturing, sale and trading of Gold Jewellery, 

Diamond Jewellery, Platinum Jewellery, Silver Jewellery and other precious Metals.

D.P. Abhushan Limited was originally formed as a Partnership Firm in the name and style of “M/s D.P. 

Jewellers”. The name of the partnership firm “M/s D.P. Jewellers” was changed to “M/s D.P. Abhushan” 

vide partnership deed dated February 14, 2017. “M/s D.P. Abhushan” was converted from partnership firm to 

Public Limited Company with the name of “D.P. Abhushan Limited” on May 02, 2017 vide CIN No. 

L74999MP2017PLC043234 under the Part I of chapter XXI read with section 366 of the Companies Act 2013.

Under the registration of the company under chapter XXI of the Companies Act, 2013 the business and assets 

and liabilities of M/s. D.P.Abhushan (Partnership Firm) have become the property of the company and have 

been taken at their book-value (i.e. Total assets less total liabilities) on and from the date of incorporation of the 

company. Accordingly, the company shall undertake, pay, observe, satisfy, perform and fulfil the agreements, 

arrangements and liabilities of the said firm entered into in the name of the said firm and in relation to said 

business and assets brought in as aforesaid, and indemnify the erstwhile partners, their executors, estates, and 

effects from and against all actions, proceedings, claims.

STANDALONE
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NOTE: 2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Statement of Compliance

Functional and Presentation Currency

Basis of Measurement

Fair Value Measurement

2.1 Basis of Preparation

The Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements of the Company have been prepared in compliance of 

Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015and other relevant provisions of Companies Act, 2013 

and guidelines issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) for listed public companies. The 

company has prepared Standalone Financial Statement as per Indian Accounting Standards for the 

Financial Year 2021-22. Accounting Policies have been applied in accordance with relevant Indian 

Accounting Standard or any change in existing standard has been notified separately in other notes. The 

items in the Ind AS financial statements have been classified considering the principles under Ind AS 1, 

Presentation of Financial Statements.

The Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), and all the values are 

rounded to the nearest Lakhs with two decimals, except when otherwise indicated.

The Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements have been prepared on accrual basis under the historical cost 

convention, except for the following assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value as 

required by relevant Ind AS: 

Certain financial assets and liabilities (refer accounting policy regarding Financial Instruments), and 

Defined employee benefit liability

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 

transaction between market participants at the measurement date, (regardless of whether that price is 

directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique). In estimating the fair value of an asset 

or a liability, the company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability, if market participants 

would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability, at the measurement date. 

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2, or 3 

based on the degree to which inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of 

the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows: 

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access 

at the measurement date; 

Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset 

or liability, either directly or indirectly; and 

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. 

Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these financial statements is determined on such 

a basis, except for share based payment transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 102, leasing 

transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 116, and measurements that have some similarities to fair 

value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in Ind AS 2 or value in use in Ind AS 36
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• Significant Accounting Judgements, Estimates and Assumptions

A. Measurement of defined benefit obligations:

B. Measurement and likelihood of occurrence of provisions and contingencies: 

C. Recognition of taxes:

The preparation of the Company’s Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements requires the management to 

make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, 

assets, liabilities, the accompanying disclosures and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty 

about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the 

carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods. Estimates and assumptions are reviewed 

on periodic basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are 

revised and in any future periods affected.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation, that have a significant risk of 

causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities, within the next financial year, 

are described below. The Company has based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available 

when the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions 

about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are 

beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Information about critical judgments in applying accounting policies, as well as estimates and assumptions 

that have the most significant effect to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial 

year, are included in the following notes:

 The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-

employment retirement benefits and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using 

actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual 

developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and 

mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit 

obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each 

reporting date. The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate 

discount rate for plans, the management considers the interest rates of government bonds in currencies 

consistent with the currencies of the post-employment benefit obligation.  

A provision is recognised 

when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that an outflow of 

resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. 

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present 

obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the 

obligation. A disclosure for contingent liabilities is made where there is a possible obligation or a present 

obligation that may probably not require an outflow of resources. When there is a possible or a present 

obligation where the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made in the 

financial statements.

 Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is 

probable that taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant 

management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, 

based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning 

strategies.
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D. Useful life of Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets: 

E. Going concern:

F. Current and Non-Current classification:

Assets

Liabilities

G. Operating Cycle: 

The Company reviews the estimated 

useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets at the end of each reporting period. 

During financial year ended 31 March 2022, there were no changes in useful lives of property plant and 

equipment and intangible assets other than those resulting from store closures / shifting of premises.

The Company at the end of each reporting period, based on external and internal sources of information, 

assesses indicators and mitigating factors of whether a store (cash generating unit) may have suffered an 

impairment loss. If it is determined that an impairment loss has been suffered, it is recognised in statement of 

profit or loss.

 During the current year ended March 31, 2022, management has performed an assessment 

of the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern. Based on the assessment, management believe that 

there is no material uncertainty with respect to any events or conditions that may cast a significant doubt on 

the entity to continue as a going concern, hence the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements have been 

prepared on going concern basis.

 All assets and liabilities are classified into current and non-current.

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

I. It is expected to be realised in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company normal operating 

cycle; 

II. It is held primarily for the purpose of being traded; 

III. It is expected to be realised within 12 months after reporting date; or 

IV. It is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for 

at least 12 months after the reporting date. 

Current assets include the current portion of non-current financial assets. All other assets are classified as 

non-current. 

A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

I. It is expected to be settled in the Company’s normal operating cycle; 

II. It is held primarily for the purpose of being traded; 

III. It is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; or 

IV. The Company does not have as unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12  

months after the reporting date. Terms of the liability that could, at the option of the counter party, result 

in its settlement by the issue of equity instrument do not affect its classification. 

Current liabilities include current portion of noncurrent financial liabilities. All other liabilities are classified a 

non-current. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities respectively.

Based on the nature of services and the time between the acquisition of assets for 

processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating 

cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current – non-current classification of assets and liabilities.
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2.2 Property Plant & Equipment

Property, Plant and Equipment are carried at acquisition cost, net of accumulated depreciation and 

accumulated impairment losses, if any. Subsequent expenditures related to an item of tangible asset are 

added to its book value if due to such expenditure it is probable thatfuture economic benefits will arise to the 

company. Gains or Losses arising from disposal of tangible assets are recognized in the Statement of Profit 

and Loss.

Property, plant and equipment not ready for the intended use on the date of balance sheet are disclosed as 

“Capital work-in-progress”. Capital work in progress is stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment loss, if 

any.

Depreciation on tangible assets has been provided using straight line method over its useful life which is in 

compliance with schedule II of Companies Act, 2013. 

Depreciation

Asset Class (Straight Line Basis) Useful Life

A. Building 60 Years

B. Plant & Machinery (Including Windmill) 15 Years

C. Furniture & Fittings 10 Years

D. Motor Car (4-Wheeler) 10 Years

E. Motor Vehicle (2-Wheeler) 8 Years

F. Computer & Computer Peripherals 3 Years

G. Leasehold Improvements Primary Period of Lease

2.3 Leases

As per Ind AS 116- Leases, the determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on 

the substance of the arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if 

fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement 

conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

 : Company recognises a Right-of-Use Asset is initially measured at Cost, 

which comprises the initial amount of lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the 

commencement date, plus any initial direct cost incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove 

the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site  on which it is located, less any lease 

incentives received. 

The Right of Use asset is subsequently depreciated using the Straight-Line Method over the lease term. The 

Right of Use asset is periodically reviewed for impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain re-

measurements of the lease liability. 

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the 

commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily 

determined, company’s incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the company uses its incremental borrowing 

rate as the discount rate.

Where the Company is the lessee
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Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following – 

- fixed payment, including in-substance fixed payments

- variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at 

the commencement date

- amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee and

- the exercise price under a purchase option that the company is reasonably certain to exercise, lease 

payments is an optional renewal period if the company is reasonably certain to exercise an extension 

option, and penalties for early termination of a lease unless the company is reasonably certain to terminate 

early.

The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. It is re-measured when 

there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in future lease payments arising from a 

change in an index or rate, if there is a change in the company’s estimate of the amount expected to be 

payable under a residual value guarantee, or if company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise 

a purchase, extension or termination option.

Where the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying 

amount of right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has 

been reduced to zero.

Company has elected not to recognise right-of-use asset and lease liabilities for short-term leases of real 

estate properties that have a lease term of less than 12 months, the company recognises the lease payments 

associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

 Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks 

and rewards of ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income from operating 

lease is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Short term leases and leases of low-value assets

Where the Company is the lessor:

Amortization
Amortization of Intangible Assets has been provided using straight line method over its useful life as pe 

Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013.

Asset Class (Straight Line Basis) Useful Life

A. Trademark 10 Years

2.4 Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are recognised only when it is probable that the future economic benefits that are 

attributable to the assets will flow to the Company and the cost of such assets can be measured reliably. 

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment loss, if any. All costs 

relating to the acquisition are capitalised. Intangible assets are amortised in the Statement of Profit or Loss 

over their estimated useful lives, from the date that they are available for use based on the expected pattern 

of consumption of economic benefits of the asset.

Intangible Assets not ready for the intended use on the date of balance sheet are disclosed as “Intangible 

Assets Under Development”. Intangible Assets Under Development is stated at cost, net of accumulated 

impairment loss, if any.
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  2.5  Impairment of tangible and intangible assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and 

intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment 

loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the 

extent of the impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an 

individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the 

asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets 

are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest 

company of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in 

use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that 

reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risk specific to the asset for which the 

estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying 

amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An 

impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) 

is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount 

does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been 

recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is 

recognised immediately in profit or loss. 

   2.6  Investments in Subsidiary

The Company has elected to account for its equity investments in subsidiaries under Ind AS 27 on separate 

financial statements, at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. Where an indication of impairment 

exists, the carrying amount of the investment is assessed. On disposal of investments in subsidiaries, the 

difference between net disposal proceeds and the carrying amounts are recognized in the Statement of 

profit and loss.

  2.7  Disposal of Subsidiary

During the Financial Year 2021-22, the company has disposed off its wholly owned subsidiary D.P. Jewelline 

Limited on 25th January, 2022 and loss occurred on disposal of subsidiary has been recognised through 

Profit and Loss.

 2.8   Revenue Recognition

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred to the 

customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in 

exchange for those goods or services. 

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised at the point in time when control of the goods is transferred to the 

customer, generally on delivery of the goods. In determining the transaction price for the sale of product, the 

Company considers the effects of variable consideration.

Sale of Goods
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Other Income 

Interest Income 
Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow 

to the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on time 

basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate 

that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that 

asset's net carrying amount on initial recognition.

  2.9  Inventories

A. Inventories of Raw materials are valued at Cost. The Cost is determined on Weighted Average Cost Method 

Basis.

B. Stock of Work-in-progress is valued at cost. The Cost is determined on Weighted Average Cost Method Basis.

C. Stock of Finished goods is valued at cost or net realizable value basis, whichever is lower. The Cost is 

determined on Weighted Average Cost Method Basis.

D. The Market value of inventories is determined verified and certified by the management of the company. In 

respect of non-availability of market value of some items on balance sheet date, they are valued at their cost 

only.

E. Packing Material and Consumables are valued at Cost on FIFO Basis.

Cost of inventories comprises all costs of purchase and, other duties and taxes (other than those 

subsequently recoverable from tax authorities), costs of conversion and all other costs incurred in bringing 

the inventory to their present location and condition.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated 

completion cost and the estimated cost necessary to make the sale.

  2.10  Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit/ (loss) before extraordinary items and tax 

is adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and deferrals or accruals of past or future cash 

receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the company are 

segregated based on the available information.

  2.11  Foreign Currency Transactions

Transaction denominated in foreign currencies are normally recorded at exchange rate prevailing on the 

date of transactions. Exchange differences arising on foreign currency transaction settled during the period 

are recognised in the statement of Profit and Loss except in case where they relate to acquisition of fixed 

assets, are adjusted with the carrying cost of such assets.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are translated 

into functional currency at the exchange rates at the reporting date. The resultant exchange differences are 

recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using 

the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a 

foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The 

gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the 

recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items 

whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in OCI or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or loss, 

respectively).
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    2.12   Retirement and other Employee Benefits

The Company’s employees are covered under state governed provident fund scheme and employees’ state 

insurance scheme which are in nature of Defined Contribution Plan.

The contribution paid/payable under the schemes are recognised during the period in which the employee 

renders the related service. The company’s contributions to Employees PF and ESI are charged to statement 

of profit and loss.

Employee gratuity fund scheme is the defined benefit plan. Provision for gratuity has been made in the 

accounts in respect of employees who have completed required number of years of service as on date of 

balance sheet based on Actuarial Valuation Report obtained from Actuarial Consultant. Gratuity is paid at 

the time of retirement of employees.

Short Term Employee Benefits like leave benefit, if any, are paid along with salary and wages as and when 

accrued, bonus to employees are charged to profit and loss account on the basis of actual payment on year 

to year basis.

2.13   Borrowing Cost

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisitions, construction or production of a qualifying asset are 

capitalized. Other borrowing costs is recognized as expenses in the period in which they are incurred.

 2.14   Taxation

a. Current tax is determined as the amount of tax payable in respect of taxable income for the year.

b. Deferred tax is recognized on temporary timing differences, being the difference between taxable incomes 

and accounting income that originates in one period and is capable of reversal in one or more subsequent 

periods.

2.15   Gold Metal Loan

The company has an arrangement with its banker for lifting gold under metal loan terms against a limit 

under “price unfixed basis” and opts to fix the price for gold taken under loan within 180 days on delivery.

The price difference arising out of such transactions on actual settlement accounted in the head of cost of 

purchase. The interest if any payable to bankers on such outstanding is treated as expenses on accrual 

basis.

The outstanding metal loan position if any as on reporting date is marked to market and the resulting 

difference in case of Loss if any is adjusted to the Gold Metal Loan Rate Difference.

In case of Gain as on Reporting date, future gains are not recorded by Company following Convention of 

Conservatism & doctrine of Prudence. 

2.16   Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit for the year attributable to equity 

shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. The weighted 

average number of equity shares outstanding during the period and for all periods presented is adjusted for 

events, such as bonus shares, other than the conversion of potential equity shares that have changed the 

number of equities shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources. For the purpose of 

calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit for the period attributable to equity shareholders and 

the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive.

a. Defined contribution plan

b. Defined Benefit Plans
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  2.17   Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

The Company creates a provision when there is a present obligation as a result of past event that probably 

require an outflow of resources and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation. Provisions 

are measured at the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance 

sheet date and are not discounted to the present value. These are reviewed at each year end and adjusted 

to reflect the best current estimate.

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that 

may or may not require an outflow of resources. When there is a possible obligation or present obligation in 

respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

Contingent Assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the financial statements. However, contingent 

Assets are assessed continually and if it is virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits will arise, the 

asset and related income are recognised in the period in which change occurs.

  2.18   Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents in the balance sheet and for the purpose of cash flow statement comprise cash 

in hand and cash at bank including fixed deposit with original maturity period of three months and short-term 

highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less net of outstanding bank over drafts 

as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

  2.19   Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability of 

equity instrument of another entity. Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the 

Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments. 

Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial 

liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to 

or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial 

recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities 

at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in statement of profit and loss.

I. Financial Assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date 

basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of 

assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place.

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair 

value, depending on the classification of the financial assets.

II. Financial assets carried at amortized cost

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost if these financial assets are held within a 

business whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual 

terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal 

and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Initial Recognition

Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities are Initially Measured at Fair Value

Subsequent Measurement
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III. Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it is held 

within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling 

financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that 

are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

On initial recognition, the Company makes an irrevocable election on an instrument-by-instrument basis to 

present the subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income pertaining to investments in 

equity instruments, other than equity investment which are held for trading. Subsequently, they are measured 

at fair value with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value recognised in other comprehensive 

income and accumulated in the ‘Reserve for equity instruments through other comprehensive income’. The 

cumulative gain or loss is not reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the investments.

IV. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Investments in equity instruments are classified as at FVTPL, unless the Company irrevocably elects on initial 

recognition to present subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income for investments in 

equity instruments which are not held for trading.

Other financial assets are measured at fair value through profit or loss unless it is measured at amortised 

cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income on initial recognition. The transaction costs directly 

attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are 

immediately recognised in profit or loss.

V. Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses at each date of balance sheet whether a financial asset or a group of financial 

assets is impaired. Ind AS 109 requires expected credit losses to be measured through a loss allowance. The 

Company recognises lifetime expected losses for all contracts assets and/or all trade receivables that do 

not constitute a financing transaction. For all other financial assets, credit losses are measured at an amount 

equal to the 12 month expected credit losses or at an amount equal to the life time expected credit losses if 

the credit risk on the financial assets has increased significantly since initial recognition.

VI.Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method, except for 

contingent consideration recognized in a business combination, which is subsequently measured at fair 

value through profit or loss. For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the Balance Sheet 

date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments.

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in 

accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability 

and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after 

deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments are issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds 

received, net of direct issue costs.

VII. Derecognition of financial instruments

The company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial 

asset expire or it transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for Derecognition under Ind AS 109. A 

financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) is derecognized from the Company's Balance Sheet when 

the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires.

a) Classification as debt or equity

b) Equity instruments
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• Recent Accounting Pronouncements

On 23rd March, 2022, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has notified certain amendment to existing Ind 

AS. These amendments shall be applicable to the Company from 1st April, 2022. Amendment to Existing 

issued Ind AS the MCA has carried out amendments of the following accounting standards.

Accounting Standards

i. Ind AS 101- First time adoption of Indian

ii. Ind AS 103 – Business Combinations

iii. Ind AS 109 - Financial Instruments

iv. Ind AS 16 – Property, Plant and Equipment

v. Ind AS 37 – Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and

Contingent Assets

vi. Ind AS 41 – Agriculture

Application of above standards are not expected to have any significant impact on the Company’s financial 

statements.



M/s D. P. ABHUSHAN LIMITED
CIN - L74999MP2017PLC043234

stas at 31  March, 2022
STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET 

st stParticulars Note As at 31  As at 31  
No. March, 2022 March, 2021

I. ASSETS
1 Non-Current Assets

Total Non-Current Assets 5,098.68  4,569.93 
2 Current Assets

Total Current Assets 36,262.37  35,164.73 
 Total Assets 41,361.05  ` 39,734.66 
II. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 Equity

Equity attributable to Equity holders of the 
Company 13,806.11  9,717.84 

2 Non-Current Liabilities

Total Non-Current Liabilties
3 Current Liabilities

Total Current Liabilties 23,804.38  27,737.17 
Total Equity and Liabilities 41,361.05  ` 39,734.66 

(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 3  3,908.42  2,797.11 
(b) Right-of-Use Assets 4  1,107.32  1,418.74 
(c) Capital Work-in-Progress 5  -    25.02 
(d) Other Intangible Assets 6  0.62  0.73 
(e) Financial Assets
(i) Investments 7  -    250.00 
(ii) Other Financial Assets 9  71.96  69.47 
(f) Other Non-Current Assets 10  10.38  8.86 

(a) Inventories 11  35,040.28  32,017.19 
(b) Financial Assets
(i) Trade Receivables 8  266.31  251.01 
(ii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 12  471.11  1,107.50 
(iii) Other Financial Assets 9  75.81  247.21 
(c) Other Current Assets 13  408.85  1,541.82 

 
(a) Equity Share Capital 14  2,225.49  2,225.49 
(b) Other Equity 15  11,580.62  7,492.35 

(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 16  2,744.48  1,033.06 
(ii) Lease Liabilities 17  833.12  1,065.95 
(b) Provisions 21  65.23  93.19 
(c) Deferred Tax Assets/Liabilities (Net) 22  107.73  87.46 

3,750.57  2,279.65 

(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 16  12,513.60  14,559.65 
(ii) Lease Liabilities 17  232.82  244.98 
(iii) Trade Payables 18
(a) Total outstanding dues of micro 

enterprises and small enterprises 2,246.87  2,609.65 
(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors 
other than micro enterprises and small 
enterprises 3,812.60  5,170.19 
(iv) Other financial liabilities 19  694.46  209.22 
(b) Other Current Liabilities 20  4,279.53  4,943.48 
(c) Provisions 21  24.50  -   

(` in Lakhs)
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Significant Accounting Policies
Notes to Accounts

2
3 to 35

For, M/s D.P. ABHUSHAN LIMITED
CIN - L74999MP2017PLC043234

Anil Kataria
(Whole Time Director)

DIN: 00092730

Santosh Kataria
 (Managing Director) 

DIN: 02855068

 As per our report of even date, 

 For, JEEVAN JAGETIYA & CO 
 (Chartered Accountants) 
 FRN No: 121335W 

Jeevan Jagetiya 
Partner 
Membership No: 046553 

Vijesh Kumar Kasera
(Chief Financial Officer)

Aashi Neema
 (Company Secretary)

 M. No. 67041 

 
Date: 24th May, 2022
Place:  Ratlam 
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M/s D. P. ABHUSHAN LIMITED
CIN - L74999MP2017PLC043234

st For the year ended 31 March, 2022
STANDALONE STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS

Particulars Note For the year ended For the year ended 
st stNo. 31  March, 2022 31  March, 2021

III Total Income (I+II) 1,73,169.99  1,21,828.36 
IV Expenses

Total Expenses (IV) 1,67,709.62  1,18,158.81 
V Profit/(loss) before exceptional items and tax 

(III-IV) 5,460.37  3,669.55 
  

VII Profit/ (loss) before tax 
(V-VI) 5,460.37  3,669.55 

VIII Tax Expense: 1,416.83  923.34 
Current Tax 1,396.56  919.75 
Deferred Tax 20.27  3.59 

IX Profit (Loss) for the period from Continuing 
Operations (VII-VIII) 4,043.54  2,746.21 

X Profit/(Loss) from Discontinued Operations -    -   
XI Tax Expenses of Discontinued Operations -    -   
XII Profit/(Loss) from Discontinued Operations 

(after tax) (X-XI) -    -   
XIII Profit/(Loss) for the period (IX)+(XII) 4,043.54  2,746.21 
XIV Other Comprehensive Income 44.73  -   

XV Total Comprehensive Income for the period 
Comprising Profit/(Loss) (XII) and Other 4,088.27  2,746.21 
comprehensive Income for the period (XIV)

XVI Earnings Per Equity Share (For Continuing 
Operations)

XVII Earnings Per Equity Share (For Discontinuing 
Operations)

  
XVIII Earnings Per Equity Share (For Continuing & 

Discontinuing Operations)

  

I Revenue From Operations 23  1,73,137.99  1,21,816.90 
II Other Income 24  32.00  11.46 

Cost of Materials Consumed 25  44,361.65  21,997.38 
Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 26  121,684.30  97,667.55 
Changes in inventories of finished goods, 
Work-in-Progress and Stock-in-Trade 27  (4,941.98)  (6,423.89)
Employee Benefit Expenses 28  1,742.24  1,287.32 
Finance Cost 29  1,519.35  1,079.31 
Depreciation and Amortization Expense 30  537.03  394.70 
Other Expenses 31  2,807.02  2,156.45 

VI Exceptional Items -    - 

A. (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit 
or loss 44.73  -   

(ii) Income Tax relating to items that will not be 
reclassified to profit or loss -    -

Basic & Diluted EPS 32  18.17  12.34 

Basic -    -   
Diluted -    - 

Basic 18.17  12.34 
Diluted     12.34 18.17

(` in Lakhs)

Significant Accounting Policies
Notes to Accounts

2
3 to 35

For, M/s D.P. ABHUSHAN LIMITED
CIN - L74999MP2017PLC043234

Anil Kataria
(Whole Time Director)

DIN: 00092730

Santosh Kataria
 (Managing Director) 

DIN: 02855068

 As per our report of even date, 

 For, JEEVAN JAGETIYA & CO 
 (Chartered Accountants) 
 FRN No: 121335W 
Jeevan Jagetiya 
Partner 
Membership No: 046553 

Vijesh Kumar Kasera
(Chief Financial Officer)

Aashi Neema
 (Company Secretary)

 M. No. 67041  
Date: 24th May, 2022
Place:  Ratlam 
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M/s D. P. ABHUSHAN LIMITED
CIN - L74999MP2017PLC043234

STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
stFor the year ended 31  March, 2022

A Cash Flow From Operating Activities

Add back:

Deduct:

Adjustment For Working Capital Changes:

Assets

Liabilities

Cash Generated From Operations  3,021.43  -1,998.85 

Deduct:

Net Cash From Operating Activities  `1,674.56  `-2,929.33 

B Cash Flow From Investing Activities :

Net Profit before Tax and  Extra Ordinary Items  5,460.37  3,669.55 

Depreciation  537.03  394.70 

Finance Cost  1,519.35  1,079.31 

Assets Written Off  0.66  -   

Gratuity Expenses  16.77  16.46 

Loss on Sale of Subsidiary  25.00  -   

Loss on Sale of Windmill Business  -    2,098.82  0.49  1,490.97 

Interest Income  6.46  7.90 

Profit on Sale of Fixed Assets  -    3.53 

Rent Income  20.07  -   

Short Term Capital Gain on sale of Shares  -    -   

Rental Expenses  273.59  -300.12  187.79  -199.21 

(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories  -3,023.09  -9,027.16 

(Increase)/Decrease in Trade Receivables  -15.30  -147.19 

(Increase)/Decrease in Other Current Assets  529.63  -570.79 

(Increase)/Decrease in Other Non-Current Assets  -1.52  -1.97 

(Increase)/Decrease in Other Current Financial 

Assets  171.40  -158.47 

(Increase)/Decrease in Other Non-Current Financial 

Assets  0.32  -37.11 

Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payables  -1,720.36  1,931.86 

Increase/(Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities  -663.95  1,011.04 

Increase/(Decrease) in Other Non-Current Liabilities  -    -   

Increase/(Decrease) in Other Current Financial 

Liabilities  485.24  39.64 

Increase/(Decrease) in Other Non-Current Financial 

Liabilities  -    -   

Increase/(Decrease) in Provisions  -    -4,237.63  -    -6,960.15 

Direct Taxes paid(Net of Refund and Receivables)  -1,346.87  -1,346.87  -930.48  -930.48 

 

Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment  -757.88  -847.19 

Advances made  -    -   

Interest Income  3.66  5.02 

Particulars For the year ended 
31st March, 2022

(` in Lakhs)
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For, M/s D.P. ABHUSHAN LIMITED
CIN - L74999MP2017PLC043234

 As per our report of even date, 

 For, JEEVAN JAGETIYA & CO 
 (Chartered Accountants) 
 FRN No: 121335W 

Jeevan Jagetiya 
Partner 
Membership No: 046553 

 
Date: 24th May, 2022
Place: Ratlam 

Rent Income  11.27  -   

Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment  -    7.16 

Proceeds from Sale of Windmill Division  -    452.01 

Sale of Subsidiaries  225.00 

Investment in Subsidiaries  -    -250.00 

Advance against Property  -    -578.14 

Proceeds from Short Term Borrowings  -    5,523.69 

Proceeds from Long Term Borrowings  1,711.42  521.79 

Repayment of Short Term Borrowings  -2,046.05  -   

Interest Expense  -1,458.36  -1,024.74 

Equivalents  ` -636.39  ` 880.27 

Opening Balance- Cash And Cash Equivalent  1,107.50  227.23 

Closing Balance- Cash And Cash Equivalent  471.11  -    1,107.50 

 Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalent with 

Balance sheet  ` -636.39  ` 880.27 

 Net Cash used in Investing Activities  ` -517.96  ` -1,211.15 

Cash Flow From Financing Activities :

 Net Cash flow from Financing Activities  ` -1,792.99  ` 5,020.74 

 Net Increase/ (Decrease) In Cash and Cash 

Cash and Cash Equivalent as per Balance sheet  471.11  1,107.50 

Closing Balance of Cash & Cash Equivalent  ` 471.11  ` 1,107.50 

Anil Kataria
(Whole Time Director)

DIN:- 00092730

Santosh Kataria
 (Managing Director) 

DIN:- 02855068

Vijesh Kumar Kasera
(Chief Financial Officer)
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Aashi Neema
 (Company Secretary)

 M. No. 67041 
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M/s D. P. ABHUSHAN LIMITED
CIN - L74999MP2017PLC043234

STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
stFor the year ended 31  March, 2022

st stParticulars As at 31  March, 2022 As at 31  March, 2021
(` in Lakhs)

Balance at the beginning of the Period

Authorised

Issued, Subscribed & Paidup Capital

Balance at the end of the Period

Authorised

Issued, Subscribed & Paidup Capital

Equity Shares of ` 10 each  22,850,000  2,285.00 22,850,000 2,285.00 

Equity Shares of ` 10 each fully paid up  22,254,850  2,225.49 22,254,850 2,225.49  

Equity Shares of ` 10 each  22,850,000  2,285.00 22,850,000 2,285.00  

Equity Shares of ` 10 each fully paid up  22,254,850  2,225.49 22,254,850 2,225.49

No of Shares (` in Lakhs)No of Shares

A. Equity Share Capital

B. Other Equity
Particulars

General 
Reserve

Balance at the beginning of the period 

April 01, 2020   1,067.76 -    3,678.38 -    4,746.14 

Balance as at March 31, 2021  `1,067.76  ` -    ` 6,424.59 ` -    ` 7,492.35 
Balance at the beginning of the 

period April 01, 2021  1,067.76  -    6,424.59  -    7,492.35 

Balance as at March 31, 2022  ` 1,067.76  ` -    `10,512.86  ` -    ` 11,580.62 

Total comprehensive income for the year  -    -    2,746.21  -    2,746.21 

Dividends - - - - -

Total comprehensive income for the 

year  -    -    4,088.27  -    4,088.27 

Dividends - - - - -

Securities 
Premium

Remeasurement 
of defined 

benefit plan

Retained 
earnings

Total 
Other 
Equity

(` in Lakhs)

Reserves and Surplus
Other 

Comprehensive 
Income

For, M/s D.P. ABHUSHAN LIMITED
CIN - L74999MP2017PLC043234

 As per our report of even date, 

 For, JEEVAN JAGETIYA & CO 
 (Chartered Accountants) 
 FRN No: 121335W 

Jeevan Jagetiya 
Partner 
Membership No: 046553  
Date: 24th May, 2022
Place: Ratlam 

Anil Kataria
(Whole Time Director)

DIN:- 00092730

Santosh Kataria
 (Managing Director) 

DIN:- 02855068

Vijesh Kumar Kasera
(Chief Financial Officer)

Aashi Neema
 (Company Secretary)

 M. No. 67041 
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Set out below are the carrying amounts of Lease Liabilities & the movements during the year.

Financial Year Opening Addition/ Accretion Lease Paid Closing Balance 
Balance (Deletion) of Interest

As at 31st March 2022  1,310.92 (23.58)  61.00  282.39 1,065.95 

As at 31st March 2021  235.43  1,208.71 54.57  187.79 1,310.92

The following are the amounts recognized in Statement of Profit & Loss Account

Financial Year Depreciation  Interest Expenses Expenses related Total Amount Recognized
on Right of Use on Lease Liabilities to Short Term Lease in Profit & Loss Account
 Assets

As at 31st March 2022 287.84 61.00 48.63 397.47 

As at 31st March 2021 143.73 54.57 34.89 233.19 
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The Company has also applied the available practical expedients wherein it:

Used a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with reasonably similar characteristics

Relied on its assessment of whether lease’s are onerous immediately before the date of initial application.

Applied the short-term leases exemptions to leases with lease term that ends within 12 months at the date of 

initial application.

Excluded the initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of initial 

application.

Used hindsight in determining the lease term where the contract contains options to extend or terminate the 

lease.

Note: 5   Capital Work-in-Progress

Capital Banswara - -  25.02  25.02  -    25.02  -    -   

WIP Ujjain - 56.64  -56.64  -    -    -    -    -   

Total  56.64  25.02  -    25.02  -    -   

Parti-
culars

Ast at 
1st April,

 2020

Disposals/
Transfers

Asset 
Expired 
& W/off 

Additions/
Disposal

Area Ast at 
01 April 

2021

Additions/
Disposal

As at 
31st March, 

2022

Useful 
Life

The Company has inaugerated its Banswara Showroom during Financial Year 2021-2022 which is fully 

operational w.e.f. 24th January 2022

For the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2021

Banswara Showroom  25.02  -    -    -    25.02 

 -    -    -    -    -   

Total  25.02  -    -    -    25.02 

1-2 Years 2-3 YearsCapital WIP  More than 3 Years TotalLess than 1 Year
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Note: 7   Investments

Particulars As at As at 
st st31  March, 2022 31  March, 2021

Non-Current Investment

 Total Non-Current Investment   ` - ` 250.00   

 Total Investment   ` - ` 250.00  

Investment in Equity Instruments of Subsidiary 

Company

M/s D. P. Jewelline Limited 

(Formerly known as Gatha Trendz Limited)  -  250.00   

*During the Financial Year 2021-22, the company 

has disposed off its wholly owned subsidiary 

D.P. Jewelline Limited on 25th January 2022

(` in Lakhs)
(Unquoted at cost unless otherwise stated)

Note: 8   Trade Receivables

Particulars As at As at 
st st31  March, 2022 31  March, 2021

 Total Trade Receivable  ` 266.31  ` 251.01 

Trade Receivable

Unsecured, considered good

Trade receivables outstanding for a period more 

than six months from the date they are due for 

payment 75.12  11.08 

Others 191.20  239.94 

(` in Lakhs)

Trade receivable ageing schedule are as below:

Particulars
6 months - 

1 year
Undisputed Trade Receivables -  191.20  45.83  24.23  0.64  4.42  266.31 
Considered Good

Undisputed Trade Receivables - 
which have significant increase in credit risk  -    -    -    -    -    -   

Undisputed Trade Receivables-Credit Impaired  -    -    -    -    -    -   

Disputed Trade Receivables - Considered Good  -    -    -    -    -    -   
Disputed Trade Receivables - which have 
significant increase in credit risk  -    -    -    -    -    -   

Disputed Trade Receivables - Credit Impaired  -    -    -    -    -    -   

Total  `191.20  `45.83  `24.23  `0.64  `4.42  `266.31 

Less than 
6 months

 2-3 
years 

1-2 
years

 Total  More than 
3 years 

(` in Lakhs)For the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2022

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
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Note: 9   Other Financial Assets
(` in Lakhs)

Particulars As at As at 
st st 31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021

Other Non-Current Financial Assets

Total Other Non-Current Financial Assets ` 71.96  ` 69.47

Other Current Financial Assets

Total Other Current Financial Assets ` 75.81  ` 247.21

Total Financial Assets ` 147.77  ` 316.69

Security Deposits 71.96  69.47

Advance to Others  7.59 167.50

Advance to Staff  23.22 34.71

Security Deposits  45.00 45.00

Note: 11   Inventories

Particulars As at As at 
st st 31  March, 2022 31 March, 2021

  Total Inventories  `35,040.28  `32,017.19 

a. Raw Materials  2,450.05  4,395.55 

b. Work in Progress  -    -   

c. Finished Goods  18,791.93  16,576.20 

d. Stock-in-Trade  13,726.69  11,000.44 

e. Packing Material & Consumables  71.61  45.00 

(` in Lakhs)

Trade receivable ageing schedule are as below:

Particulars
6 months - 

1 year
Undisputed Trade Receivables -   230.50  11.36  4.73  0.39  4.03  251.01  
Considered Good

Undisputed Trade Receivables - 
which have significant increase in credit risk  -    -    -    -    -    -   

Undisputed Trade Receivables-Credit Impaired  -    -    -    -    -    -   

Disputed Trade Receivables - Considered Good  -    -    -    -    -    -   
Disputed Trade Receivables - which have 
significant increase in credit risk  -    -    -    -    -    -   

Disputed Trade Receivables - Credit Impaired  -    -    -    -    -    -   

Total   `230.50  `11.36  `4.73  `0.39  `4.03  `251.01  

Less than 
6 months

 2-3 
years 

1-2 
years

 Total  More than 
3 years 

(` in Lakhs)For the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2021

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

FIFTH ANNUAL REPORT 2021-22

Note: 10   Other Non Current Assets
(` in Lakhs)

Particulars As at As at 
st st 31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021

Other Non-Current Assets

Total Other Non-Current Assets `10.38  `8.86 

Other Security Deposits  10.38  8.86 
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Inventories are valued as per the following method:

Item Method of Valuation

Raw Materials At Weighted Average Cost

Finished goods/Stock In Trade At Weighted Average Cost or Net Realisable Value, 
whichever is lower

Packing Material & Consumables At Cost, on FIFO Basis
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Note: 12   Cash and Cash Equivalents

Particulars As at As at 
st st31  March, 2022 31  March, 2021

Cash & Cash Equivalents

Total Cash & Cash Equivalents  ` 471.11  ` 1,107.50 

(i)  Cash-in-Hand (As certified by Management) 218.40 513.78 

(ii) Balances with Bank  252.71 593.71  

(` in Lakhs)

Note: 13   Other Current Assets

Particulars As at As at 
st st31  March, 2022 31  March, 2021

Total Other Current Assets  `408.85  `1,541.82 

Other Current Assets

Advance to Suppliers  112.58  121.47 

Advance Tax (Net of Provision)  -    25.19 

Advance Against Property  -    578.14 

Prepaid Expenses  148.94  76.78 

Receivables from Government Authorities  -    1.56 

Receivable against Sale of Windmill Business  -    515.00 

Taxes Receivable  147.34  223.67 

(` in Lakhs)

Note: 14   Equity Share Capital

Particulars As at As at 
st st31  March, 2022 31  March, 2021

(` in 
Lakhs)

Balance at the beginning of the Period

Authorised

Issued, Subscribed & Paidup Capital

Balance at the end of the Period

Authorised

Issued, Subscribed & Paidup Capital

Equity Shares of ` 10 each  22,850,000  2,285.00 22,850,000 2,285.00 

Equity Shares of ` 10 each fully paid up  22,254,850  2,225.49 22,254,850 2,225.49  

Equity Shares of ` 10 each  22,850,000  2,285.00 22,850,000 2,285.00  

Equity Shares of ` 10 each fully paid up  22,254,850  2,225.49 22,254,850 2,225.49

No of 
Shares

(` in 
Lakhs)

No of 
Shares

(` in Lakhs)



(i) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period

Particulars As at As at 
st st31  March, 2022 31  March, 2021

(` in 
Lakhs)

At the Beginning of the Year  22,254,850  2,225.49 22,254,850  2,225.49

Add: Issued During the Year  -    -    -    -   

Outstanding at the end of the Year 22,254,850  2,225.49 22,254,850  2,225.49 

No of 
Shares

(` in 
Lakhs)

No of 
Shares

(` in Lakhs)

(ii) Terms/rights attached to equity shares

The company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity 

shares is entitled for one vote per share. In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares 

will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The 

distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

(iii) Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

Particulars As at As at 
st st31  March, 2022 31  March, 2021

% holding 
in the class

Mr. Ratanlal Kataria  6,540,810 29.39%  6,540,810 29.39%

Mr. Anil Kataria  6,071,230 27.28%  6,071,230 27.28%

Mrs. Renu Kataria  1,259,230 5.66%  1,259,230 5.66%

Outstanding at the end 13,871,270 62.33%  13,871,270 62.33%

of the Year

No of 
Shares

% holding 
in the class

No of 
Shares

(` in Lakhs)
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(iv) Shares held by promoters in the company

Particulars As at As at 
st st31  March, 2022 31  March, 2021
% holding 

in the class
Mr. Ratanlal Kataria  6,540,810 29.39% 0.00%  6,540,810 29.39%

Mr. Anil Kataria  6,071,230 27.28% 0.00%  6,071,230 27.28%

Mrs. Renu Kataria  1,259,230 5.66% 0.00%  1,259,230 5.66%

Mr. Vikas Kataria  607,330 2.73% 0.00%  607,330 2.73%

Mr. Santosh Kataria  607,330 2.73% 0.00%  607,330 2.73%

Mr. Sanjay Kataria  332,000 1.49% 0.00%  332,000 1.49%

Mr. Rajesh Kataria HUF  200,000 0.90% 0.00%  200,000 0.90%

Mr. Vikas Kataria HUF  200,000 0.90% 0.00%  200,000 0.90%

Mr. Santosh Kataria HUF  200,000 0.90% 0.00%  200,000 0.90%

Mr. Anil Kataria HUF  200,000 0.90% 0.00%  200,000 0.90%

Mr. Manoharlal Kataria HUF  200,000 0.90% 0.00%  200,000 0.90%

Mr. Sanjay Kataria HUF  200,000 0.90% 0.00%  200,000 0.90%

Mr. Nitin Pirodiya  6,460 0.03% 0.00%  6,460 0.03%

Mr. Vijesh Kasera  6,460 0.03% 0.00%  6,460 0.03%

 Total  16,630,850 74.73% 0.00%  16,630,850 74.73%

No of 
Shares

% holding 
in the class

No of 
Shares

(` in Lakhs)

% Changes 
during the year

* There is no change in promoters share holding during the year ended March 31, 2022 & March 31, 2021.
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Note: 16   Borrowings
Particulars As at As at 

st st31  March, 2022 31  March, 2021
Non-Current Borrowings
(A) Secured (From Banks & Financial Institutions)

Total of Non Current Borrowings  `2,744.48  `1,033.06 
Current Borrowings
(B) Loans Repayable on Demand 

(C ) Unsecured Loan 

 Total of Current Borrowings  ` 12,513.60  ` 14,559.65 
 Total Borrowings  ` 15,258.08  ` 15,592.71 

(Refer Annexure A Below)
ICICI Bank - Term Loan - 4353  147.00  294.00 
HDFC Bank Car Loan - 8845  8.46  20.27 
HDFC Bank Car Loan - 8502  13.42  26.86 
HDFC Bank Car Loan - 7145  39.85  53.79 
HDFC Bank - ECLGS - 5142  223.44  332.86 
ICICI Bank - ECLGS - 0047  200.61  305.28 
Term Loan From HDFC Bank - 4510  588.73  -   
Term Loan From HDFC Bank - 7212  350.28  -   
HDFC Bank - ECLGS - 9878  1,172.69  -   

(Refer Annexure B Below)
 Cash Credit From ICICI Bank  2,457.41  2,473.71 
 Cash Credit From HDFC Bank  3,151.02  4,402.10 
 Cash Credit From HDFC Bank (Indore)  569.12  591.69 
 HDFC WCDL  2,000.00  -   
 HDFC Bank Ltd Current A/c- Bhilwara Dpal  0.49  -   
 HDFC Bank Ltd Current A/c-bhp Dpal39383  22.81  -   

(Refer Annexure C Below)
 Intercorporate Borrowings  1,396.65  3,614.63 
 Borrowings from Others  2,916.10  3,477.53 

(` in Lakhs)

Particulars

General 
Reserve

Balance at the beginning of the period 

April 01, 2020   1,067.76 -    3,678.38 -    4,746.14 

Balance as at March 31, 2021  `1,067.76  ` -    ` 6,424.59 ` -    ` 7,492.35 
Balance at the beginning of the 

period April 01, 2021  1,067.76  -    6,424.59  -    7,492.35 

- - - - -
 Balance as at March 31, 2022  `1,067.76 ` -    ` 10,512.86  ` -    ` 11,580.62 

Total comprehensive income for the year  -    -    2,746.21 -    2,746.21  

Dividends - -  -   - -

Total comprehensive income for the 

year  -    -   4,088.27  -    4,088.27

Dividends

Securities 
Premium

Remeasurement 
of defined 

benefit plan

Retained 
earnings

Total 
Other 
Equity

(` in Lakhs)
Note: 15   Other Equity

Reserves and Surplus
Other 

Comprehensive 
Income
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HDFC Bank Car Loan - 
8502

The Principal Amount of Car Loan to be repaid in 60 Equal Monthly Installments 
payable from March 07, 2019. 'Interest Rate on Vehicle Loan is 8.90%. This loan is 
secured by way of hypothecation of underlying vehicle.

HDFC Bank Car Loan - 
7145

The Principal Amount of Car Loan to be repaid in 60 Equal Monthly Installments 
payable from October, 05, 2020. 'Interest Rate on Vehicle Loan is 7.60%. This loan 
is secured by way of hypothecation of underlying vehicle.

HDFC Bank - ECLGS-
5142

Tenor of the Loan is 48 months, starting from 07th February, 2021 wherein 12 
months is moratorium period in which only interest is charged and paid, and 
balance 36 months, amount is payable in equated monthly installments. ECLGS 
loan was sanctioned and disbursed based on government guarantee (NCGTC) 
and second charge is created on securities held with HDFC Bank, which 
includes stock, book debts and below mentioned properties. Property No. 1: 
House Bearing S.No 31/188/71 To 73, Sale Deed Dt 05.02.2007 & 10.04.2007, 
Dhanji Bai Ka Nohra, Bajajkhana, Ratlam, 457001, Madhya Pradesh, India 
Property No. 2: New Mu No 24/116/19, Chandani Chouk Ratlam, 457001, 
Madhya Pradesh, India Property No. 3: Flat No. 101, 102 M G Road, Yashwant 
Niwas Road, First Floor And Second Floor, 569/3, M G Road, D N R 90 Degree, 
Indore, 452003, Madhya Pradesh, India. 'Interest Rate On ECLGS Loan Is 7.60% 
Property No. 4: Showroom at Bhopal Plot No. 06 Teh. Huzur, Ward No. 34, 
Malviya Nagar, Bhopal - 462011. 'Interest Rate on ECLGS Loan Is 7.60% p.a.'

ICICI Bank - ECLGS-
0047

Tenor of the Loan is 48 months, starting from 31st March, 2021 wherein 12 
months is moratorium period in which only interest is charged and paid, and 
balance 36 months, amount is payable in equated monthly installments. The 
loan is secured against the Current Assets of the Company. Further as collateral 
security, there is Company's commercial property situated at First Floor and 
Second Floor, 569/3 MG Road, DNR 90 Degree, Indore. 'Interest Rate on the 
Loan procured under this Scheme in Indian Rupees (`) : Interest stipulated is I-
MCLR-1Y+0.30% p.a. i.e. 7.30%+ 0.30% = 7.60% p.a.' 

Particulars of loan Repayment, Interest and Security related terms

Annexure A

ICICI Bank - Term Loan-
4353

The principal amount of Term Loan to be repaid in 72 Equal Monthly Installments 
payable from April 30, 2018 or 6 Months from last drawl of Limit whichever is later. 
'Interest Rate on Term Loan facilities in Indian Rupees (`) : Interest stipulated is I-
MCLR-6M+0.55% p.a. i.e. 7.25%+ 0.55% = 8.70% p.a.  This loan is primarily secured 
by Equitable Mortgage Company's commercial property situated at First Floor 
and Second Floor, 569/3 MG Road, DNR 90 Degree, Indore. Further this loan is 
also having collateral security in the form of  Pari Pasu Charge with other Working 
Capital Banker by way of hypothecation of the Company's entire stocks of raw 
materials, semi-finished goods and finished goods, consumable stores and 
spares and such other movables including book-debts, bills whether 
documentary or clean, outstanding monies, receivables both present and future. 
Futher, it also carries Personal bank gurantee of Vikas Kataria (Promoter), 
Santosh Kataria (Managing Director), Renu Kataria (Non Executive Director), Anil 
Kataria (Whole Time Director) & Ratanlal Kataria (Promoter)

HDFC Bank Car Loan - 
8845

The Principal Amount of Car Loan to be repaid in 60 Equal Monthly Installments 
payable from December 07, 2019. 'Interest Rate on Vehicle Loan is 8.70%. This 
loan is secured by way of hypothecation of underlying vehicle.

HDFC Bank - ECLGS - 
9878

'Tenor of the Loan is 60 months, starting from 21st January, 2022 wherein 24 
months is moratorium period in which only interest is charged and paid, and 
balance 48 months, amount is payable in equated monthly installments. This 
ECLGS loan was sanctioned and disbursed based on 100% government 
guarantee (NCGTC) and second charge is created on securities held with HDFC 
Bank, which includes stock, book debts and below mentioned properties. 
Property No. 1: House Bearing S.No 31/188/71 To 73, Sale Deed Dt 05.02.2007 & 
10.04.2007, Dhanji Bai Ka Nohra, Bajajkhana, Ratlam, 457001, Madhya Pradesh, 
India Property No. 2: New Mu No 24/116/19, Chandani Chouk Ratlam, 457001, 
Madhya Pradesh, India Property No. 3: Flat No. 101, 102 M G Road, Yashwant 
Niwas Road, First Floor And Second Floor, 569/3, M G Road, D N R 90 Degree, 
Indore, 452003, Madhya Pradesh, India. 'Interest Rate On ECLGS Loan Is 7.60% 
Property No. 4: Showroom at Bhopal Plot No. 06 Teh. Huzur, Ward No. 34, 
Malviya Nagar, Bhopal - 462011. 'Interest Rate On ECLGS Loan Is 7.25% p.a.
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Cash Credit From 
HDFC Bank

'Interest on facilities in Indian Rupees : Interest rate of Cash Credit Limit from 
HDFC Bank is I-MCLR-1Y + 1.15% (MCLR Ranges from 8.50% to 9.45%) The loan is 
repayable on demand and is secured by Hypothecation of Company's entire 
Stock, Book debts, Guarantee, Capital Expenditure and below mentioned 
properties: Property No. 1: House Bearing S.No 31/188/71 To 73, Sale Deed Dt 
05.02.2007 & 10.04.2007, Dhanji Bai Ka Nohra, Bajajkhana, Ratlam, 457001, 
Madhya Pradesh, India Property No. 2: New Mu No 24/116/19, Chandani Chouk 
Ratlam, 457001, Madhya Pradesh, India Property No. 3: Flat No. 101, 102 M G 
Road, Yashwant Niwas Road, First Floor And Second Floor, 569/3, M G Road, D 
N R 90 Degree, Indore, 452003, Madhya Pradesh, India. 'Interest Rate On ECLGS 
Loan Is 7.60% Property No. 4: Showroom at Bhopal Plot No. 06 Teh. Huzur, Ward 
No. 34, Malviya Nagar, Bhopal - 462011
Annexure C

Inter-corporate borrowings and Borrowings from others (Directors & Relatives) are repayable on demand and 
carries interest rate @ 9% P.A.

Cash Credit From 
ICICI Bank

'Interest on facilities in Indian Rupees : Interest rate of Cash Credit Limit from 
ICICI Bank is I-MCLR-6M + 0.85% (MCLR Ranges from 8.75% to 9.75%). The loan is 
repayable on demand and is secured by First Charge by way of hypothecation 
of the Company's entire stocks of raw materials, semi-finished goods and 
finished goods, consumable stores and spares and such other moveables 
including book-debts, bills whether documentary or clean, outstanding monies, 
receivables both present and future pari pasu with other working capital banker. 
Further this is also secured by collateral security of Equitable Mortgage 
Company's commercial property situated at First Floor and Second Floor, 569/3 
MG Road, DNR 90 Degree, Indore. Also further secured by Personal bank 
gurantee Vikas Kataria (Promoter), Santosh Kataria (Managing Director), Renu 
Kataria (Non Executive Director), Anil Kataria (Whole TIme Director) & Ratanlal 
Kataria (Promoter) 

Annexure B

HDFC Bank - Term Loan - 
7212

'Tenor of the Loan is 48 months, starting from 07-12-2021. Term loan was 
sanctioned and disbursed based on securities held with HDFC Bank, which 
includes stock, book debts, guarantee, capital expenditure and below 
mentioned properties. Property No. 1: House Bearing S.No 31/188/71 To 73, 
Sale Deed Dt 05.02.2007 & 10.04.2007, Dhanji Bai Ka Nohra, Bajajkhana, 
Ratlam, 457001, Madhya Pradesh, India Property No. 2: New Mu No 24/116/19, 
Chandani Chouk Ratlam, 457001, Madhya Pradesh, India Property No. 3: Flat 
No. 101, 102 M G Road, Yashwant Niwas Road, First Floor And Second Floor, 
569/3, M G Road, D N R 90 Degree, Indore, 452003, Madhya Pradesh, India. 
'Interest Rate On ECLGS Loan Is 7.60% Property No. 4: Showroom at Bhopal Plot 
No. 06 Teh. Huzur, Ward No. 34, Malviya Nagar, Bhopal - 462011. Interest Rate 
on Loan is 7.80% p.a.

HDFC Bank - Term Loan - 
4510

'Tenor of the Loan is 48 months, starting from 07th February 2022. Term loan was 
sanctioned and disbursed based on securities held with HDFC Bank, which 
includes stock, book debts, guarantee, capital expenditure and below 
mentioned properties. Property No. 1: House Bearing S.No 31/188/71 To 73, 
Sale Deed Dt 05.02.2007 & 10.04.2007, Dhanji Bai Ka Nohra, Bajajkhana, 
Ratlam, 457001, Madhya Pradesh, India Property No. 2: New Mu No 24/116/19, 
Chandani Chouk Ratlam, 457001, Madhya Pradesh, India Property No. 3: Flat 
No. 101, 102 M G Road, Yashwant Niwas Road, First Floor And Second Floor, 
569/3, M G Road, D N R 90 Degree, Indore, 452003, Madhya Pradesh, India, 
Property No. 4: Showroom at Bhopal Plot No. 06 Teh. Huzur, Ward No. 34, 
Malviya Nagar, Bhopal - 462011. 'Interest Rate On ECLGS Loan Is 7.30% 

Note: 17   Lease Liabilities (` in Lakhs)
st st Particulars As at  31 March, 2022 As at 31 March, 2021

Lease Liabilities

Total Non-Current Lease Liabilities  ` 833.12  ` 1,065.95 
Lease Liabilities

Total Current Lease Liabilities  ` 232.82  ` 244.98 

Lease Liability  833.12  1,065.95 

Lease Liability  232.82  244.98 
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Note: 19   Other Financial Liabilities
(` in Lakhs)

Particulars As at As at 
st st31 March, 2022 31  March, 2021

Other Current Financial Liabilities
Current Maturities of Long Term Debt

Total Other Current Financial Liabilities  ` 694.46  ` 209.22
Total Other Financial Liabilities  ` 694.46  ` 209.22

Term Loan From HDFC Bank - 4510  180.45         -   

Term Loan From HDFC Bank - 7212  113.73  -   

ICICI Bank - Term Loan  147.00  147.00 

HDFC Bank Car Loan - 8845  11.81  10.83 

HDFC Bank Car Loan - 8502  13.45  12.30 

HDFC Bank Car Loan - 7145  13.94  12.93 

HDFC Bank - ECLGS - 9878  -    - 

HDFC Bank - ECLGS - 5142  109.41  17.44 

ICICI Bank - ECLGS  104.67  8.72 

Interest Accrued but not due on borrowings  -    - 

Note: 18   Trade Payables
(` in Lakhs)

Particulars As at As at 
st st 31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021

Trade Payables

Total Trade Payables  ` 6,059.47  ` 7,779.84 

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and 
small enterprises  2,246.87  2,609.65 

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 
enterprises and small enterprises  3,812.60  5,170.19 

Particulars

(i) MSME  2,240.00  3.70  -    0.75  2,244.46 

(ii) Others  3,809.91  3.11  1.16  0.83  3,815.01 

(iii) Disputed Dues - MSME -    -    -    -    -   

(iv) Disputed Dues - Others -    -    -    -    -   

Total  6,049.92  6.81  1.16  1.58  6,059.47 

Less than 
1 year

 2-3 
years 

1-2 
years

 Total  More than 
3 years 

(` in Lakhs)For the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2022

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars

(i) MSME   1,875.20  -    -    0.75  1,875.95  

(ii) Others   5,899.61  1.27  1.84  1.16  5,903.88 

(iii) Disputed Dues - MSME -    -    -    -    -   

(iv) Disputed Dues - Others -    -    -    -    -   

Total   7,774.81  1.27  1.84  1.91  7,779.84  

Less than 
1 year

 2-3 
years 

1-2 
years

 Total  More than 
3 years 

(` in Lakhs)For the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2021

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Trade Payables ageing schedules are as below:
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Note: 20   Other Current Liabilities
(` in Lakhs)

Particulars As at As at 
st st31 March, 2022 31  March, 2021

Other Current Liabilities

 -    -

Provision for Expenses  216.89  202.13
Total Other Current Liabilities  ` 4,279.53 ` 4,943.48

Statutory Dues Payable  84.06  79.24 

Gift Voucher A/c  2.55  -

Advance from Customers  3,976.03  4,662.11 

(Advance from Customers includes an amount of 

Rs. received towards Sale of Jewellery products 

under the various sales initatives/ retails Customer 

Schemes which are redeemable by way of sale 

alone within 11 Months from the reporting date)

Note: 21  Provisions
(` in Lakhs)

Particulars As at As at 
st st 31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021

Non-Current Provision

Total Non-Current Provision  ₹ 65.23  ₹ 93.19 

Total Current Provision  ₹ 24.50  ₹ -   

Total Provision  ₹ 89.73  ₹ 93.19 

Provision for Gratuity  65.23  93.19 

Current Provision  -   

Provision for Income Tax  24.50  -   

Note: 22   Deferred Tax Assets/Liabilities (Net)

Particulars As at As at 
st st 31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021

Deffered Tax Asset

Total Deffered Tax Asset  ` 0.60  ` 23.63 

Deffered Tax Liability

Total Deffered Tax Liability  ` 108.33  ` 111.09 

Net Deffered Tax Liability  ` 107.73  ` 87.46 

Opening Balance as on 01.04.2021  -    19.48 

On Account of Gratuity for FY 2021-22  0.60  4.14 

Opening Balance as on 01.04.2021  87.46  90.47 

On Account of Gratuity  7.04  -   

On Account of Depreciation for FY 2021-22  13.83  20.62 

(` in Lakhs)
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Note: 25   Cost of Materials Consumed
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

st st31 March, 2022 31  March, 2021

Cost of Raw Material Consumed ` 44,361.65 ` 21,997.38

Total Cost of Materials consumed  ` 44,361.65 ` 21,997.38

Inventory at the beginning of the year   4,395.55   1,805.78

Add: Purchases during the year   42,416.15  24,587.15

Less: Inventory at the end of the year   2,450.05  4,395.55

(` in Lakhs)

Principal items of Raw Materials Consumed For the year ended For the year ended
st st31  March, 2022 31  March, 2021

Total Principal items of Raw Materials Consumed  ` 44,127.05 ` 21,713.74   

Gold Bullion  27,154.72 9,431.25  

Old Gold Ornaments  16,972.34 12,282.49   

Note: 23   Revenue from Operations

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended 
st st 31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021

Sales of Products

 Total Revenue from Operations  ` 1,73,137.99  ` 1,21,816.90 

Sales of Manufactured Goods  45,595.78  22,153.50 

Sales of Traded Goods  1,27,542.21  99,548.84 

Sale of Power generated through Wind Mill  -    114.56 

(` in Lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
st st31  March, 2022 31  March, 2021

Dissegregated Revenue Information

 Total Dissegregated Revenue Information  ` 1,73,137.99  ` 1,21,816.90 

Revenue from Retail  Operations  1,60,647.40  1,09,133.59 

Revenue from Non Retail  Operations - Domestic  12,490.58  12,397.98 

Revenue from Non Retail  Operations - Export  -    285.33 

Note: 24   Other Income
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

st st31 March, 2022 31  March, 2021

Total Other Income  ` 32.00  ` 11.46

Commission Received  3.36  -   

Interest Income  6.46  7.90 

Misc. Income  13.38  0.03 

Profit on Sale of Fixed Assets  -    3.53 

Rental Income  8.80  -   

(` in Lakhs)
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Note: 26   Purchases of Stock-in-Trade
Particular For the year ended For the year ended

st st31  March, 2022 31  March, 2022

Total Purchases of Stock-in-Trade  ` 1,21,684.30  ` 97,667.55  

Purchase of Stock-in-Trade  1,21,684.30  97,667.55  

(` in Lakhs)

Principal items of Purchase of Stock-in-Trade For the year ended For the year ended
st st31 March, 2022 31  March, 2021

Total Principal items of Purchase of Stock-in-Trade  `1,09,674.87 ` 88,549.06

Diamonds   8,955.18  5,517.14

Gold Bullion   16,065.43  17,376.46

Gold Jewellery  84,654.26  65,655.47

Note: 27   Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, Work-in-Progress 
and Stock-in-Trade
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

st st31 March, 2022 31  March, 2021

(A) Work in Progress

 -    -   

Total (A)  ` -    ` -   

(B) Finished Goods

Total (B)  ` -2,215.72 ` -3,914.17 

(C) Stock-in-Trade

Total (C)  -2,726.25 ` -2,509.72 

Total Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, 

Work-in-Progress and Stock-in-Trade -4,941.98  ` -6,423.89 

Opening Work in Progress  -    -   

Less: Closing Work in Progress

Opening of Finished Goods 16,576.20  12,662.03  

Less: Closing of Finished Goods 18,791.93  16,576.20 

Opening of Stock in Trade 11,000.44 8,490.72 

Less: Closing of Stock in Trade 13,726.69 11,000.44 

(` in Lakhs)

Note: 28   Employee Benefit Expenses

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
st st 31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021

Total Employee Benefit Expenses ` 1,742.24 ` 1,287.32

Salary & Incentives  1,579.96 1,151.23 

Contribution towards various Funds for Employee Benefit  92.46 64.09  

Directors Remmuneration  69.82 72.00

(` in Lakhs)
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Note: 29   Finance Cost

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
st st31 March, 2022 31  March, 2021

(A) Interest Expenses

Total (A)  ` 1,199.75 ` 867.74 

(B) Bank Charges & Other Finance Related Expenses

Total (B)  `222.84 ` 138.76

(C ) CC Limit Renewal Charges

Total (C)  ` 35.77 ` 18.23

Interest on CC Limit  591.40 308.67

Interest on Unsecured Loans  468.23 494.33

Interest on Term Loan   60.17 44.29

Interest on Vehicle Loan  9.72 10.12

Interest on Gold Metal Loan - 5.50 

Interest on ECLGS  70.22 4.83   

Bank Charges & Stampting Expenses  222.84 138.76

CC Limit Renwal Charges  35.77 18.23 

(` in Lakhs)

(D) Interest on Lease Liabilities

Total (D)  ` 61.00 ` 54.57

Total Finance Cost ` 1,519.35  ` 1,079.31

Interest on Lease Liabilities 61.00 54.57

Note: 30  Depreciation and Amortization Expense

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
st st31 March, 2022 31  March, 2021

Total Depreciation and Amortization Expense  ` 537.03  ` 394.70 

Depreciation on Property, Plant & Equipment 

(Refer Note No. 3)  249.08  250.86 

Depreciation on Right-of-Use Assets 

(Refer Note No. 4)  287.84  143.73 

Depreciation on Other Intangible Assets 

(Refer Note No. 6)  0.11  0.11 

(` in Lakhs)

Note: 31   Other Expenses
(` in Lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
st st 31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021

(A) Manufacturing Expenses & Consumables

Total (A)  `1,098.70  `605.55 

(B) Selling, Distribution & Administrative Expenses

Making Charges  691.31  376.03 

Certification & Testing Expenses  53.68  25.43 

Stores & Consumables (Packing Materials)  339.03  189.92 

Jewellery Designing Charges  14.69  14.18    

Advertisement Expenses  469.80  481.59 

Brokerage & Commission Expense  5.31  12.91 
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Discount Expenses  309.53  293.96 

Electricity Expenses  96.83  64.68 

Freight & Carriage Expenses  54.96  62.51 

Insurance of Customer Jewellery Expenses  0.05  0.01 

Rental Expenses  48.63  34.89 

Repairs & Maintenance Expenses  169.43  150.04 

Royalty Expenses  52.03  34.86 

Security Expenses  54.71  38.94 

Showroom Expenses  150.42  91.00 

Stationary & Printing Expenses  22.45  14.80 

Telephone Expenses  16.75  15.89 

Travelling & Conveyance Expenses  49.99  40.38 

Vehicle Running Expenses  33.91  31.58  

CSR Expense  45.06 33.89  

Donation Expenses  2.38  0.50 

Director Sitting Fees Expenses  0.96  1.04 

Fees & Other Subscription Charges  25.76  35.76 

Foreign Currency Exchange Rate Diff  -  4.04 

Insurance Expenses  13.80  14.08 

Interest & Late Fees on Taxes  10.63  1.96 

Legal & Professional Charges  24.85  24.05 

Postage & Courier Expenses -  0.73 

Prior Period Expense  3.36  1.55 

Annual Listing Fees, Market Making Charges & 

other related expenses  4.43  9.29

Penalty Expense 0.05   -

Rates & Taxes  2.32  4.25

Written Off 0.96 -  

Loss on Sale of Windmill Business  - 0.49

Loss from Theft 3.61 -

Loss on Sale of Subsidiary 25.00 -  

Internal Audit Fees  2.10  1.80 

Secreterial Audit Fees  -    0.40 

Statutory Audit Fees  7.50  4.50 

Tax Audit Fees  0.75  0.75 

Wind Mill Operation & Maintainance Expenses  - 43.76 

-

Total (B)  ` 1,534.81  ` 1,368.05

(C) Other Expenses

Total (C)   ` 163.16  ` 131.64 

(D) Payment to Auditor

Total (D)  ` 10.35  ` 7.45 

(E) Windmill Maintenance Expenses

Total (E)   ` 43.76 

Total Other Expenses  ` 2,807.02  ` 2,156.45
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Note: 34   Financial Instruments
34.1  Financial Instruments - Fair values

Accounting classification and fair values

Level 1:

Level 2:

Level 3:

Carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels in the fair 

value hierarchy, are presented below.

The fair value of financial instruments have been classified into three categories depending on the inputs used 

in the valuation technique. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for identical 

assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements)

The categories used are as follows:

 Quoted prices for identical instruments in an active market;

 Directly or indirectly observable market inputs, other than Level 1 inputs; and

 Inputs which are not based on observable market data.

FIFTH ANNUAL REPORT 2021-22

Note: 32   Basic & Diluted EPS
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

st st31  March, 2022 31  March, 2021

Net profit after tax (` In Lakhs)  ` 4,043.54 ` 2,746.21

Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares (In Lakhs)  222.55  222.55 

Face Value of Shares (`)  ` 10.00 ` 10.00 

Earnings Per Shares - Basic & Diluted (`) ` 18.17 ` 12.34

Note: 33   Tax Expense Reconciliation
(` in Lakhs)

Particulars As at As at 
st st31 March, 2022 31  March, 2021

A. Expense / (benefit)  recognised in statement of profit and loss:

 Total Tax expense recognised in the current year  ` 1,416.83  ` 923.34 
B. Reconciliation of effective tax rate

Adjustments to reconcile expected income tax 

expense to reported income tax expense:

 Income tax expenses recognised in the statement 
of profit and loss  `1,416.83  `923.34 

Current tax  1,396.56  919.75 
Deferred tax  20.27  3.59 

Profit before income taxes  5,460.37  3,669.55 
Enacted rate in India 25.17% 25.17%
Expected income tax expenses  1,374.27  923.55 

Effect of expenses not deductible in determining taxable profit  22.30  0.34 
Changes in income tax rates  -    -   
Effect of expenses not deductible in determining 

taxable profit - IND AS Adjustments  -  -3.96 
Others  20.27  3.41 
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Financial assets
At amortised cost

At fair value through profit and loss

Total Assets  885.20  1,925.19  147.77  316.69 
Financial liabilities
At amortised cost

 
Total Liabilities 23,077.96  24,892.69  -    -   

Investments in Subsidiary  -    250.00  -    -   

Trade receivables 266.31  251.01  -    -   

Cash and bank balances  471.11  1,107.50  -    -   

Other financial assets 147.77  316.69  147.77  316.69 

Borrowings  15,258.08  15,592.71  -    -   

Trade payables 6,059.47  7,779.84  -    -   

Other financial liabilities (Includes Lease 

Liabilities)  1,760.41  1,520.15  -    -  

Carrying Value

31-Mar-22

Fair Value

31-Mar-21 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21

Particulars

Fair value hierarchy:
The following table categorise the financial assets and liabilities held at fair value by the valuation 

methodology applied in determining their fair value.

As at 31 March 2022  Level 1  Level 2  Level 3  Total 

Other financial assets  -    -     147.77  147.77

As at 31 March 2021 Level 1  Level 2  Level 3  Total 

Other financial assets  -    -    316.69  316.69

34.2   Financial Risk Management

The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:

a)  Credit Risk

b)  Liquidity Risk

c)  Market Risk 

The Company’s board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the 

Company’s risk management framework. The board of directors along with the top management are 

responsible for developing and monitoring the Company's risk management policies.

The Company's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the 

Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk 

management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the 

Company's activities. The Company, through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to 

maintain a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles and 

obligations.

Risk Management Framework

(` in Lakhs)
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a. Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails 

to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Company's trade receivables, certain loans 

and advances and other financial assets.

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure.

The maximum exposure to credit risk for trade and other receivables are as follows:

Particulars   As at As at 
st st 31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021

Total 885.20 1,675.19 

 

Trade receivables 266.31 251.01 

Cash and cash equivalents 471.11 1,107.50

Other financial assets 147.77 316.69 

(` in Lakhs)

The Company's audit committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company's risk 

management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in 

relation to the risks faced by the Company,

Trade receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Other financial assets

The Company has developed guidelines for the management of credit risk from trade receivables. The 

Company's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer The 

demographics of the customer, including the default risk of the industry and country in which the customer 

operates, also has an influence on credit risk assessment. 

The Company held cash and cash equivalents with credit worthy banks and financial institutions as at the 

reporting dates which has been measured on the 12-month expected loss basis. The credit worthiness of such 

banks and financial institutions are evaluated by the management on an ongoing basis and is considered to be 

good with low credit risk. Also, no impairment loss has been recorded in respect of fixed deposits that are with 

recognised commercial banks and are not past due.

Other financial assets mainly include security deposits as well as other advances receivable on demand where 

the credit risk is envisaged to be minimal. The Company has not acquired any credit impaired asset. There was 

no modification in any financial assets.

The Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk as at 31st March 2022 and 31st March 2021 is the carrying 

value of each class of financial assets.

34.3   Financial Instruments - Risk Management (Continued)

b. Liquidity Risks

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its 

financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company’s approach to 

managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when 

they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking 

damage to the Company’s reputation. 

The Company has current financial assets which the management believes is sufficient to meet all its liabilities 

maturing during the next 12 months.

The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts 

are gross and undiscounted, including contractual interest.
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Borrowings 15,258.08 15,258.08 12,513.60  2,744.48 
Trade payables   6,059.47 6,059.47 6,049.92  9.55   
Other financial liabilities  1,760.41 1,760.41 927.28  833.12 

Carrying Total Less than More than
amount  one year one year

Total  23,077.96 23,077.96 19,490.80  3,587.16 

Particulars

Borrowings  15,592.71 15,592.71  14,559.65  1,033.06  
Trade payables  7,779.84 7,779.84 7,779.84 -  
Other financial liabilities  1,520.15 1,520.15 454.20  1,065.95 

Carrying Total Less than More than
amount  one year one year

Total  24,892.69 24,892.69 22,793.69  2,099.01 

As at 31 March 2021
Particulars

34.4   Financial Instruments - Fair Value and Risk Management (Continued)

c. Market Risks

Market risk is the risk of loss of future earnings or fair values or future cash flows that may result from a change in 

the price of a financial instrument. The value of a financial instrument may change as a result of changes in the 

interest rates, foreign exchange rates and other market changes that affect market risk sensitive instruments. 

Market risk is attributable to all market risk sensitive financial instruments including foreign currency receivables 

and payables. The Company is exposed to market risk primarily related to foreign exchange rate risk (currency 

risk), interest rate risk and the market value of its investments. Thus the Company’s exposure to market risk is a 

function of investing and borrowing activities and revenue generating and operating activities in foreign 

currencies.

(` in Lakhs)



34.5   Capital Management & Gearing Ratio

For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital and all other 

equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the Company. The primary objective of the Company's 

capital management is to maximize the shareholder value. 

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions 

and the requirements of the financial covenants. From time to time, the Company reviews its policy related to 

dividend payment to shareholders. The Company monitors capital using gearing ratio, which is net debt 

divided by total capital plus net debt. The Company includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and 

borrowings, less cash and cash equivalents.

The Company's capital management is intended to create value for shareholders by facilitating the meeting of 

its long-term and short-term goals. Its Capital structure consists of net debt (borrowings as detailed in notes 

below) and total equity.

Borrowings 15,952.54 15,801.93

Less: Cash and bank balances -477.11 -1,107.50  

Capital and net debt 29,287.53 24,412.27 

st st31  March, 2022  31  March, 2021

Net borrowings (I) 15,481.42  14,694.44 

Total Capital (ii) 13,806.11 9,717.84

Net debt to Total Capital 

plus net debt ratio (%) 53% 60%

Gearing Ratio
The gearing ratio at the end of the reporting period was as follows:

(i) Debt is defined as Non - Current borrowings (including current maturities) and current borrowings and 

interest accrued on Non - Current borrowings and Current borrowings.

(ii) Equity is defined as Equity share capital and other equity including reserves and surplus.
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(` in Lakhs)
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Sr. No. Names of the related parties with whom 
transaction were carried out during 

the period and description of relationship:

Company/Entity owned or Significantly 

Influenced by Directors/KMP/ Individuals 

owning interest in voting power that gives 

them significant influence over the 

enterprise or their relatives

1 1. D.P. Jewelline Limited

2. Manratan Trades Pvt Ltd

3. Manratan Retail Pvt. Ltd. 

4. D.P. Power, Ratlam

5. Namaskar Casting Pvt Ltd

6. Santosh Ratanlal Kataria (HUF)

7. Sanjay Manohar Lal Kataria (HUF)

8. Rajesh Manoharlal Kataria (HUF)

9. Manoharlal Pannalal Kataria (HUF)

10. Anil Manoharlal Kataria (HUF)

11. Ratanlal Pannalal Kataria (HUF)

Key Management Personnel's/Directors2 1. Vikas Kataria

2. Renu Kataria

3. Santosh Kataria

4. Vijesh Kumar Kasera

5. Amit Bandi

6. CS Varsha Gang

7. CS Aashi Neema

Relatives of Key Management 

Personnel’s:

3 1. Anil Kataria

2. Sanjay Kataria

3. Aman Kataria

4. Anisha Kataria

5. Manjuladevi Kataria

6. Muskan Kataria

7. Rajesh Kataria

8. Ratanlal Kataria

9. Sangeeta Kataria

10. Sumandevi Kataria

11. Supriya Kataria

12. Meena Kataria

13. Udit Kataria

14. Santosh Kasera

Note: 35   Notes Forming the Part of Accounts

35.1: Related Party Transaction

Related Parties
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15. Sweety Kothari

16. Nitin Pirodiya

17. Ranglal Chordia

(` In Lakhs) 

Related 
Parties

Key Managerial Personnel

                                           Relatives of Key Managerial Person

Vikas Kataria 29.70 170.21 33.45 0.00 0.00

Renu Kataria 14.27 204.88 0.24 0.00 0.00

Santosh Kataria 72.90 225.61 30.38 0.00 0.00

Anil Kataria 206.65 430.95 35.25 0.00 0.00

Vijesh Kumar Kasera 0.00 0.00 7.23 0.00 0.00

Amit Bandi - CEO 0.00 0.00 14.11 0.00 0.00

Varsha Gang – CS 0.00 0.00 1.47 0.00 0.00

Aashi Neema – CS 0.00 0.00 0.23 0.00 0.00

Sanjay Kataria 102.25 152.85 0.00 0.00 0.00

Aman Kataria 0.75 109.35 0.00 12.00 0.00

Anisha Kataria 0.00 2.50 0.00 0.00 0.00

Manjula Devi Kataria 1.50 203.90 0.00 0.00 0.00

Muskan Kataria 8.55 1.80 0.00 0.00 0.00

Meena Kataria 26.00 5.40 0.00 0.00 0.00

Nitin Pirodiya 0.00 0.00 9.40 0.00 0.00

Rajesh Kataria 7.00 8.41 0.00 0.00 0.00

Ranglal Chordia 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.79

Ratanlal Kataria 31.85 85.76 35.25 12.00 0.00

Sangeeta Kataria 128.37 87.15 0.00 0.00 0.00

Suman Devi Kataria 214.30 109.74 0.00 12.00 0.00

Supriya Kataria 0.00 56.31 0.00 0.00 0.00

Santosh Kasera 0.00 0.00 5.44 0.00 0.00

Sweety Kothari 0.00 0.00 9.40 0.00 0.00

Udit Kataria 0.00 1.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Remuneration Paid/
Payable, Sitting Fee

 Loan 
Received 

Loan 
Repaid

Rent Purchase/ 
Sale 

Transaction 
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Other Companies/Entities

D.P. Jewelline Limited 19.00 117.70 0.00 0.00 0.00

Manratan Trades Pvt. Ltd 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Manratan Retail Pvt. Ltd. 1777.90 3412.57 0.00 0.00 0.00

D P Power 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Namaskar Casting Pvt. Ltd 45.25 37.15 0.00 0.00 0.00

Santosh Ratanlal Kataria (HUF) 0.00 87.81 0.00 0.00 0.00

Sanjay Manohar Lal Kataria (HUF) 242.24 5.67 0.00 0.00 0.00

Rajesh Manoharlal Kataria (HUF) 0.75 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Manoharlal Pannalal Kataria (HUF) 25.00 2.47 0.00 0.00 0.00

Anil Manoharlal Kataria (HUF) 84.61 2.08 0.00 0.00 0.00

Ratanlal Pannalal Kataria (HUF) 0.00 30.81 0.00 0.00 0.00
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35.4

In the opinion of director, the value on realization of current assets, loans and advances, if realized in the 

ordinary course of the business, shall not be less than the amount, which is stated in the current year balance 

sheet. 

The provisions for all known liabilities are reasonable and not in excess of amount considered reasonably 

necessary.

35.5

Figures have been rounded off to the nearest ̀  in lacs and have been regrouped, rearranged and reclassified 

wherever necessary.

35.6

Wherever no vouchers and documentary evidences were made available for our verification, we have relied on 

the representation given by management of the company. 

35.7 Earnings per Share

The numerators and denominators used to calculate Basic/Diluted Earnings per share: 

A. Profit After Tax – (Numerator) `40,88,26,966.59 `27,46,20,836.20

B. Basic/Weighted Average number of 

Equity Shares – (Denominator) 2,22,54,850 2,22,54,850

C. Face Value of Equity Shares ` 10.00 ` 10.00

D. Earnings Per Share (EPS) `18.17 `12.34

For the Period ended 
st31  March, 2021

ParticularsSr. 
No

For the Period ended 
st31  March, 2022
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35.2 Pending Litigation

The Company has a matter pending before Income Tax Authority for the AY 2018-19.

Name of the Nature of Unpaid Amount Period to which Forum where
Statute Due  Involved the amount relates dispute is pending

Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax ₹ 12,57,300 AY 2018-19 Commissioner of 
Liability Income Tax (Appeals)

Class of Goods

Gold Bullion/Jewellery and 

Stones Gram 560823.665 5927432.074 5948229.802 540025.937

Diamonds and  Diamonds 

Jewellery (Gross) Gram 132936.026 302880.844 275800.107 160016.762

Silver Bullion and Jewellery Gram 1579897.012 4945588.212 5157173.196 1368312.028

Platinum Jewellery Gram 2198.255 241.512 895.63 1544.137

Mis. Items Articles Nos. 118982 4544 3176 120350

Purchases/
Receipts

Unit
Opening 

Stock
Sales/

Consumption
Closing 
Stock

35.3   Quantitative information for the year ended 31st March 2022

( ` ) Amount in 
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35.8   Expenditure in Foreign Currency
(` In Lakhs) 

Commitments

Contingent Liabilities

Claims against the company not acknowledged as 

debts:

Estimated Amount of contracts remaining unexecuted 

on capital account (net of advances) not provided for - -

- -

- -

Disputed demand of income tax for which appeals 12.57 12.57

have been preferred

Disputed demand of VAT/Sales Tax Appeal - -

For the Period ended 
st31  March, 2021

Particulars For the Period ended 
st31  March, 2022

35.9   Disclosure required under section 22 of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
(` In Lakhs) 

Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as 

at the end of the year 2,246.87 2,609.65

Interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier 

as at the end of the accounting year - -

The amount of interest paid along with the amounts 

of the payment made to the supplier beyond the 

appointed day - - -

The amount of interest due and payable for the 

period of delay in making payment (which have been 

paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) 

but without adding the interest specified under 

MSMED Act - - -

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid 

at the end of accounting year - -

The amount of further interest due and payable even 

in succeeding year, until such date when the interest 

dues as above are actually paid to the small 

enterprises, for the purpose of disallowance as a 

deductible expenditure under section 23 - -

Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises have been 

determined to the extent such parties have been

identified on the basis of information collected by 

the management. This has been relied upon by the 

auditors. - -

For the Period ended 
st31  March, 2021

Particulars For the Period ended 
st31  March, 2022
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35.11   Events after the reporting period

The Company has evaluated subsequent events from the balance sheet date through 05 May 2022, the date at 

which the financial statement were available to be issued, and determine that there are no material items to 

disclose other than those disclosed.

35.12  Other Statutory information

(a) The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), 

including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

(i) Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or 

onbehalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(ii) Provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b) The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities 

(Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company 

shall:

(i) Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or 

onbehalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(ii) Provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(c) The Company does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that 

has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income 

Tax Act, 1961.

35.13  Relationship with Struck off companies

There are no balance outstanding on account of any transaction with companies struck off under section 248 of 

the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act,1956.

35.10   Contingent liabilities and commitments (to the extent not provided for)

st stParticulars As at 31  March, As at 31  March, 
2022 2021

Opening amount yet to be spent -0.02 -

Gross amount required to be spent by the 

company during the year 50.02 33.87

Amount spent by the company during the year

- Construction/Acquisition of any asset

- On purpose other than mentioned above 45.06 33.89

Closing/(Excess) amount yet to be spent 4.94 -0.02

Note– The Company has transferred unspent Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) amount as at the end of the 
previous financial year, to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to the Companies Act within a period of six months of 
the expiry of the financial year in compliance with second proviso to sub-section (5) of section 135 of the said 
Act;
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 35.14

MCA has issued notification dated March 24, 2021 to amend the schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013 to 

enhance the disclosures required to be made by the Company in the financial statements. These amendments 

are applicable to the Company with effect from 1st day of April 2021. The figures for the previous year have 

been regrouped/ rearranged, wherever necessary, to correspond with the current period’s 

classification/disclosure.

 35.15  The standalone financial statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 24th May, 

2022.

 35.16  Dividend on Equity Shares

The Board of Directors has recommended a dividend @Rs. 1.00/- per equity share (10%) of the face value of Rs. 

10.00 per share for the financial year 2021-22.

 35.17   Segment Reporting

The Company’s business activity falls within a single primary business segment of “Jewellery” and one 

reportable geographical segment which is “within India”. Accordingly, the company is a single segment 

company in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard 108 “Operating Segment”.

 35.18   The Company has not traded or invested in any crypto currency or virtual currency during the financial 

year.

 35.19    The Company is not declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institutions.

 35.20    Ratio Analysis and its Components

S. No. Particulars 31-03-2022 31-03-2021 % Change

1 Current Ratio 1.52 1.27 20.16%

2 Debt Equity Ratio 1.11 1.60 -31.12%

3 Debt Service Coverage Ratio 3.36 3.21 4.49%

4 Return on Equity Ratio 34.38% 32.91% 4.46%

5 Inventory Turnover Ratio 5.17 3.81 35.77%

6 Trade Receivable Turnover Ratio 669.36 686.62 -2.51%

7 Trade Payable Turnover Ratio 24.00 17.56 36.64%

8 Net Capital Turnover Ratio 13.90 16.40 -15.26%

9 Net Profit Ratio 2.34% 2.25% 3.60%

10 Return on Capital Employed 22.92% 17.93% 27.83%

1 Current Ratio

2 Debt Equity Ratio

  

 Numerator Current Assets         36,262.37         35,164.73 

 Denominator Current Liabilities         23,804.38         27,737.17 

  

 Numerator Total Debt         15,258.08         15,592.71 

 Denominator Total Equity         13,806.11           9,717.84 

S. No. Particulars 31-03-2022 31-03-2021
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3 Debt Service Coverage Ratio   

 Numerator Earning Available 5,800.15           4,006.17 
for Debt Service

Denominator Finance Cost &           1,728.58           1,247.50 
Lease Payment + 
Principal repayment of 
Long term borrowings 
During the Year  

4 Return on Equity Ratio   

 Numerator Net Profit After Tax           4,043.54 2,746.21 

 Denominator Average Total Equity 11,761.97 8,344.73 

5 Inventory Turnover Ratio   

 Numerator Revenue from operation      1,73,137.99      1,21,816.90 

 Denominator Average Inventory         33,470.43         31,972.19 

6 Trade Receivable Turnover 
Ratio   

 Numerator Revenue from operation      1,73,137.99      1,21,816.90 

 Denominator Average Trade Receivable 258.66 177.42 

7 Trade Payable Turnover Ratio   

 Numerator Cost of Material Consumed + 
Purchase of Stock in Trade      1,66,045.94      1,19,664.93 

 Denominator Average Trade Payable           6,919.65           6,813.91 

8 Net Capital Turnover Ratio   

 Numerator Revenue from operation      1,73,137.99      1,21,816.90 

 Denominator Net Working Capital         12,457.99           7,427.56  

9 Net Profit Ratio   

 Numerator Net Profit after Tax           4,043.54           2,746.21 

 Denominator Revenue from Operation      1,73,137.99      1,21,816.90 

10 Return on Capital Employed   

 Numerator Profit Before Interest & Tax           6,660.12           4,537.29 

Denominator Total Equity + Total Debts         29,064.18         25,310.55 

 

 As per our report of even date, For, M/s D.P. ABHUSHAN LIMITED
CIN - L74999MP2017PLC043234

 For, JEEVAN JAGETIYA & CO 
 (Chartered Accountants) 
 FRN No: 121335W 

Jeevan Jagetiya 
Partner 
Membership No: 046553 

 
Date: 24th May, 2022
Place:  Ratlam 

Anil Kataria
(Whole Time Director)

DIN:- 00092730

Santosh Kataria
 (Managing Director) 

DIN: 02855136

Vijesh Kumar Kasera
(Chief Financial Officer)

Aashi Neema
 (Company Secretary)

 M. No. 67041 
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To,

The Members of

D.P. ABHUSHAN LIMITED

Ratlam

We have audited the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements of D. P. ABHUSHAN LIMITED (‘hereinafter 

referred to as ‘The Holding Company’), its subsidiary(the Holding Company and its subsidiary together referred 

to as ‘the Group’) which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2022, the Consolidated 

statement of Profit and Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Cash 

Flow Statement and the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended on 31st March, 2022, 

and notes to the Consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and 

other explanatory information. (Hereinafter referred to as “Consolidated financial statements”)

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 

Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 as 

amended (“the act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian 

Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting 

Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of 

the state of affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2022, its Consolidated profit including other comprehensive 

income, its Consolidated cash flow and the Consolidated changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

We conducted our Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards on 

Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are 

further described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements’ 

section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the 

Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our 

audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made there 

under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the 

ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide 

a basis for our audit opinion on the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements.

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of utmost significance in our audit 

of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the 

context of our audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion 

thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For matter below, our description of how 

our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our 

report. We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the 

Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. 

Accordingly, our audit included the performance to these procedures designed to respond to our assessment of 

the risk of the material misstatement of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements.

OPINION

BASIS OF OPINION

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
CONSOLIDATED
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The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide 

the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue from sale of goods is recognized when 

control of the products being sold is transferred to 

the customer and when there are no other 

unfulfilled obligations. The performance 

obligations in the contracts are fulfilled at the time 

of dispatch, delivery or upon formal customer 

acceptance depending on customer terms. 

We identified revenue recognition as a key audit 

matter because the Group and its external 

stakeholders focus on revenue as a key 

performance indicator. This could create an 

incentive for revenue to be overstated or 

recognized before control has been transferred.

HOW THE MATTER WAS 
ADDRESSED IN OUR AUDIT

In view of the significance of the matter we applied 

the following audit procedures in this area, among 

other procedures, to obtain sufficient appropriate 

audit evidence:

1. We assessed the appropriateness of the 

revenue recognition accounting policies and its 

compliances with applicable Indian Accounting 

Standards. We read the contracts with customer, 

distributors, franchisees etc. to determine 

appropriateness of revenue recognition.

2. We evaluated the design of key internal 

financial controls and operating effectiveness of 

the relevant key controls with respect to revenue 

recognition on selected transactions.

3. We evaluated the design, implementation and 

operating effectiveness of management's general 

IT controls and key application controls over the 

Group’s IT systems which govern revenue 

recognition, including access controls, controls 

over program changes and interfaces between 

different systems.

INVENTORY VALUATION

The Group is engaged in Manufacturing and 

Trading of Gold and other precious ornaments. 

Raw materials are valued at cost.  

Valuation of inventories is done at Cost of NRV 

 whichever is lower. 

As inventories of the Group comprise of high value 

items, we have identified valuation of inventory as 

a key audit matter.

Our audit procedures over the valuation of 

Inventories included the following:

We compared the net realizable values on 

sample basis of gold, silver and platinum 

inventories calculated based on the current 

market price with their carrying value of 

Inventories.
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INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND 
AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON

MANAGEMENT AND BOARD OF DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE 
CONSOLIDATED IND AS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information 

comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report including 

Annexure to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance Report, and Shareholder 

Information, but does not include the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements and our auditor’s report 

thereon. The Annual report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do 

not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the 

other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the 

Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or 

otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the other information identified above, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement 

therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the 

Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to preparation of these Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements 

that give a true and fair view of the Consolidated financial position, Consolidated financial performance 

including other comprehensive income, Consolidated cash flows and Consolidated changes in equity of the 

Group in accordance with the Accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian 

Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the act, read with companies ( Indian Accounting 

Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes the maintenance of adequate accounting 

records in accordance with the provisions of the act for safeguarding the assets of the company and for 

preventing and detecting the frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate 

accounting policies; making judgment and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, 

implementation and maintenance of adequate internal control that were operating effectively for ensuring the 

accuracy and completeness of accounting records, relevant to preparation of Consolidated Ind AS Financial 

Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, 

which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors 

of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the 

Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and 

using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to 

cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the Companies included in the Group are also responsible for overseeing 

the financial reporting process of the Group.
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED 

IND AS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated Ind AS Financial 

Statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 

auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a 

guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it 

exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 

aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis 

of these Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SA’s, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 

throughout the audit. We also: -

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements, 

whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain 

audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a 

material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 

collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit 

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also 

responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Holding Company has adequate internal financial 

controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. (Annexure B is our Report on 

Internal Financial Control).

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 

and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 

base on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions 

that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a 

material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures 

in the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. 

Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, 

future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern. 

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements, 

including the disclosures, and whether the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements represent the 

underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities 

included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, 

among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any 

significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements that, 

individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable 

user of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative 

materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of 

our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the Consolidated Ind AS Financial 

Statements.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 

and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control 

that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 

ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other 

matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 

safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of 

utmost significance in the audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements of the current period and 

are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation 

precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a 

matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would 

reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

As required by section 143 (3) of the Act, based on our audit we report, to the extent applicable, that:

As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we further report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and 

belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

b) In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Group so far as it appears 

from our examination of those books;

c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other 

Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and Consolidated Statement of Changes in 

Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements comply with theIndian Accounting 

Standards referred under section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 

2015, as amended;

e) On the basis of written representations received from directors of Holding and Subsidiary Company as on 

March 31, 2022, and taken on record by the Board of Directors of Holding Company, none of the directors is 

disqualified as on March 31, 2022, from being appointed as a director in terms of sub-section (2) of section 

164 of the Act.

f) We have also audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Holding and its Subsidiary 

Company as on 31 March 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements 

of the Company for the year ended on that date and our report dated 31st March, 2022, as per Annexure A, 

expressed unmodified opinion;

g) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the 

Holding and its Subsidiary Company to its directors during the current year is in accordance with the 

provisions of Section 197 of the Act.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS
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h) In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we report as 

under with respect to other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 

Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014:

I)  The Group has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial positions in its financial statements- 

Refer Note 33.2 to the financial statement;

ii) The Group does not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any 

material foreseeable loss thereon does arise.

iii) There was no amount which was required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by 

the Company. 

(iv) (a) The respective managements of the Company and its subsidiary which are companies incorporated in 

India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act have represented to us that, to the best of 

their knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or 

loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by 

the Company or subsidiary to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities 

(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary 

shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by 

or on behalf of the Company or subsidiary (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or 

the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The respective managements of the Company and its subsidiary which are companies incorporated in 

India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act have represented to us that to the best of 

their knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the financial statements, no funds have been received by 

the Company or subsidiary from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), 

with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company or subsidiary shall, 

directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on 

behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf 

of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(c) Based on our audit procedure performed that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the 

circumstances, nothing has come to our attention that cause us to believe that the representation given by 

the management under sub clause (a) & (b) of (iv) contain any material misstatement.

(d)The final dividend paid by the Holding Company during the year which was declared for the previous year 

is in accordance with section 123 of the Companies Act 2013 to the extent it applies to payment of dividend. 

As stated in note no 33.16 to the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, the Board of Directors of the Holding 

Company have proposed final dividend for the year which is subject to the approval of the members at the 

ensuing Annual General Meeting. The dividend declared is in accordance with section 123 of the Act to the 

extent it applies to declaration of dividend.

The Subsidiary Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.

For, Jeevan Jagetiya & Co
Chartered Accountants

FRN: - 121335W

CA Jeevan Jagetiya
(Partner)

M. No. 046553

UDIN: 22046553AJMVAP1781
Date: 24th May, 2022
Place: Ahmedabad
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ANNEXURE-A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Annexure-A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of 
Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial reporting of M/s D. P. ABHUSHAN 

LIMITED (hereinafter referred to as the “Holding Company”) and its subsidiary company, which are companies 

incorporated in India, as of that date.

The respective board of Directors of Holding company, its subsidiary companies, which are incorporated in 

India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control 

over financial reporting criteria established by the Holding Company considering the essential components of 

internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities include the design, 

implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for 

ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the 

safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of 

the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Holding and its Subsidiary Company's internal financial 

controls over financial reporting with reference to these Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements based on our 

audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls 

over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing as specified under section 

143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit 

of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those 

Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the 

audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial 

reporting with reference to these Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements was established and maintained 

and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 

controls system over financial reporting with reference to these Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements and 

their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining 

an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these Consolidated Ind 

AS Financial Statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the 

design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected 

depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 

financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 

audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting with reference to these 

Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements.

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR INTERNAL FINANCIAL 
CONTROLS 

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY 
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MEANING OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING WITH REFERENCE TO THESE CONSOLIDATED IND AS 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

INHERENT LIMITATIONS OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER 
FINANCIAL REPORTING 

OPINION 

Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding 

the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in 

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over 

financial reporting with reference to these Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements includes those policies 

and procedures that- 

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 

transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; 

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of 

financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and 

expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and 

directors of the company; and 

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or 

disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the Consolidated financial 

statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these 

Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management 

override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, 

projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these 

Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial 

control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree 

of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the Holding Company, its subsidiary company, which are incorporated in India, have maintained 

in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting with reference to 

these Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements and such internal financial controls over financial reporting 

with reference to these Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements were operating effectively as at 31 March 

2022, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Holding Company 

considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 

Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For, Jeevan Jagetiya & Co
Chartered Accountants

FRN: - 121335W

CA Jeevan Jagetiya
(Partner)

M. No. 046553

UDIN: 22046553AJMVAP1781
Date: 24 May, 2022
Place: Ahmedabad
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NOTE: 1 CORPORATE INFORMATION

D. P. Abhushan Limited – Holding Company

D. P. Abhushan Limited is engaged in the business of manufacturing, sale and trading of Gold jewellery, 

Diamond studded jewellery, Platinum Jewellery, Silver Jewellery and other precious Metals.

D.P. Abhushan Limited was originally formed as a Partnership Firm in the name and style of “M/s D.P. 

Jewellers”. The name of the partnership firm “M/s D.P. Jewellers” was changed to “M/s D.P. Abhushan” vide 

partnership deed dated February 14, 2017. “M/s D.P. Abhushan” was converted from partnership firm to Public 

Limited Company with the name of “D.P. Abhushan Limited” on May 02, 2017 vide CIN No. 

L74999MP2017PLC043234 under the Part I of chapter XXI read with section 366 of the Companies Act 2013.

Under the registration of the company under chapter XXI of the Companies Act, 2013 the business and assets 

and liabilities of M/s. D.P.Abhushan (Partnership Firm) have become the property of the company and have 

been taken at their book-value (i.e. Total assets less total liabilities) on and from the date of incorporation of the 

company. Accordingly, the company shall undertake, pay, observe, satisfy, perform and fulfil the agreements, 

arrangements and liabilities of the said firm entered into in the name of the said firm and in relation to said 

business and assets brought in as aforesaid, and indemnify the erstwhile partners, their executors, estates, and 

effects from and against all actions, proceedings, claims.

D. P. Jewelline Limited – Wholly owned Subsidiary Company

D.P. Jewelling Limited is incorporated under Companies Act, 2013 on 25th November, 2020 with a purpose to 

indulge in business of Trading of Gold Jewellery, Diamond Jewellery, Silver Jewellery and other exclusive 

ornaments.

The main purpose of Gatha Trendz Limited is sale of its products through online platform and making it 

available to customers all over India.

The Company has registered office at 19, Chandni Chowk, Ratlam, MP – 457001.

These consolidated financial statements comprise the Company and its Subsidiary refer to collectively as the 

‘Group’.

However, The Group has disposed of its wholly owned subsidiary M/s D.P. Jewelline Limited on 25th January, 

2022 and the same has been settled by 28th February 2022.

CONSOLIDATED
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NOTE: 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Statement of Compliance

• Functional and Presentation Currency

Basis of Measurement

Fair Value Measurement

2.1 Basis of Preparation

The Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements of the Group have been prepared in compliance of 

Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and other relevant provisions of Companies Act, 2013 

and guidelines issued by the Security & Exchange Board of India (SEBI) for listed public companies. The 

Group has prepared Standalone Financial Statement as per Indian Accounting Standards for the Financial 

Year 2021-22. Accounting Policies have been applied in accordance with relevant Indian Accounting 

Standard or any change in existing standard has been notified separately in other notes. The items in the Ind 

AS financial statements have been classified considering the principles under Ind AS 1, Presentation of 

Financial Statements.

The Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), and all the values are 

rounded to the nearest Lacs with two decimals, except when otherwise indicated.

The Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements have been prepared on accrual basis under the historical 

cost convention, except for the following assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value as 

required by relevant Ind AS: 

Certain financial assets and liabilities (refer accounting policy regarding Financial Instruments), and 

Defined employee benefit liability

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 

transaction between market participants at the measurement date, (regardless of whether that price is 

directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique). In estimating the fair value of an asset 

or a liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability, if market participants 

would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability, at the measurement date. 

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2, or 3 

based on the degree to which inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of 

the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows: 

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at 

the measurement date; 

Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or 

liability, either directly or indirectly; and 

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. 

Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these financial statements is determined on such 

a basis, except for sharebased payment transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 102, leasing 

transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 116, and measurements that have some similarities to fair 

value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in Ind AS 2 or value in use in Ind AS 36
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• Significant Accounting Judgements, Estimates and Assumptions

A. Measurement of defined benefit obligations:

B. Measurement and likelihood of occurrence of provisions and contingencies: 

C. Recognition of taxes:

The preparation of the Group’s Ind AS Financial Statements requires the management to make judgements, 

estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets, liabilities, the 

accompanying disclosures and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions 

and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or 

liabilities affected in future periods. Estimates and assumptions are reviewed on periodic basis. Revisions to 

accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future 

periods affected.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation, that have a significant risk of 

causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities, within the next financial year, 

are described below. The Group has based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when 

the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions 

about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are 

beyond the control of the Group. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur. 

Information about critical judgments in applying accounting policies, as well as estimates and assumptions 

that have the most significant effect to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial 

year, are included in the following notes:

 The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-

employment retirement benefits and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using 

actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual 

developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and 

mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit 

obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each 

reporting date. The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate 

discount rate for plans, the management considers the interest rates of government bonds in currencies 

consistent with the currencies of the post-employment benefit obligation. 

A provision is recognised 

when the Group has a present obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that an outflow of 

resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present 

obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the 

obligation. A disclosure for contingent liabilities is made where there is a possible obligation or a present 

obligation that may probably not require an outflow of resources. When there is a possible or a present 

obligation where the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made in the 

financial statements.

 Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is 

probable that taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant 

management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, 

based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning 

strategies.
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D. Useful life of Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets: 

E. Going concern:

F. Current and Non-Current classification:

Assets

Liabilities

The Group reviews the estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets at the 

end of each reporting period. During financial year ended 31 March 2021, there were no changes in useful 

lives of property plant and equipment and intangible assets other than those resulting from store closures / 

shifting of premises.

The Group at the end of each reporting period, based on external and internal sources of information, 

assesses indicators and mitigating factors of whether a store (cash generating unit) may have suffered an 

impairment loss. If it is determined that an impairment loss has been suffered, it is recognised in statement of 

profit or loss.

 During the current year ended March 31, 2022, management has performed an assessment 

of the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern. Based on the assessment, management believe that 

there is no material uncertainty with respect to any events or conditions that may cast a significant doubt on 

the entity to continue as a going concern, hence the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements have been 

prepared on going concern basis.

 All assets and liabilities are classified into current and non-current.  

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

I. It is expected to be realised in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Group normal operating 

cycle; 

II. It is held primarily for the purpose of being traded; 

III. It is expected to be realised within 12 months after reporting date; or 

IV. It is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for 

at  least 12 months after the reporting date. 

Current assets include the current portion of non-current financial assets. All other assets are classified as 

non-current. 

A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

I. It is expected to be settled in the Group’s normal operating cycle; 

II. It is held primarily for the purpose of being traded; 

III. It is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; or 

IV. The Group does not have as unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months

after the reporting date. Terms of the liability that could, at the option of the counter party, result in its 

settlement by the issue of equity instrument do not affect its classification. 

Current liabilities include current portion of noncurrent financial liabilities. All other liabilities are 

classified as non-current. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities respectively.

149



G. Operating Cycle: 

Depreciation

Based on the nature of services and the time between the acquisition of assets for 

processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the Group has ascertained its operating cycle 

as 12 months for the purpose of current – non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

2.2 Property Plant & Equipment

Property, Plant and Equipment are carried at acquisition cost, net of accumulated depreciation and 

accumulated impairment losses, if any. Subsequent expenditures related to an item of tangible asset are 

added to its book value if due to such expenditure it is probable that future economic benefits will arise to the 

Group. Gains or Losses arising from disposal of tangible assets are recognized in the Statement of Profit and 

Loss.

Property, plant and equipment not ready for the intended use on the date of balance sheet are disclosed as 

“Capital work-in-progress”. Capital work in progress is stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment loss, if 

any.

Depreciation on tangible assets has been provided using straight line method over its useful life which is 

incompliance with schedule II of Companies Act, 2013.  

Asset Class (Straight Line Basis) Useful Life

A. Building 60 Years

B. Plant & Machinery (Including Windmill) 15 Years

C. Furniture & Fittings 10 Years

D. Motor Car (4-Wheeler) 10 Years

E. Motor Vehicle (2-Wheeler) 8 Years

F. Computer & Computer Peripherals 3 Years

G. Lease Hold Premises Primary Period of Lease

2.3 Leases

As per Ind AS 116- Lease, the determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on 

the substance of the arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if 

fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement 

conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.
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Finance leases are capitalised at the commencement of the lease at the 

inception date fair value of the leased property or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease 

payments. Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so 

as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are 

recognised in finance costs in the statement of profit and loss, unless they are directly attributable to 

qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalized in accordance with the Group’s general policy on the 

borrowing costs. Contingent rentals are recognised as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred. 

A leased asset is depreciated as per straight line method. However, if there is no reasonable certainty that 

the Group will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is depreciated over the shorter of the 

estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term. 

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are 

classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases are charged to the Statement of 

Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease unless the payments are structured to 

increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost 

increases. 

Where the Group is the lessee: 
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Amortization
Amortization of Intangible Assets has been provided using straight line method over its useful life as per 

Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013.

Asset Class (Straight Line Basis) Useful Life

A. Trademark 10 Years

Intangible Assets not ready for the intended use on the date of balance sheet are disclosed as “Intangible 

Assets under development”. Intangible Asset under development is stated at cost, net of accumulated 

impairment loss, if any.

 2.5 Impairment of tangible and intangible assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible 

assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any 

such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of 

the impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual 

asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs. 

When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated 

to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest company of cash-

generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in 

use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that 

reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risk specific to the asset for which the 

estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying 

amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An 

impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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 Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and 

rewards of ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income from operating lease is 

recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in 

negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and 

recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as 

revenue in the period in which they are earned unless the receipts are structured to increase in line with 

expected general inflation to compensate for the expected inflationary cost increases.

Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership transfer 

from the Group to the lessee. Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at 

the Group’s net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to 

reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the net investment outstanding in respect of the lease.

Where the Group is the lessor:

2.4 Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are recognised only when it is probable that the future economic benefits that are 

attributable to the assets will flow to the Group and the cost of such assets can be measured reliably. 

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment loss, if any. All costs 

relating to the acquisition are capitalised. Intangible assets are amortised in the Statement of Profit or Loss 

over their estimated useful lives, from the date that they are available for use based on the expected pattern 

of consumption of economic benefits of the asset.



Sale of Goods

Sale of Power

Interest Income 

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised at the point in time when control of the goods is transferred to the 

customer, generally on delivery of the goods. In determining the transaction price for the sale of product, the 

Group considers the effects of variable consideration.

Sale of power is accounted based on the supply of units generated from the plant to the grid at approved 

tariff rates in accordance with the power purchase agreement net of estimated rebates and similar 

allowances. As per Ind AS 115 the Group has identified supply of power over the term of PPA as a single 

performance obligation and is recognizing revenue over time using a single measure of progress.

Revenue in respect of delayed payment charges and interest on delayed payments leviable as per the 

relevant contracts are recognised on actual realisation or accrued based on assessment of certainty of 

realisation.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow 

to the Group and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on time basis, 

by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that 

exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's 

net carrying amount on initial recognition.

 2.9 Inventories

A. Inventories of Raw materials are valued at Cost. The Cost is determined on Weighted Average Cost Method 

Basis.

B. Stock of Work-in-progress is valued at cost. The Cost is determined on Weighted Average Cost Method Basis.
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When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) 

is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount 

does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been 

recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is 

recognised immediately in profit or loss. 

2.6 Investments in Subsidiary

The Group has elected to account for its equity investments in subsidiaries under Ind AS 27 on separate 

financial statements, at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. Where an indication of impairment 

exists, the carrying amount of the investment is assessed. On disposal of investments in subsidiaries, the 

difference between net disposal proceeds and the carrying amounts are recognized in the Statement of 

profit and loss.

 2.7 Disposal of Subsidiary

During the Financial Year 2021-22, the group has disposed off its wholly owned subsidiary D.P. Jewelline 

Limited on 25th January, 2022 and loss occurred on disposal of subsidiary has been recognised through 

Profit and Loss.

2.8 Revenue Recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred to 

the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in 

exchange for those goods or services. 
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C. Stock of Finished goods is valued at cost or net realizable value basis, whichever is lower. The Cost is 

determined on Weighted Average Cost Method Basis.

The Market value of inventories is determined verified and certified by the management of the Group. In 

respect of non-availability of market value of some items on balance sheet date, they are valued at their cost 

only.

D. Packing Material and Consumables are valued at Cost on FIFO Basis.

Cost of inventories comprises all costs of purchase and, other duties and taxes (other than those 

subsequently recoverable from tax authorities), costs of conversion and all other costs incurred in bringing 

the inventory to their present location and condition.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated 

completion cost and the estimated cost necessary to make the sale.

 2.10  Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit/ (loss) before extraordinary items and tax 

is adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and deferrals or accruals of past or future cash 

receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Group are 

segregated based on the available information.

 2.11 Foreign Currency Transactions

Transaction denominated in foreign currencies are normally recorded at exchange rate prevailing on the 

date of transactions. Exchange differences arising on foreign currency transaction settled during the period 

are recognised in the statement of Profit and Loss except in case where they relate 

to acquisition of fixed assets, are adjusted with the carrying cost of such assets. 

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are translated 

into functional currency at the exchange rates at the reporting date. The resultant 

exchange differences are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using 

the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a 

foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The 

gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the 

recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items 

whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in OCI or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or loss, 

respectively).

2.12   Retirement and other Employee Benefits

The Group’s employees are covered under state governed provident fund scheme and employees’ state 

insurance scheme which are in nature of Defined Contribution Plan.

The contribution paid/payable under the schemes are recognised during the period in which the employee 

renders the related service. The Group’s contributions to Employees PF and ESI are charged to statement of 

profit and loss.

Employee gratuity fund scheme is the defined benefit plan. Provision for gratuity has been made in the 

accounts in respect of employees who have completed required number of years of service as on date of 

balance sheet based on Actuarial Valuation Report obtained from Actuarial Consultant. Gratuity is paid at 

the time of retirement of employees.

a. Defined Contribution Plan

b. Defined Benefit Plans



  Short Term Employee Benefits like leave benefit, if any, are paid along with salary and wages as and 

when accrued, bonus to employees are charged to profit and loss account on the basis of actual payment on 

year to year basis.

 2.13   Borrowing Cost

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisitions, construction or production of a qualifying asset are 

capitalized. Other borrowing costs is recognized as expenses in the period in which they are incurred.

 2.14  Taxation

a. Current tax is determined as the amount of tax payable in respect of taxable income for the year.

b. Deferred tax is recognized on temporary timing differences, being the difference between taxable incomes 

and accounting income that originates in one period and is capable of reversal in one or more subsequent 

periods.

 2.15  Gold Metal Loan

The Group has an arrangement with its banker for lifting gold under metal loan terms against a limit under 

“price unfixed basis” and opts to fix the price for gold taken under loan within 180 days on delivery.

The price difference arising out of such transactions on actual settlement accounted in the head of cost of 

purchase. The interest if any payable to bankers on such outstanding is treated as expenses on accrual 

basis.

The outstanding metal loan position if any as on reporting date is marked to market and the resulting 

difference in case of Loss if any is adjusted to the Gold Metal Loan Rate Difference.

In case of Gain as on Reporting date, future gains are not recorded by Group following Convention of 

Conservatism & doctrine of Prudence. 

2.16  Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit for the year attributable to equity 

shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. The weighted 

average number of equity shares outstanding during the period and for all periods presented is adjusted for 

events, such as bonus shares, other than the conversion of potential equity shares that have changed the 

number of equities shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources. For the purpose of 

calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit for the period attributable to equity shareholders and 

the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive.

2.17   Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

The Group creates a provision when there is a present obligation as a result of past event that probably 

require an outflow of resources and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation. Provisions 

are measured at the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance 

sheet date and are not discounted to the present value. These are reviewed at each year end and adjusted 

to reflect the best current estimate.

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that 

may or may not require an outflow of resources. When there is a possible obligation or present obligation in 

respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

Contingent Assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the financial statements. However, contingent 

Assets are assessed continually and if it is virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits will arise, the 

asset and related income are recognised in the period in which change occurs.
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2.18   Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents in the balance sheet and for the purpose of cash flow statement comprise cash 

in hand and cash at bank including fixed deposit with original maturity period of three months and short-term 

highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less net of outstanding bank over drafts 

as they are considered an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

 2.19    Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability of 

equity instrument of another entity. Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the 

Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments. 

Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial 

liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to 

or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial 

recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities 

at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in statement of profit and loss.

I. Financial Assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date 

basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of 

assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place.

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair 

value, depending on the classification of the financial assets.

II. Financial assets carried at amortized cost

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost if these financial assets are held within a 

business whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the 

contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of 

principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

III. Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it is held 

within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling 

financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that 

are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

On initial recognition, the Group makes an irrevocable election on an instrument-by-instrument basis to 

present the subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income pertaining to investments in 

equity instruments, other than equity investment which are held for trading. Subsequently, they are measured 

at fair value with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value recognised in other comprehensive 

income and accumulated in the ‘Reserve for equity instruments through other comprehensive income’. The 

cumulative gain or loss is not reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the investments.

IV. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Investments in equity instruments are classified as at FVTPL, unless the Group irrevocably elects on initial 

recognition to present subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income for investments in 

equity instruments which are not held for trading.

Initial Recognition

Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities are Initially Measured at Fair Value 

Subsequent Measurement
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Other financial assets are measured at fair value through profit or loss unless it is measured at amortised 

cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income on initial recognition. The transaction costs directly 

attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are 

immediately recognised in profit or loss.

V. Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at each date of balance sheet whether a financial asset or a group of financial assets is 

impaired. Ind AS 109 requires expected credit losses to be measured through a loss allowance. The Group 

recognises lifetime expected losses for all contracts assets and/or all trade receivables that do not 

constitute a financing transaction. For all other financial assets, credit losses are measured at an amount 

equal to the 12 month expected credit losses or at an amount equal to the life time expected credit losses if 

the credit risk on the financial assets has increased significantly since initial recognition.

VI.Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method, except for 
contingent consideration recognized in a business combination, which is subsequently measured at fair 
value through profit or loss. For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the Balance Sheet 
date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments.

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Group are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in 
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability 
and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after 
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments are issued by the Group are recognised at the proceeds 
received, net of direct issue costs.

VII. Derecognition of financial instruments

The Group derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial 
asset expire or it transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for Derecognition under Ind AS 109. A 
financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) is derecognized from the Group's Balance Sheet when the 
obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires.

On 23rd March, 2022, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs(MCA) has notified certain amendment to existing Ind 
AS. These amendments shall be applicable to the Group from 1st April, 2022.Amendment to Existing issued 
Ind AS the MCA has carried out amendments of the following accounting standards.

i. Ind AS 101- First time adoption of Indian ii. Ind AS 103 – Business Combinations

iii. Ind AS 109 - Financial Instruments iv. Ind AS 16 – Property, Plant and Equipment

v. Ind AS 37 – Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and

Contingent Assets

vi. Ind AS 41 – Agriculture

Application of above standards are not expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial 
statements.

a) Classification as debt or equity

b) Equity instruments

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

ACCOUNTING STANDARDS
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M/s D. P. ABHUSHAN LIMITED
CIN - L74999MP2017PLC043234

stas at 31  March, 2022
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

st stParticulars Note As at 31  As at 31  
No. March, 2022 March, 2021

I. ASSETS
1 Non-Current Assets

Total Non-Current Assets `5,098.68  `4,338.06
2 Current Assets

Total Current Assets  `36,262.37  `35,171.37 
Total Assets `41,361.05  `39,509.43

II. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 Equity

Equity attributable to Equity holders `13,806.11  `9,707.94
of the Company

2 Non-Current Liabilities

Total Non-Current Liabilities `3,750.57  `2,279.65 
 3 Current Liabilities

Total Current Liabilities `23,804.38  `27,521.83 
Total Equity and Liabilities `41,361.05  `39,509.43 

(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 3  3,908.42  2,797.11 
(b) Right-of-Use Assets 4  1,107.32  1,418.74 
(c) Capital Work-in-Progress 5  -    25.02 
(d) Other Intangible Assets 6  0.62  18.85 
(e) Financial Assets
(i) Other Financial Assets 8  71.96  69.47 
(f) Other Non Current Assets 9  10.38  8.86 

(a) Inventories 10  35,040.28  32,017.19 
(b) Financial Assets
(i) Trade Receivables 7  266.31  251.01 
(ii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 11  471.11  1,109.88 
(iii) Other Financial Assets 8  75.81  247.21 
(c) Other Current Assets 12  408.85  1,546.08 

 
(a) Equity Share Capital 13  2,225.49  2,225.49 
(b) Other Equity 14  11,580.62  7,482.45 

(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 15  2,744.48  1,033.06 
(ii) Lease Liabilities 16  833.12  1,065.95 

(b) Provisions 20  65.23  93.19 
(c) Deferred Tax Assets/Liabilities (Net) 21  107.73  87.46 

(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 15  12,513.60  14,343.17 
(ii) Lease Liabilities 16  232.82  244.98 
(iii) Trade Payables 17

(a) Total outstanding dues of micro 
enterprises and small enterprises 2,246.87  2,609.65 

(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors 
other than micro enterprises and 
small enterprises 3,812.60  5,170.39 

(iv) Other financial liabilities 18  694.46  209.22 
(b) Other Current Liabilities 19 4,279.53  4,944.42 
(c) Provisions 20  24.50  -   

(` in Lakhs)
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Significant Accounting Policies
Notes to Accounts

2
3 to 33

For, M/s D.P. ABHUSHAN LIMITED
CIN - L74999MP2017PLC043234

Anil Kataria
(Whole Time Director)

DIN: 00092730 

Santosh Kataria
 (Managing Director) 

DIN: 02855068

 As per our report of even date, 

 For, JEEVAN JAGETIYA & CO. 
 (Chartered Accountants) 
 FRN No: 121335W 

Jeevan Jagetiya 
Partner 
M. No: 046553 

Vijesh Kumar Kasera
(Chief Financial Officer)

Aashi Neema
 (Company Secretary) 

 M. No. 67041 

 
 
Date: 24th May, 2022
Place: Ratlam 
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M/s D. P. ABHUSHAN LIMITED
CIN - L74999MP2017PLC043234

st For the year ended 31 March, 2022
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS

Particulars Note For the year ended For the year ended 
st stNo. 31  March, 2022 31  March, 2021

III Total Income (I+II) ` 173,169.99 ` 121,828.36 
IV Expenses

Total Expenses (IV) ` 167,700.28 ` 118,164.83 
V Profit/(loss) before exceptional items and tax 

(III-IV) 5,469.71  3,663.53 
  

VII Profit/ (loss) before tax 5,469.71  3,663.53 
(V-VI)

VIII Tax Expense: 1,416.27  923.34 

19.71  3.59 
IX Profit (Loss) for the period from Continuing 

Operations (VII-VIII) 4,053.44  2,740.19 
X Profit/(Loss) from Discontinued Operations -    -   
XI Tax Expenses of Discontinued Operations -    -   
XII Profit/(Loss) from Discontinued Operations 

(after tax) (X-XI) -    -   
XIII Profit/(Loss) for the period (IX)+(XII) 4,053.44  2,740.19 
XIV Other Comprehensive Income 44.73  -   

XV Total Comprehensive Income for the period 
Comprising Profit/(Loss) (XIII) and Other 
comprehensive Income for the period (XIV) 4,098.17  2,740.19 

XVI Earnings Per Equity Share (For Continuing 
Operations)
Basic & Diluted EPS 31  18.21  12.31 

XVII Earnings Per Equity Share (For Discontinuing 
Operations)

-    -   
XVIII Earnings Per Equity Share (For Continuing & 

Discontinuing Operations)

   

I Revenue From Operations 22 173,137.99 121,816.90 
II Other Income 23 32.00 11.46 

Cost of Materials Consumed 24  44,361.65 21,997.38 
Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 25  121,684.30  97,667.55 
Changes in inventories of finished goods, 
Changes in inventories of finished goods, 
Work-in-Progress and Stock-in-Trade 26  (4,941.98)  (6,423.89)
Employee Benefit Expenses 27  1,744.55  1,287.32 
Finance Cost 28   1,519.43  1,079.31 
Depreciation and Amortization Expense 29  546.34  394.70 
Other Expenses 30  2,785.99  2,162.47 

VI Exceptional Items -    - 

Current Tax 1,396.56  919.75 
Deferred Tax

A. (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit 
or loss 44.73  -   
(ii) Income Tax relating to items that will not be 
reclassified to profit or loss -    -   

Basic -    -   
Diluted

Basic 18.21  12.31 
Diluted 18.21 12.31

(` in Lakhs)

Significant Accounting Policies
Notes to Accounts

2
3 to 33

For, M/s D.P. ABHUSHAN LIMITED
CIN - L74999MP2017PLC043234

Anil Kataria
(Whole Time Director)

DIN: 00092730

Santosh Kataria
 (Managing Director) 

DIN: 02855068

 As per our report of even date, 

 For, JEEVAN JAGETIYA & CO 
 (Chartered Accountants) 
 FRN No: 121335W 
Jeevan Jagetiya 
Partner 
Membership No: 046553 

Vijesh Kumar Kasera
(Chief Financial Officer)

Aashi Neema
 (Company Secretary)

 M. No. 67041  
Date: 24th May, 2022
Place:  Ratlam 
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M/s D. P. ABHUSHAN LIMITED
CIN - L74999MP2017PLC043234

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
stFor the year ended 31  March, 2022

A Cash Flow From Operating Activities

Add back:

Deduction:

Adjustment For Working Capital Changes:

Assets

Liabilities

Cash Generated From Operations `3,021.43  `-2,011.86 

Net Profit before Tax and  Extra Ordinary Items   5,469.71  3,663.53  

Depreciation  537.03  394.70 

Finance Cost  1,519.35 1,079.31 

Preliminary expenses written off  -    -   

Assets Written Off  0.66  -   

Gratuity Expenses  16.77  16.46 

Loss on Sale of Subsidiary   15.66  -   

  Loss on Sale of Windmill Business   -    2,089.48  0.49  1,490.97 

Interest Income  6.46  7.90 

Profit on Sale of Fixed Assets  -    3.53 

Rent Income  20.07 -

Cash Rental Expenses  273.59  -300.12  187.79  -199.21 

(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories  -3,023.09  -9,027.16 

(Increase)/Decrease in Trade Receivables  -15.30  -147.19 

(Increase)/Decrease in Other Current Assets  529.63  -575.04 

(Increase)/Decrease in Other Non-Current Assets  -1.52  -1.97 

(Increase)/Decrease in Other Current Financial 

Assets  171.40  -158.47 

(Increase)/Decrease in Other  Non- Current 

Financial Assets  0.32  -37.11 

(Increase)/Decrease in Miscellaneous Expenditure 

written off  -    -3.88 

Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payables  -1,720.36  1,932.06 

Increase/(Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities  -663.95  1,011.98 

Increase/(Decrease) in Other Non-Current Liabilities  -    -   

Increase/(Decrease) in Other Current Financial 

Liabilities  485.24  39.64 

Increase/(Decrease) in Other Non-Current Financial 

Liabilities  -    -   

Increase/(Decrease) in Provisions  -    -4,237.63  -    -6,967.14 

Particulars
stAs at 31  March, 2022 st As at 31 March, 2022

(` in Lakhs)
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For, M/s D.P. ABHUSHAN LIMITED
CIN - L74999MP2017PLC043234

 As per our report of even date, 

 For, JEEVAN JAGETIYA & CO 
 (Chartered Accountants) 
 FRN No: 121335W 

Jeevan Jagetiya 
Partner 
M. No: 046553 

 
Date: 24th May, 2022
Place:  Ratlam 

Anil Kataria
(Whole Time Director)

DIN: 00092730

Santosh Kataria
(Managing Director) 

DIN: 02855068

Vijesh Kumar Kasera
(Chief Financial Officer)

Aashi Neema
 (Company Secretary) 

M. No. 67041
 

Deduct:

Net Cash Flow From Operating Activities  `1,674.56  `-2,942.35 

B Cash Flow From Investing Activities :

Net Cash used in Investing Activities  ` -520.34  ` -979.27 

C Cash Flow From Financing Activities :

Net Cash flow from Financing Activities  ` -1,792.99  ` 4,804.27 

Net Increase/ (Decrease) In Cash and 

Cash Equivalents  ` -638.77  ` 882.65 

Opening Balance- Cash and Cash Equivalent  1,109.88  -   

Closing Balance- Cash and Cash Equivalent  471.11  1,109.88 

 Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalent with 
Balance sheet  ` -638.77  ` 1,109.88 

Cash and Cash Equivalent as per Balance sheet  471.11  1,109.88 

 Closing Balance of Cash & Cash Equivalent  ` 471.11  `1,109.88 

Direct Taxes paid (Net of Refund and Receivables)    -1,346.87  -1,346.87  -930.48  -930.48 

  

Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipments  -757.88  -865.32 

Interest Income  3.66  5.02 

Sale of Property, Plant and Equipments  -    7.16 

Proceeds from Sale of Windmill  -    452.01 

Rent Income  11.27  -   

Investment in Subsidiaries  -    -   

Sale of Subsidiaries(Net of Cash)  222.62  -   

Advance against Investment Property  -    -578.14 

Proceeds from Issue of Shares  -    -    -   

Increase in Short Term Borrowings  -    5,307.21 

Increase in Non Current Borrowings  1,711.42  521.79 

Repayment of Short Term Borrowings  -2,046.05  -   

Payment of Preliminary Expenses  -    -   

Interest Expense  -1,458.36  -1,024.74 
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M/s D. P. ABHUSHAN LIMITED
CIN - L74999MP2017PLC043234

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
stFor the year ended 31  March, 2022

st stParticulars As at 31  March, 2022 As at 31  March, 2021
(` in Lakhs)

Balance at the beginning of the Period

Authorised

Issued, Subscribed & Paidup Capital

Balance at the end of the Period

Authorised

Issued, Subscribed & Paidup Capital

Equity Shares of ` 10 each  22,850,000  2,285.00 22,850,000 2,285.00 

Equity Shares of ` 10 each fully paid up  22,254,850  2,225.49 22,254,850 2,225.49  

Equity Shares of ` 10 each  22,850,000  2,285.00 22,850,000 2,285.00  

Equity Shares of ` 10 each fully paid up  22,254,850  2,225.49 22,254,850 2,225.49

No of Shares (` in Lakhs)No of Shares

A. Equity Share Capital

B. Other Equity
Particulars

General 
Reserve

Balance at the beginning of the period 

April 01, 2020   1,067.76 -    3,678.38 -    4,746.14

Balance as at March 31, 2021  `1,067.76  ` -    ` 6,414.69 ` -    ` 7,482.45
Balance at the beginning of the 

period April 01, 2021  1,067.76  -    6,414.69  -    7,482.45

Balance as at March 31, 2022   `1,067.76  ` -    `10,512.86  ` -    `11,580.62 

Total comprehensive income for the year  -    -    2,740.19  -    2,740.19

Share Issue Expenses  -    -    -3.88  -    -3.88 

Dividends

Total comprehensive income for the 

year  -    -    4,098.17  -    4,098.17 

Dividends

Securities 
Premium

Remeasurement 
of defined 

benefit plan

Retained 
earnings

Total 
Other 
Equity

(` in Lakhs)

Reserves and Surplus
Other 

Comprehensive 
Income

For, M/s D.P. ABHUSHAN LIMITED
CIN - L74999MP2017PLC043234

 As per our report of even date, 

 For, JEEVAN JAGETIYA & CO 
 (Chartered Accountants) 
 FRN No: 121335W 

Jeevan Jagetiya 
Partner 
Membership No: 046553  
Date: 24th May, 2022
Place: Ratlam 

Anil Kataria
(Whole Time Director)

DIN:- 00092730

Santosh Kataria
 (Managing Director) 

DIN:- 02855068

Vijesh Kumar Kasera
(Chief Financial Officer)

Aashi Neema
 (Company Secretary)

 M. No. 67041 
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Set out below are the carrying amounts of Lease Liabilities & the movements during the year.

Financial Year Opening Addition/ Accretion Lease Paid Closing Balance 
Balance (Deletion) of Interest

As at 31st March 2022  1,310.92 7.08  61.00  289.54 1,089.53

As at 31st March 2021  235.43  1,208.71 54.57  187.79 1,310.92

The following are the amounts recognized in Statement of Profit & Loss Account

Financial Year Depreciation  Interest Expenses Expenses related Total Amount Recognized
on Right of Use on Lease Liabilities to Short Term Lease in Profit & Loss Account
 Assets

As at 31st March 2022 297.15 61.07 48.63 406.86 

As at 31st March 2021 143.73  54.57  34.89  233.19 

The Group has also applied the available practical expedients wherein it:

• Used a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with reasonably similar characteristics

• Relied on its assessment of whether lease’s are onerous immediately before the date of initial application.

• Applied the short-term leases exemptions to leases with lease term that ends within 12 months at the date of 

initial application.

• Excluded the initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of initial 

application.

• Used hindsight in determining the lease term where the contract contains options to extend or terminate the 

lease.

Note: 5   Capital Work-in-Progress

Capital Banswara - -  25.02  25.02  -    25.02  -    -   

WIP Ujjain - 56.64  -56.64  -    -    -    -    -   

Total  - 56.64 -  25.02  -    25.02  -    -   

Parti-
culars

Ast at 
1st April,

 2020

Disposals/
Transfers

Asset 
Expired 
& W/off 

Additions/
Disposal

Area Ast at 
1st April,

 2021

Additions/
Disposal

As at 
31st March, 

2022

Useful 
Life

The Company has inaugurated its Banswara Showroom during Financial Year 2021-2022 which is fully 

operational w.e.f. 24th January 2022

For the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2021

Banswara Showroom  25.02  -    -    -    25.02 

 -    -    -    -    -   

Total  25.02  -    -    -    25.02 

1-2 Years 2-3 YearsCapital WIP  More than 3 Years TotalLess than 1 Year
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Note: 7   Trade Receivables

Particulars As at As at 
st st31  March, 2022 31  March, 2021

 Total Trade Receivable  ` 266.31  ` 251.01 

Trade Receivable

Unsecured, considered good

Trade receivables outstanding for a period more 

than six months from the date they are due for 

payment 75.12  11.08 

Others 191.20  239.94 

(` in Lakhs)

 Trade Receivables ageing schedule are as below: 

Particulars
6 months - 

1 year
Undisputed Trade Receivables -  191.20  45.83  24.23  0.64  4.42  266.31 
Considered Good

Undisputed Trade Receivables - 
which have significant increase in credit risk  -    -    -    -    -    -   

Undisputed Trade Receivables-Credit Impaired  -    -    -    -    -    -   

Disputed Trade Receivables - Considered Good  -    -    -    -    -    -   
Disputed Trade Receivables - which have 
significant increase in credit risk  -    -    -    -    -    -   

Disputed Trade Receivables - Credit Impaired  -    -    -    -    -    -   

Total  `191.20  `45.83  `24.23  `0.64  `4.42  `266.31 

Less than 
6 months

 2-3 
years 

1-2 
years

 Total  More than 
3 years 

(` in Lakhs)For the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2022

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars
6 months - 

1 year
Undisputed Trade Receivables -   230.50  11.36  4.73  0.39  4.03  251.01  
Considered Good

Undisputed Trade Receivables - 
which have significant increase in credit risk  -    -    -    -    -    -   

Undisputed Trade Receivables-Credit Impaired  -    -    -    -    -    -   

Disputed Trade Receivables - Considered Good  -    -    -    -    -    -   
Disputed Trade Receivables - which have 
significant increase in credit risk  -    -    -    -    -    -   

Disputed Trade Receivables - Credit Impaired  -    -    -    -    -    -   

Total   `230.50  `11.36  `4.73  `0.39  `4.03  `251.01  

Less than 
6 months

 2-3 
years 

1-2 
years

 Total  More than 
3 years 

(` in Lakhs)For the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2021

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
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Note: 8   Other Financial Assets
(` in Lakhs)

Particulars As at As at 
st st 31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021

Other Non-Current Financial Assets

Total Other Non-Current Financial Assets ` 71.96  ` 69.47

Other Current Financial Assets

Total Other Current Financial Assets ` 75.81  ` 247.21

Total Financial Assets ` 147.77  ` 316.69

Security Deposits 71.96  69.47

Advance to Others  7.59 167.50

Advance to Staff  23.22 34.71

Security Deposits  45.00 45.00

Note: 10   Inventories

Particulars As at As at 
st st 31  March, 2022 31 March, 2021

  Total Inventories  `35,040.28  `32,017.19 

a. Raw Materials  2,450.05  4,395.55 

b. Work in Progress  -    -   

c. Finished Goods  18,791.93  16,576.20 

d. Stock-in-Trade  13,726.69  11,000.44 

e. Packing Material & Consumables  71.61  45.00 

(` in Lakhs)

Note: 9   Other Non Current Assets
(` in Lakhs)

Particulars As at As at 
st st 31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021

Other Non-Current Assets

Total Other Non-Current Assets `10.38  `8.86 

Other Security Deposits  10.38  8.86 

Note: 11   Cash and Cash Equivalents

Particulars As at As at 
st st31  March, 2022 31  March, 2021

Cash & Cash Equivalents

Total Cash & Cash Equivalents  ` 471.11  ` 1,109.88 

(i)  Cash-in-Hand (As certified by Management) 218.40 513.78 

(ii) Balances with Bank  252.71 594.59  

(` in Lakhs)

FIFTH ANNUAL REPORT 2021-22

Inventories are valued as per the following method:

Item Method of Valuation

Raw Materials At Weighted Average Cost

Finished goods/Stock In Trade At Weighted Average Cost or Net Realisable Value, 
whichever is lower

Packing Material & Consumables At Cost, on FIFO Basis
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Note: 12   Other Current Assets

Particulars As at As at 
st st31  March, 2022 31  March, 2021

Total Other Current Assets  `408.85  `1,546.08 

Other Current Assets

Advance to Suppliers  112.58  121.49 

Advance Tax (Net of Provision)  -    25.19 

Advance Against Property  -    578.14 

Prepaid Expenses  148.94  76.78 

Receivables from Government Authorities  -    1.56 

Receivable against Sale of Windmill Business  -    515.00 

Taxes Receivable  147.34  227.91 

(` in Lakhs)

Note: 13   Equity Share Capital

Particulars As at As at 
st st31  March, 2022 31  March, 2021

(` in 
Lakhs)

Balance at the beginning of the Period

Authorised

Issued, Subscribed & Paidup Capital

Balance at the end of the Period

Authorised

Issued, Subscribed & Paidup Capital

Equity Shares of ` 10 each  22,850,000  2,285.00 22,850,000 2,285.00 

Equity Shares of ` 10 each fully paid up  22,254,850  2,225.49 22,254,850 2,225.49  

Equity Shares of ` 10 each  22,850,000  2,285.00 22,850,000 2,285.00  

Equity Shares of ` 10 each fully paid up  22,254,850  2,225.49 22,254,850 2,225.49

No of 
Shares

(` in 
Lakhs)

No of 
Shares

(` in Lakhs)

(i) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period

Particulars As at As at 
st st31  March, 2022 31  March, 2021

(` in 
Lakhs)

At the Beginning of the Year  22,254,850  2,225.49 22,254,850  2,225.49

Add: Issued During the Year  -    -    -    -   

Outstanding at the end of the Year 22,254,850  2,225.49 22,254,850  2,225.49 

No of 
Shares

(` in 
Lakhs)

No of 
Shares

(` in Lakhs)

(ii) Terms/rights attached to equity shares

The company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity 

shares is entitled for one vote per share. In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares 

will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The 

distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.
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Particulars As at As at 
st st31  March, 2022 31  March, 2021

% holding 
in the class

Mr. Ratanlal Kataria  6,540,810 29.39%  6,540,810 29.39%

Mr. Anil Kataria  6,071,230 27.28%  6,071,230 27.28%

Mrs. Renu Kataria  1,259,230 5.66%  1,259,230 5.66%

Outstanding at the end 13,871,270 62.33%  13,871,270  62.33%
of the Year

No of 
Shares

% holding 
in the class

No of 
Shares

(` in Lakhs)

(iv) Shares held by promoters in the company

Particulars As at As at 
st st31  March, 2022 31  March, 2021

% holding 
in the class

Mr. Ratanlal Kataria  6,540,810 29.39% 0.00%  6,540,810 29.39%

Mr. Anil Kataria  6,071,230 27.28% 0.00%  6,071,230 27.28%

Mrs. Renu Kataria  1,259,230 5.66% 0.00%  1,259,230 5.66%

Mr. Vikas Kataria  607,330 2.73% 0.00%  607,330 2.73%

Mr. Santosh Kataria  607,330 2.73% 0.00%  607,330 2.73%

Mr. Sanjay Kataria  332,000 1.49% 0.00%  332,000 1.49%

Mr. Rajesh Kataria HUF  200,000 0.90% 0.00%  200,000 0.90%

Mr. Vikas Kataria HUF  200,000 0.90% 0.00%  200,000 0.90%

Mr. Santosh Kataria HUF  200,000 0.90% 0.00%  200,000 0.90%

Mr. Anil Kataria HUF  200,000 0.90% 0.00%  200,000 0.90%

Mr. Manoharlal Kataria HUF  200,000 0.90% 0.00%  200,000 0.90%

Mr. Sanjay Kataria HUF  200,000 0.90% 0.00%  200,000 0.90%

Mr. Nitin Pirodiya  6,460 0.03% 0.00%  6,460 0.03%

Mr. Vijesh Kasera  6,460 0.03% 0.00%  6,460 0.03%

 Total  16,630,850 74.73% 0.00%  16,630,850 74.73%

No of 
Shares

% holding 
in the class

No of 
Shares

(` in Lakhs)

% Changes 
during the year

* There is no change in promoters share holding during the year ended March 31, 2022 & March 31, 2021.

(iii) Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

FIFTH ANNUAL REPORT 2021-22

Note: 14   Other Equity
Particulars

General 
Reserve

Balance at the beginning of the period 
April 01, 2020   1,067.76 -    3,678.38 -    4,746.14 

Balance as at March 31, 2021  `1,067.76  ` -    ` 6,414.69 ` -    ` 7,482.45 
Balance at the beginning of the 
period April 01, 2021  1,067.76  -    6,414.69  -    7,482.45 

 Balance as at March 31, 2022  ` 1,067.76  -   ` 10,512.86 -    ` 11,580.62

Total comprehensive income for the year  -    -    2,740.19 -    2,740.19 

Share Issue Expenses  -    -    -3.88 -    -3.88 

Dividends

Total comprehensive income for the 
year  -    -   4,098.17  -    4,098.17

Dividends

Securities 
Premium

Remeasurement 
of defined 

benefit plan

Retained 
earnings

Total 
Other 
Equity

(` in Lakhs)

Reserves and Surplus
Other 

Comprehensive 
Income
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Note: 15   Borrowings
Particulars As at As at 

st st31  March, 2022 31  March, 2021
Non-Current Borrowings
(A) Secured (From Banks & Financial Institutions)

Total of Non Current Borrowings  `2,744.48  `1,033.06 
Current Borrowings
(B) Loans Repayable on Demand 

(C) Unsecured Loan 

 Total of Current Borrowings  ` 12,513.60  ` 14,343.17 
 Total Borrowings  ` 15,258.08  ` 15,376.23

(Refer Annexure A Below)
ICICI Bank - Term Loan - 4353  147.00  294.00 
HDFC Bank Car Loan - 8845  8.46  20.27 
HDFC Bank Car Loan - 8502  13.42  26.86 
HDFC Bank Car Loan - 7145  39.85  53.79 
HDFC Bank - ECLGS - 5142  223.44  332.86 
ICICI Bank - ECLGS - 0047  200.61  305.28 
Term Loan From HDFC Bank - 4510  588.73  -   
Term Loan From HDFC Bank - 7212  350.28  -   
HDFC Bank - ECLGS - 9878  1,172.69  -   

(Refer Annexure B Below)
 Cash Credit From ICICI Bank  2,457.41  2,473.71 
 Cash Credit From HDFC Bank  3,151.02  4,402.10 
 Cash Credit From HDFC Bank (Indore)  569.12  591.69 
 HDFC WCDL  2,000.00  -   
 HDFC Bank Ltd Current A/c- Bhilwara Dpal  0.49  -   
 HDFC Bank Ltd Current A/c-bhp Dpal39383  22.81  -   

(Refer Annexure C Below)
 Intercorporate Borrowings  1,396.65  3,398.15  
 Borrowings from Others  2,916.10   3,477.53 

(` in Lakhs)

HDFC Bank Car Loan - 
7145

'The Principal Amount of Car Loan to be repaid in 60 Equal Monthly Installments 
payable from October, 05, 2020. 'Interest Rate on Vehicle Loan is 7.60%. This loan 
is secured by way of hypothecation of underlying vehicle.

HDFC Bank Car Loan - 
8502

'The Principal Amount of Car Loan to be repaid in 60 Equal Monthly Installments 
payable from March 07, 2019. 'Interest Rate on Vehicle Loan is 8.90%. This loan is 
secured by way of hypothecation of underlying vehicle.

Particulars of loan Repayment, Interest and Security related terms
Annexure A

ICICI Bank - Term Loan-
4353

'The principal amount of Term Loan to be repaid in 72 Equal Monthly Installments 
payable from April 30, 2018 or 6 Months from last drawl of Limit whichever is 
later. 'Interest Rate on Term Loan facilities in Indian Rupees (`) : Interest stipulated 
is I-MCLR-6M+0.55% p.a. i.e. 7.25%+ 0.55% = 8.70% p.a.  This loan is primarily 
secured by Equitable Mortgage Company's commercial property situated at 
First Floor and Second Floor, 569/3 MG Road, DNR 90 Degree, Indore. Further 
this loan is also having collateral security in the form of  Pari Pasu Charge with 
other Working Capital Banker by way of hypothecation of the Company's entire 
stocks of raw materials, semi-finished goods and finished goods, consumable 
stores and spares and such other movables including book-debts, bills whether 
documentary or clean, outstanding monies, receivables both present and future. 
Futher, it also carries Personal bank gurantee of Vikas Kataria (Promoter), 
Santosh Kataria (Managing Director), Renu Kataria (Non Executive Director), Anil 
Kataria (Whole Time Director) & Ratanlal Kataria (Promoter)

HDFC Bank Car Loan - 
8845

'The Principal Amount of Car Loan to be repaid in 60 Equal Monthly Installments 
payable from December 07, 2019. 'Interest Rate on Vehicle Loan is 8.70%. This 
loan is secured by way of hypothecation of underlying vehicle.
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HDFC Bank - ECLGS-
5142

'Tenor of the Loan is 48 months, starting from 07th February, 2021 wherein 12 
months is moratorium period in which only interest is charged and paid, and 
balance 36 months, amount is payable in equated monthly installments. ECLGS 
loan was sanctioned and disbursed based on government guarantee (NCGTC) 
and second charge is created on securities held with HDFC Bank, which 
includes stock, book debts and below mentioned properties. Property No. 1: 
House Bearing S.No 31/188/71 To 73, Sale Deed Dt 05.02.2007 & 10.04.2007, 
Dhanji Bai Ka Nohra, Bajajkhana, Ratlam, 457001, Madhya Pradesh, India 
Property No. 2: New Mu No 24/116/19, Chandani Chouk Ratlam, 457001, 
Madhya Pradesh, India Property No. 3: Flat No. 101, 102 M G Road, Yashwant 
Niwas Road, First Floor And Second Floor, 569/3, M G Road, D N R 90 Degree, 
Indore, 452003, Madhya Pradesh, India. 'Interest Rate On ECLGS Loan Is 7.60% 
Property No. 4: Showroom at Bhopal Plot No. 06 Teh. Huzur, Ward No. 34, 
Malviya Nagar, Bhopal - 462011. 'Interest Rate On ECLGS Loan Is 7.60% p.a.

ICICI Bank - ECLGS-
0047

'Tenor of the Loan is 48 months, starting from 31st March, 2021 wherein 12 
months is moratorium period in which only interest is charged and paid, and 
balance 36 months, amount is payable in equated monthly installments. The 
loan is secured against the Current Assets of the Company. Further as collateral 
security, there is Company's commercial property situated at First Floor and 
Second Floor, 569/3 MG Road, DNR 90 Degree, Indore. 'Interest Rate on the 
Loan procured under this Scheme in Indian Rupees (`) : Interest stipulated is I-
MCLR-1Y+0.30% p.a. i.e. 7.30%+ 0.30% = 7.60% p.a.  

HDFC Bank - ECLGS - 
9878

'Tenor of the Loan is 60 months, starting from 21st January, 2022 wherein 24 
months is moratorium period in which only interest is charged and paid, and 
balance 48 months, amount is payable in equated monthly installments. This 
ECLGS loan was sanctioned and disbursed based on 100% government 
guarantee (NCGTC) and second charge is created on securities held with HDFC 
Bank, which includes stock, book debts and below mentioned properties. 
Property No. 1: House Bearing S.No 31/188/71 To 73, Sale Deed Dt 05.02.2007 & 
10.04.2007, Dhanji Bai Ka Nohra, Bajajkhana, Ratlam, 457001, Madhya Pradesh, 
India Property No. 2: New Mu No 24/116/19, Chandani Chouk Ratlam, 457001, 
Madhya Pradesh, India Property No. 3: Flat No. 101, 102 M G Road, Yashwant 
Niwas Road, First Floor And Second Floor, 569/3, M G Road, D N R 90 Degree, 
Indore, 452003, Madhya Pradesh, India. 'Interest Rate On ECLGS Loan Is 7.60% 
Property No. 4: Showroom at Bhopal Plot No. 06 Teh. Huzur, Ward No. 34, 
Malviya Nagar, Bhopal - 462011. 'Interest Rate On ECLGS Loan Is 7.25% p.a.

HDFC Bank - 
Term Loan - 7212

'Tenor of the Loan is 48 months, starting from 07-12-2021. Term loan was 
sanctioned and disbursed based on securities held with HDFC Bank, which 
includes stock, book debts, guarantee, capital expenditure and below 
mentioned properties. Property No. 1: House Bearing S.No 31/188/71 To 73, 
Sale Deed Dt 05.02.2007 & 10.04.2007, Dhanji Bai Ka Nohra, Bajajkhana, 
Ratlam, 457001, Madhya Pradesh, India Property No. 2: New Mu No 24/116/19, 
Chandani Chouk Ratlam, 457001, Madhya Pradesh, India Property No. 3: Flat 
No. 101, 102 M G Road, Yashwant Niwas Road, First Floor And Second Floor, 
569/3, M G Road, D N R 90 Degree, Indore, 452003, Madhya Pradesh, India. 
'Interest Rate On ECLGS Loan Is 7.60% Property No. 4: Showroom at Bhopal Plot 
No. 06 Teh. Huzur, Ward No. 34, Malviya Nagar, Bhopal - 462011. Interest Rate 
on Loan is 7.80% p.a.

HDFC Bank - 
Term Loan - 4510

'Tenor of the Loan is 48 months, starting from 07th February 2022. Term loan was 
sanctioned and disbursed based on securities held with HDFC Bank, which 
includes stock, book debts, guarantee, capital expenditure and below 
mentioned properties. Property No. 1: House Bearing S.No 31/188/71 To 73, 
Sale Deed Dt 05.02.2007 & 10.04.2007, Dhanji Bai Ka Nohra, Bajajkhana, 
Ratlam, 457001, Madhya Pradesh, India Property No. 2: New Mu No 24/116/19, 
Chandani Chouk Ratlam, 457001, Madhya Pradesh, India Property No. 3: Flat 
No. 101, 102 M G Road, Yashwant Niwas Road, First Floor And Second Floor, 
569/3, M G Road, D N R 90 Degree, Indore, 452003, Madhya Pradesh, India, 
Property No. 4: Showroom at Bhopal Plot No. 06 Teh. Huzur, Ward No. 34, 
Malviya Nagar, Bhopal - 462011. 'Interest Rate On ECLGS Loan Is 7.30% 

Annexure B
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Cash Credit From 
ICICI Bank

'Interest on facilities in Indian Rupees : Interest rate of Cash Credit Limit from 
ICICI Bank is I-MCLR-6M + 0.85% (MCLR Ranges from 8.75% to 9.75%). The loan is 
repayable on demand and is secured by First Charge by way of hypothecation 
of the Company's entire stocks of raw materials, semi-finished goods and 
finished goods, consumable stores and spares and such other moveables
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Cash Credit From 
HDFC Bank

'Interest on facilities in Indian Rupees : Interest rate of Cash Credit Limit from 
HDFC Bank is I-MCLR-1Y + 1.15% (MCLR Ranges from 8.50% to 9.45%) The loan is 
repayable on demand and is secured by Hypothecation of Company's entire 
Stock, Book debts, Guarantee, Capital Expenditure and below mentioned 
properties: Property No. 1: House Bearing S.No 31/188/71 To 73, Sale Deed Dt 
05.02.2007 & 10.04.2007, Dhanji Bai Ka Nohra, Bajajkhana, Ratlam, 457001, 
Madhya Pradesh, India Property No. 2: New Mu No 24/116/19, Chandani Chouk 
Ratlam, 457001, Madhya Pradesh, India Property No. 3: Flat No. 101, 102 M G 
Road, Yashwant Niwas Road, First Floor And Second Floor, 569/3, M G Road, D 
N R 90 Degree, Indore, 452003, Madhya Pradesh, India. 'Interest Rate On ECLGS 
Loan Is 7.60% Property No. 4: Showroom at Bhopal Plot No. 06 Teh. Huzur, Ward 
No. 34, Malviya Nagar, Bhopal - 462011

Annexure C
'Inter-corporate borrowings and Borrowings from others (Directors & Relatives) are repayable on demand and 
carries interest rate @ 9% P.A.

Note: 17   Trade Payables
(` in Lakhs)

Particulars As at As at 
st st 31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021

Trade Payables

Total Trade Payables  ` 6,059.47  ` 7,780.04

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and 
small enterprises (Refer Note 34.12)  2,246.87  2,609.65 

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 
enterprises and small enterprises  3,812.60  5,170.39 

including book-debts, bills whether documentary or clean, outstanding monies, 
receivables both present and future pari pasu with other working capital banker. 
Further this is also secured by collateral security of Equitable Mortgage 
Company's commercial property situated at First Floor and Second Floor, 569/3 
MG Road, DNR 90 Degree, Indore. Also further secured by Personal bank 
gurantee Vikas Kataria (Promoter), Santosh Kataria (Managing Director), Renu 
Kataria (Non Executive Director), Anil Kataria (Whole TIme Director) & Ratanlal 
Kataria (Promoter) 

Note: 16   Lease Liabilities
(` in Lakhs)

Particulars As at As at 
st st 31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021

Lease Liabilities

Total Non-Current Lease Liabilities  ` 833.12  ` 1,065.95 
Lease Liabilities

Total Current Lease Liabilities  ` 232.82  ` 244.98 

Lease Liability  833.12  1,065.95 

Lease Liability  232.82  244.98 
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Particulars

(i) MSME  2,240.00  3.70  -    0.75  2,244.46 

(ii) Others  3,809.91  3.11  1.16  0.83  3,815.01 

(iii) Disputed Dues - MSME -    -    -    -    -   

(iv) Disputed Dues - Others -    -    -    -    -   

Total  6,049.92  6.81  1.16  1.58  6,059.47 

Less than 
1 year

 2-3 
years 

1-2 
years

 Total  More than 
3 years 

(` in Lakhs)For the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2022

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars

(i) MSME   1,875.20  -    -    0.75  1,875.95  

(ii) Others   5,899.81  1.27  1.84  1.16  5,904.08 

(iii) Disputed Dues - MSME -    -    -    -    -   

(iv) Disputed Dues - Others -    -    -    -    -   

Total   7,775.01  1.27  1.84  1.91  7,780.04  

Less than 
1 year

 2-3 
years 

1-2 
years

 Total  More than 
3 years 

(` in Lakhs)For the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2021

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
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Note: 18   Other Financial Liabilities (` in Lakhs)

Particulars As at As at 
st st31 March, 2022 31  March, 2021

Other Current Financial Liabilities
Current Maturities of Long Term Debt

Total Other Current Financial Liabilities  ` 694.46  ` 209.22
Total Other Financial Liabilities  ` 694.46  ` 209.22

Term Loan From HDFC Bank - 4510  180.45  -   
Term Loan From HDFC Bank - 7212  113.73  -   

ICICI Bank - Term Loan - 4353  147.00  147.00 

HDFC Bank Car Loan - 8845  11.81  10.83 

HDFC Bank Car Loan - 8502  13.45  12.30 

HDFC Bank Car Loan - 7145  13.94  12.93 

HDFC Bank - ECLGS - 9878  -   

HDFC Bank - ECLGS - 5142  109.41  17.44 

ICICI Bank - ECLGS - 0047  104.67  8.72 

Interest Accrued but not due on borrowings  -    -   

Note: 19   Other Current Liabilities
(` in Lakhs)

Particulars As at As at 
st st31 March, 2022 31  March, 2021

Other Current Liabilities

 -    -

Statutory Dues Payable  84.06  79.64 

Gift Voucher A/c  2.55  -

Advance from Customers  3,976.03  4,662.11 

(Advance from Customers includes an amount of 

Rs. received towards Sale of Jewellery products 

under the various sales initatives/ retails Customer 

Schemes which are redeemable by way of sale 

alone within 11 Months from the reporting date)

Trade Payables ageing schedule are as below:
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Note: 20  Provisions
(` in Lakhs)

Particulars As at As at 
st st 31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021

Non-Current Provision

Total Non-Current Provision  ` 65.23  ` 93.19 

Total Current Provision  ` 24.50  ` -   

Total Provision  ` 89.73  ` 93.19 

Provision for Gratuity  65.23  93.19 

Current Provision  -   

Provision for Income Tax  24.50  -   

Provision for Expenses  216.89  202.68

Total Other Current Liabilities  ` 4,279.53 ` 4,944.42

Note: 22   Revenue from Operations

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended 
st st 31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021

Sales of Products

 Total Revenue from Operations  ` 173,137.99  ` 121,816.90 

Sales of Manufactured Goods  45,595.78  22,153.50 

Sales of Traded Goods  127,542.21  99,548.84 

Sale of Power generated through Wind Mill  -    114.56 

(` in Lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
st st31  March, 2022 31  March, 2021

Dissegregated Revenue Information

 Total Dissegregated Revenue Information  ` 173,137.99  ` 121,816.90 

Revenue from Retail  Operations  160,647.40  109,133.59 

Revenue from Non Retail  Operations - Domestic  12,490.58  12,397.98 

Revenue from Non Retail  Operations - Export  -    285.33 

Note: 21   Deferred Tax Assets/Liabilities (Net)
Particulars As at As at 

st st 31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021

Deffered Tax Asset

Total Deffered Tax Asset  ` 0.60  ` 23.63 

Deffered Tax Liability

Total Deffered Tax Liability  ` 108.33  ` 111.09 

Net Deffered Tax Liability  ` 107.73  ` 87.46 

Opening Balance as on 01.04.2021  -    19.48 

On Account of Gratuity for FY 2021-22  0.60  4.14 

Opening Balance as on 01.04.2021  87.46  90.47 

On Account of Gratuity  7.04  -   

On Account of Depreciation for FY 2021-22  13.83  20.62 

(` in Lakhs)
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Note: 23   Other Income
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

st st31 March, 2022 31  March, 2021

Total Other Income  ` 32.00  ` 11.46

Commission Received  3.36  -   

Interest Income  6.46  7.90 

Misc. Income  13.38  0.03 

Profit on Sale of Fixed Assets  -    3.53 

Rental Income  8.80  -   

(` in Lakhs)
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Note: 24   Cost of Materials Consumed
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

st st31 March, 2022 31  March, 2021

Cost of Raw Material Consumed ` 44,361.65 ` 21,997.38

Total Cost of Materials consumed ` 44,361.65 ` 21,997.38

Inventory at the beginning of the year   4,395.55   1,805.78

Add: Purchases during the year   42,416.15  24,587.15

Less: Inventory at the end of the year   2,450.05  4,395.55

(` in Lakhs)

Principal items of Raw Materials Consumed For the year ended For the year ended
st st31  March, 2022 31  March, 2021

Total Principal items of Raw Materials Consumed  ` 44,127.05 ` 21,713.74   

Gold Bullion  27,154.72 9,431.25  

Old Gold Ornaments  16,972.34 12,282.49   

Note: 25   Purchases of Stock-in-Trade
Particular For the year ended For the year ended

st st31  March, 2022 31  March, 2022

Total Purchases of Stock-in-Trade  ` 121,684.30  ` 97,667.55  

Purchase of Stock-in-Trade  121,684.30  97,667.55  

(` in Lakhs)

Principal items of Purchase of Stock-in-Trade For the year ended For the year ended
st st31 March, 2022 31  March, 2021

Total Principal items of Purchase of Stock-in-Trade  `109,674.87 ` 88,549.06

Diamonds   8,955.18  5,517.14

Gold Bullion   16,065.43  17,376.46

Gold Jewellery  84,654.26  65,655.47

Note: 26   Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, Work-in-Progress 
and Stock-in-Trade
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

st st31 March, 2022 31  March, 2021

(A) Work in Progress

 -    -   

Total (A)  ` -    ` -   

Opening Work in Progress  -    -   

Less: Closing Work in Progress

(` in Lakhs)
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Note: 27   Employee Benefit Expenses

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
st st 31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021

Total Employee Benefit Expenses ` 1,744.55 ` 1,287.32

Salary & Incentives  1,582.27 1,151.23 

Contribution towards various Funds for Employee Benefit  92.46 64.09  

Directors Remmuneration  69.82 72.00

(` in Lakhs)

Note: 28   Finance Cost
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

st st31 March, 2022 31  March, 2021

(A) Interest Expenses

Total (A)  ` 1,199.75 ` 867.74 

(B) Bank Charges & Other Finance Related Expenses

Total (B)  `222.84 ` 138.76

(C) CC Limit Renewal Charges

Total (C)  ` 35.77 ` 18.23

Interest on CC Limit  591.40 308.67

Interest on Unsecured Loans  468.23 494.33

Interest on Term Loan   60.17 44.29

Interest on Vehicle Loan  9.72 10.12

Interest on Gold Metal Loan - 5.50 

Interest on ECLGS  70.22 4.83   

Bank Charges & Stampting Expenses  222.84 138.76

CC Limit Renwal Charges  35.77 18.23 

(` in Lakhs)

(D) Interest on Lease Liabilities

Total (D)  ` 61.07 ` 54.57

Total Finance Cost ` 1,519.43  ` 1,079.31

Interest on Lease Liabilities 61.07 54.57

(B) Finished Goods

Total (B)  ` -2,215.72 ` -3,914.17 

(C) Stock-in-Trade

Total (C)  -2,726.25 ` -2,509.72 

Total Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, 

Work-in-Progress and Stock-in-Trade -4,941.98  ` -6,423.89 

Opening of Finished Goods 16,576.20  12,662.03  

Less: Closing of Finished Goods 18,791.93  16,576.20 

Opening of Stock in Trade 11,000.44 8,490.72 

Less: Closing of Stock in Trade 13,726.69 11,000.44 



Note: 30   Other Expenses
(` in Lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
st st 31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021

(A) Manufacturing Expenses & Consumables

Total (A)  `1,098.70  `607.40 

(B) Selling, Distribution & Administrative Expenses

Total (B)  ` 1,534.50  ` 1,371.47

(C) Other Expenses

Making Charges  691.31  376.03 

Certification & Testing Expenses  53.68  25.43 

Stores & Consumables (Packing Materials)  339.03  189.92 

Jewellery Designing Charges  14.69   16.02     

Advertisement Expenses  471.42  484.52 

Brokerage & Commission Expense  5.31  12.91 

Discount Expenses  309.53  293.96 

Electricity Expenses  96.83  64.68 

Freight & Carriage Expenses  54.96  63.01 

Insurance of Customer Jewellery Expenses  0.05  0.01 

Rental Expenses  45.48  34.89 

Repairs & Maintenance Expenses  169.86  150.04 

Royalty Expenses  52.03  34.86 

Security Expenses  54.71  38.94 

Showroom Expenses  150.60  91.00 

Stationary & Printing Expenses  22.52  14.80 

Telephone Expenses  16.75  15.89 

Travelling & Conveyance Expenses  50.53  40.38 

Vehicle Running Expenses  33.92  31.58 

 

CSR Expense  45.06  33.89 

Donation Expenses  2.38  0.50 

Director Sitting Fees Expenses  0.96  1.04 

Fees & Other Subscription Charges  25.76  35.76 

Foreign Currency Exchange Rate Diff  -    4.04
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Note: 29  Depreciation and Amortization Expense

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
st st31 March, 2022 31  March, 2021

Total Depreciation and Amortization Expense  ` 546.34  ` 394.70 

Depreciation on Property, Plant & Equipment 

(Refer Note No. 3)  249.08  250.86 

Depreciation on Right-of-Use Assets (Refer Note No. 4) - 9.32 -

Jewelline  

Depreciation on Right-of-Use Assets (Refer Note No. 4)  287.84  143.73 

Depreciation on Other Intangible Assets 

(Refer Note No. 6)  0.11  0.11 

(` in Lakhs)
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Insurance Expenses  13.80  14.08 

Interest & Late Fees on Taxes  10.63  1.96 

Legal & Professional Charges  26.35  24.25 

MRM Expense  -    -   

Postage & Courier Expenses  -  0.73 

Prior Period Expense  3.36  1.55 

Annual Listing Fees, Market Making Charges & 

other related expenses  4.43  9.29 

Penalty Expense  0.05  -   

Rates & Taxes  2.32  4.25 

Written Off  0.96  -   

Loss on Sale of Windmill Business  -    0.49 

Loss from Theft 3.61

Loss on Sale of Subsidiary  2.77  -   

Total (C)   ` 142.43  ` 131.84

(D) Payment to Auditor

Total (D)  ` 10.35  ` 8.00 

(E) Windmill Maintenance Expenses

Total (E)   ` 43.76 

Total Other Expenses  ` 2,785.99  ` 2,162.47

Internal Audit Fees  2.10  1.80 

Secretarial Audit Fees  -    0.40 

Statutory Audit Fees  7.50  4.50 

Tax Audit Fees  0.75  0.75 

Wind Mill Operation & Maintenance Expenses  - 43.76 

-

Note: 31   Basic & Diluted EPS
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

st st31  March, 2022 31  March, 2021

Net profit after tax (` In Lakhs)  ` 4,053.44 ` 2,740.19

Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares (In Lakhs)  222.55  222.55 

Face Value of Shares (`)  ` 10.00 ` 10.00 

Earnings Per Shares - Basic & Diluted (`) ` 18.21 ` 12.31

180



D.P. ABHUSHAN LIMITEDD.P. ABHUSHAN LIMITEDD.P. ABHUSHAN LIMITEDD.P. ABHUSHAN LIMITEDD.P. ABHUSHAN LIMITEDD.P. ABHUSHAN LIMITED

Note: 32   Financial Instruments

32.1  Financial Instruments - Fair values

Accounting classification and fair values

Level 1: 

Level 2: 

Level 3: 

Carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels in the fair 

value hierarchy, are presented below.

The fair value of financial instruments have been classified into three categories depending on the inputs used 

in the valuation technique. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for identical 

assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3 

measurements)

The categories used are as follows:

Quoted prices for identical instruments in an active market;

Directly or indirectly observable market inputs, other than Level 1 inputs; and

Inputs which are not based on observable market data.
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Financial assets
At amortised cost

  
At fair value through profit and loss

Total Assets  885.20  1,677.58  147.77  316.69 
Financial liabilities

Total Liabilities  23,077.96  24,676.42      23,077.96  24,676.42 

Trade receivables  266.31  251.01  -   

Cash and bank balances  471.11  1,109.88  - 

Other financial assets  147.77  316.69  147.77  316.69 

At amortised cost

Borrowings  15,258.08  15,376.23  15,258.08  15,376.23 

Trade payables  6,059.47  7,780.04  6,059.47  7,780.04 

Other financial liabilities (Includes Lease 

Liabilities)  1,760.41  1,520.15  1,760.41  1,520.15 

Carrying Value

31-Mar-22

Fair Value

31-Mar-21 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21

Particulars

(` in Lakhs)



Fair value hierarchy:
The following table categorise the financial assets and liabilities held at fair value by the valuation 

methodology applied in determining their fair value.

As at 31 March 2022  Level 1  Level 2  Level 3  Total 

Other financial assets  -    -     147.77  147.77

As at 31 March 2021 Level 1  Level 2  Level 3  Total 

Other financial assets  -    -    316.69  316.69

32.2   Financial Risk Management

The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:

a)  Credit Risk

b)  Liquidity Risk

c)  Market Risk 

The Group’s board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group’s risk 

management framework. The board of directors along with the top management are responsible for 

developing and monitoring the Group's risk management policies.

The Group's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Group, to 

set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies 

and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Group's activities. The 

Group, through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and 

constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

The Group's audit committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Group's risk 

management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in 

relation to the risks faced by the Group.

Risk Management Framework

a. Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to 

meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Group's trade receivables, certain loans and 

advances and other financial assets.

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure.

The maximum exposure to credit risk for trade and other receivables are as follows:

Particulars   As at As at 
st st 31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021

Total  885.20  1,677.58 

 

Trade receivables 266.31 251.01 

Cash and cash equivalents  471.11 1,109.88 

Other financial assets 147.77 316.69 

(` in Lakhs)
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Trade receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Other financial assets

"The Group has developed guidelines for the management of credit risk from trade receivables. The Group's 

exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer The demographics 

of the customer, including the default risk of the industry and country in which the customer operates, also has 

an influence on credit risk assessment. "

The Group held cash and cash equivalents with credit worthy banks and financial institutions as at the reporting 

dates which has been measured on the 12-month expected loss basis. The credit worthiness of such banks and 

financial institutions are evaluated by the management on an ongoing basis and is considered to be good with 

low credit risk. Also, no impairment loss has been recorded in respect of fixed deposits that are with recognised 

commercial banks and are not past due.

Other financial assets mainly include security deposits as well as other advances receivable on demand where 

the credit risk is envisaged to be minimal. The Group has not acquired any credit impaired asset. There was no 

modification in any financial assets.

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk as at 31st March 2022 and 31st March 2021 is the carrying value of 

each class of financial assets.

32.3   Financial Instruments - Risk Management (Continued)

b. Liquidity Risks

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its 

financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Group’s approach to 

managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when 

they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking 

damage to the Group’s reputation. 

The Group has current financial assets which the management believes is sufficient to meet all its liabilities 

maturing during the next 12 months.

The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts 

are gross and undiscounted, including contractual interest.

Borrowings 15,258.08 15,258.08 12,513.60  2,744.48 
Trade payables   6,059.47 6,059.47 6,049.92  9.55   
Other financial liabilities  1,760.41 1,760.41 927.28  833.12 

Carrying Total Less than More than
amount  one year one year

Total  23,077.96 23,077.96 19,490.80  3,587.16 

Particulars

Borrowings 15,376.23 15,376.23 14,343.17  1,033.06 
Trade payables 7,780.04 7,780.04 7,780.04  -   
Other financial liabilities 1,520.15 1,520.15 454.20  1,065.95 

Carrying Total Less than More than
amount  one year one year

Total 24,676.42 24,676.42 22,577.41  2,099.01 

As at 31 March 2021
Particulars

As at 31 March 2022
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32.4   Financial Instruments - Fair Value and Risk Management (Continued)

c. Market Risks

Market risk is the risk of loss of future earnings or fair values or future cash flows that may result from a change in 

the price of a financial instrument. The value of a financial instrument may change as a result of changes in the 

interest rates, foreign exchange rates and other market changes that affect market risk sensitive instruments. 

Market risk is attributable to all market risk sensitive financial instruments including foreign currency receivables 

and payables. The Group is exposed to market risk primarily related to foreign exchange rate risk (currency 

risk), interest rate risk and the market value of its investments. Thus the Group’s exposure to market risk is a 

function of investing and borrowing activities and revenue generating and operating activities in foreign 

currencies.

32.5   Capital Management & Gearing Ratio

For the purpose of the Group's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital and all other equity 

reserves attributable to the equity holders of the Group. The primary objective of the Group's capital 

management is to maximize the shareholder value. 

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and 

the requirements of the financial covenants. From time to time, the Group reviews its policy related to dividend 

payment to shareholders. The Group monitors capital using gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total 

capital plus net debt. The Group includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings, less cash and 

cash equivalents.

The Group's capital management is intended to create value for shareholders by facilitating the meeting of its 

long-term and short-term goals. Its Capital structure consists of net debt (borrowings as detailed in notes below) 

and total equity.

Borrowings  15,952.54 15,585.45  

Less: Cash and bank balances  -471.11 -1,109.88  

Capital and net debt  29,287.53 24,193.41 

st st31  March, 2022  31  March, 2021

Net borrowings (I)  15,481.42 14,475.57 

Total Capital (ii)  13,806.11 9,717.84 

Net debt to Total Capital 

plus net debt ratio (%) 53% 60%

Gearing Ratio
The gearing ratio at the end of the reporting period was as follows:

(i) Debt is defined as Non - Current borrowings (including current maturities) and current borrowings and 

interest accrued on Non - Current borrowings and Current borrowings.

(ii) Equity is defined as Equity share capital and other equity including reserves and surplus.

Particulars
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Sr. No. Names of the related parties with whom 
transaction were carried out during 

the period and description of relationship:

Company/Entity owned or Significantly 

Influenced by Directors/KMP/ Individuals 

owning interest in voting power that gives 

them significant influence over the 

enterprise or their relatives 

1 1. Manratan Trades Pvt Ltd

2. Manratan Retail Pvt. Ltd. 

3. D.P. Power, Ratlam

4. Namaskar Casting Pvt Ltd

5. Santosh Ratanlal Kataria (HUF)

6. Sanjay Manohar Lal Kataria (HUF)

7. Rajesh Manoharlal Kataria (HUF)

8. Manoharlal Pannalal Kataria (HUF)

9. Anil Manoharlal Kataria (HUF)

10. Ratanlal Pannalal Kataria (HUF)

Key Management Personnel's/Directors2 1. Vikas Kataria

2. Renu Kataria

3. Santosh Kataria

4. Vijesh Kumar Kasera

5. Amit Bandi

6. CS Varsha Gang

7. CS Aashi Neema

Relatives of Key Management 

Personnel’s:

3 1. Anil Kataria

2. Sanjay Kataria

3. Aman Kataria

4. Anisha Kataria

5. Manjuladevi Kataria

6. Muskan Kataria

7. Rajesh Kataria

8. Ratanlal Kataria

9. Sangeeta Kataria

10. Sumandevi Kataria

11. Supriya Kataria

12. Meena Kataria

13. Udit Kataria

14. Santosh Kasera

Note: 33   Notes Forming the Part of Accounts

33.1: Related Party Transaction

Related Parties
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15. Sweety Kothari

16. Nitin Pirodiya

17. Ranglal Chordia

(` In Lakhs) 

Related 
Parties

Key Managerial Personnel

                                           Relatives of Key Managerial Person

Vikas Kataria 29.70 170.21 33.45 0.00 0.00

RenuKataria 14.27 204.88 0.24 0.00 0.00

Santosh Kataria 72.90 225.61 30.38 0.00 0.00

Anil Kataria 206.65 430.95 35.25 0.00 0.00

VijeshKumar Kasera 0.00 0.00 7.23 0.00 0.00

Amit Bandi - CEO 0.00 0.00 14.11 0.00 0.00

Varsha Gang – CS 0.00 0.00 1.47 0.00 0.00

AashiNeema – CS 0.00 0.00 0.23 0.00 0.00

Sanjay Kataria 102.25 152.85 0.00 0.00 0.00

Aman Kataria 0.75 109.35 0.00 12.00 0.00

Anisha Kataria 0.00 2.50 0.00 0.00 0.00

Manjula Devi Kataria 1.50 203.90 0.00 0.00 0.00

Muskan Kataria 8.55 1.80 0.00 0.00 0.00

Meena Kataria 26.00 5.40 0.00 0.00 0.00

Nitin Pirodiya 0.00 0.00 9.40 0.00 0.00

Rajesh Kataria 7.00 8.41 0.00 0.00 0.00

Ranglal Chordia 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.79

Ratanlal Kataria 31.85 85.76 35.25 12.00 0.00

Sangeeta Kataria 128.37 87.15 0.00 0.00 0.00

Suman Devi Kataria 214.30 109.74 0.00 12.00 0.00

Supriya Kataria 0.00 56.31 0.00 0.00 0.00

Santosh Kasera 0.00 0.00 5.44 0.00 0.00

Sweety Kothari 0.00 0.00 9.40 0.00 0.00

Udit Kataria 0.00 1.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Remuneration Paid/
Payable, Sitting Fee

 Loan 
Received 

Loan 
Repaid

Rent Purchase/ 
Sale 

Transaction 
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Other Companies/Entities

Manratan Trades Pvt. Ltd 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Manratan Retail Pvt. Ltd. 1777.90 3412.57 0.00 0.00 0.00

D P Power 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Namaskar Casting Pvt. Ltd 45.25 37.15 0.00 0.00 0.00

Santosh Ratanlal Kataria (HUF) 0.00 87.81 0.00 0.00 0.00

Sanjay Manohar Lal Kataria (HUF) 242.24 5.67 0.00 0.00 0.00

Rajesh Manoharlal Kataria (HUF) 0.75 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Manoharlal Pannalal Kataria (HUF) 25.00 2.47 0.00 0.00 0.00

Anil Manoharlal Kataria (HUF) 84.61 2.08 0.00 0.00 0.00

Ratanlal Pannalal Kataria (HUF) 0.00 30.81 0.00 0.00 0.00

187



33.4

In the opinion of director, the value on realization of current assets, loans and advances, if realized in the 

ordinary course of the business, shall not be less than the amount, which is stated in the current year balance 

sheet. 

The provisions for all known liabilities are reasonable and not in excess of amount considered reasonably 

necessary.

33.5

Figures have been rounded off to the nearest ̀  in lacs and have been regrouped, rearranged and reclassified 

wherever necessary.

33.6

Wherever no vouchers and documentary evidences were made available for our verification, we have relied on 

the representation given by management of the company. 

33.7 Earnings per Share

The numerators and denominators used to calculate Basic/Diluted Earnings per share: 

A. Profit After Tax – (Numerator) `40,98,16,973.22 `27,40,18,808.20

B. Basic/Weighted Average number of 

Equity Shares – (Denominator) 2,22,54,850 2,22,54,850

C. Face Value of Equity Shares ` 10.00 ` 10.00

D. Earnings Per Share (EPS) `18.21 `12.31

For the Period ended 
st31  March, 2021

ParticularsSr. 
No

For the Period ended 
st31  March, 2022

33.2 Pending Litigation

The Company has a matter pending before Income Tax Authority for the AY 2018-19.

Name of the Nature of Unpaid Amount Period to which Forum where
Statute Due  Involved the amount relates dispute is pending

Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax ₹ 12,57,300 AY 2018-19 Commissioner of 
Liability Income Tax (Appeals)

Class of Goods

Gold Bullion/Jewellery and 

Stones Gram 560823.665 5927432.074 5948229.802 540025.937

Diamonds and  Diamonds 

Jewellery (Gross) Gram 132936.026 302880.844 275800.107 160016.762

Silver Bullion and Jewellery Gram 1579897.012 4945588.212 5157173.196 1368312.028

Platinum Jewellery Gram 2198.255 241.512 895.630 1544.137

Mis. Items Articles Nos. 118982 4544 3176 120350

Purchases/
Receipts

Unit
Opening 

Stock
Sales/

Consumption
Closing 
Stock

33.3   Quantitative information for the year ended 31st March 2022

( `) Amount in 
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33.8   Expenditure in Foreign Currency
(` In Lakhs) 

Commitments

Contingent Liabilities

Claims against the company not acknowledged as 

debts:

Estimated Amount of contracts remaining unexecuted 

on capital account (net of advances) not provided for - -

Disputed demand of income tax for which appeals 12.57 12.57

have been preferred

Disputed demand of VAT/Sales Tax Appeal                - -

For the Period ended 
st31  March, 2021

Particulars For the Period ended 
st31  March, 2022

33.9   Disclosure required under section 22 of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
(` In Lakhs) 

Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as 

at the end of the year 2,246.87 2,609.65

Interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier 

as at the end of the accounting year - -

The amount of interest paid along with the amounts 

of the payment made to the supplier beyond the 

appointed day - -

The amount of interest due and payable for the 

period of delay in making payment (which have been 

paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) 

but without adding the interest specified under 

MSMED Act - -

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid 

at the end of accounting year - -

The amount of further interest due and payable even 

in succeeding year, until such date when the interest 

dues as above are actually paid to the small 

enterprises, for the purpose of disallowance as a 

deductible expenditure under section 23 - -

Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises have been 

determined to the extent such parties have been

identified on the basis of information collected by 

the management. This has been relied upon by the 

auditors. - -

For the Period ended 
st31  March, 2021

Particulars For the Period ended 
st31  March, 2022
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33.11   Events after the reporting period
The Company has evaluated subsequent events from the balance sheet date through 05 May 2022, the date at 

which the financial statement were available to be issued, and determine that there are no material items to 

disclose other than those disclosed.

33.12  Other Statutory information

(a) The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), 

including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

(i) Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or 

onbehalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(ii) Provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b) The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities 

(Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

(i) Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or 

onbehalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(ii) Provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(c) The Company does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has 

been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax 

Act, 1961.

33.13  Relationship with Struck off companies
There are no balance outstanding on account of any transaction with companies struck off under section 248 of 

the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956.

33.10   Corporate Social Responsibility

st stParticulars As at 31  March, As at 31  March, 
2022 2021

Opening amount yet to be spent -0.02 -

Gross amount required to be spent by the 

company during the year 50.02 33.87

Amount spent by the company during the year

- Construction/Acquisition of any asset

- On purpose other than mentioned above 45.06 33.89

Closing/(Excess) amount yet to be spent 4.94 -0.02

Note– The Company has transferred unspent Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) amount as at the end of the 
previous financial year, to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to the Companies Act within a period of six months of 
the expiry of the financial year in compliance with second proviso to sub-section (5) of section 135 of the said 
Act;

Details of the Corporate Social Responsibility Expenditure: -

The Company does not make any CSR transaction with related party.

The nature of CSR activities undertaken by the company as below –
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 33.14

MCA has issued notification dated March 24, 2021 to amend the schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013 to 

enhance the disclosures required to be made by the Company in the financial statements. These amendments 

are applicableto the Company with effect from 1st day of April 2021. The figures for the previous year have been 

regrouped/ rearranged, wherever necessary, to correspond with the current period’s classification/disclosure.

 33.15  The standalone financial statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 24th May, 

2022.

 33.16  Dividend on Equity Shares

The Board of Directors has recommended a dividend @`1.00/- per equity share (10%) of the face value of 

`10.00 per share for the financial year 2021-22.

 33.17   Segment Reporting

The Company’s business activity falls within a single primary business segment of “Jewellery” and one 

reportable geographical segment which is “within India”. Accordingly, the company is a single segment 

company in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard 108 “Operating Segment”.

 33.18   The Company has not traded or invested in any crypto currency or virtual currency during the financial 

year.

 33.19    The Company is not declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institutions.

 33.20    Ratio Analysis and its Components

S. No. Particulars 31-03-2022 31-03-2021 % Change

1 Current Ratio 1.52 1.28 19.20%

2 Debt Equity Ratio 1.11 1.58 -30.22%

3 Debt Service Coverage Ratio 3.36 3.21   4.86%

4 Return on Equity Ratio 34.86% 32.86%   6.09%

5 Inventory Turnover Ratio 5.16 3.80 35.72%

6 Trade Receivable Turnover Ratio 669.36 485.31 37.93%

7 Trade Payable Turnover Ratio 24.00 15.38 56.01%

8 Net Capital Turnover Ratio 13.90 15.92 -12.73%

9 Net Profit Ratio 2.34% 2.25%   4.08%

10 Return on Capital Employed 24.05% 18.91% 27.18%

1 Current Ratio

2 Debt Equity Ratio

  

 Numerator Current Assets         36,262.37         35,164.73 

 Denominator Current Liabilities         23,804.38         27,521.83

  

 Numerator Total Debt         15,258.08         15,376.23 

 Denominator Total Equity         13,806.11          9,707.94 

S. No. Particulars 31-03-2022 31-03-2021
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3 Debt Service Coverage Ratio   

 Numerator Earning Available 5,812.29           4,000.15
for Debt Service

Denominator Finance Cost &          1,728.58           1,247.50
Lease Payment + 
Principal repayment of 
Long term borrowings 
During the Year  

4 Return on Equity Ratio   

 Numerator Net Profit After Tax            4,098.17 2,740.19 

 Denominator Average Total Equity 11,757.02 8,339.78  

5 Inventory Turnover Ratio   

 Numerator Revenue from operation      1,73,137.99        1,21,816.90  

 Denominator Average Inventory         33,528.74         32,017.19  

6 Trade Receivable Turnover 
Ratio   

 Numerator Revenue from operation      1,73,137.99      1,21,816.90  

 Denominator Average Trade Receivable 258.66 251.01 

7 Trade Payable Turnover Ratio   

 Numerator Cost of Material Consumed + 
Purchase of Stock in Trade       1,66,045.94      1,19,664.93 

 Denominator Average Trade Payable           6,919.65           7,780.04 

8 Net Capital Turnover Ratio   

 Numerator Revenue from operation       1,73,137.99      1,21,816.90 

 Denominator Net Working Capital          12,457.99           7,649.53  

9 Net Profit Ratio   

 Numerator Net Profit after Tax          4,043.44            2,740.19

 Denominator Revenue from Operation      1,73,137.99      1,21,816.90 

10 Return on Capital Employed   

 Numerator Profit Before Interest & Tax           6,989.14         4,742.84 

Denominator Total Equity + Total Debts         29,064.18        25,084.17
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